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Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited (formerly known as
U-RIGHT International Holdings Limited, the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) accomplished a number of
significant events and milestones during the year ended 31 March
2018 (the “Year”), including, the disposals of Alfreda Limited and UR
Group Limited (the “VSD”), the placing of shares of 2,727,280,000
shares of the Company (“Shares”) (the “Share Placing”), the placing
of convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$200,000,000 (the
“CB Placing”) and the issue of consideration shares of
6,415,060,000 Shares (the “Consideration Shares”) and payment of
cash consideration of HK$100,000,000 to Tongda Enterprises
Limited (“Tongda”) in relation to the acquisition of Vivalink Limited
and its subsidiaries (collectively “Vivalink Group”) (the “VSA”) were
completed on 1 December 2017 (the “Transactions”). Mr. Pan
Weiming and Tongda have become the controlling shareholders of
the Company and the Group changed the principal business to the
development and sale of properties and property investment in the
PRC (including Hong Kong).

The VSA constituted a very substantial acquisition for the Company
under Rule 14.06(5) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”), a connected transaction for the
Company pursuant to Rule 14A.28 of the Listing Rules, a reverse
takeover for the Company under Rule 14.06(6)(a) of the Listing Rules.
As such, the Company was also treated as if it were a new listing
applicant under Rule 14.54 of the Listing Rules. The approval-in-
principle to the new listing application was granted by the Stock
Exchange on 25 October 2017.

The aggregate consideration for the VSD was approximately
HK$78,860,000. The VSD on an aggregated basis constituted a very
substantial disposal transaction for the Company under Rule 14.06
of the Listing Rules and therefore subjected to the announcement
and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules.

The Company obtained independent shareholders’ approval on the
special general meeting held on 20 November 2017 for the VSA and
other relevant resolutions, including, but not limited to, the application
of the whitewash waiver, the VSD, the Share Placing and CB Placing
under specific mandate, the share premium reduction, change of
name of the Company and the adoption of the share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”). The Transactions were then completed
on 1 December 2017 and the name of the Company was also
changed to Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited.

Details of the abovementioned transactions were set out in the
circular of the Company dated 27 October 2017 and announcement
of the Company dated 1 December 2017.

The VSA constituted a reverse takeover for the Company. Under the
applicable financial reporting standards adopted by the Company,
the financial results presented by the Group for the Year and its
comparative period (i.e. the period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March
2017) are restated and prepared as a continuation of the financial
results of Vivalink Group, the business including trading of
construction materials are consolidated to the financial results only
since 1 December 2017 after the completion of the VSA. In this
annual report (“Annual Report”), we will focus on the discussion and
analysis about the property development and investment business.
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Changsha City, Hunan Province
HEERDT

Qianlong Academy

BREEM

Qianlong Fine Art
EE”m

Qianlong Premier Mansion

BEAR

Qianlong Royal Family Phase 1
BERUERE

Qianlong Royal Family Phase 2
BRUZXE_H

Qianlong Royal Family Phase 3
BEERE=H

Qianlong International Phase 1

BEARE—H

Qianlong International Phase 2
FEE R 1

Qianlong International Phase 3

wEER=5

Xingru Jincheng Phase 2
i) g

Xingru Jincheng Phase 3
R eH =4

Fullsun International Financial Centre
BREESBHL

Note:

C represents commercial
R represents residential
CP represents carparks

No. 28 Xinkaipu Road,
Tianxin District

RO EH R 2857

No. 1 Furong South Road,
Tianxin District
ROBEREHE 1

No. 66 Tianjian Road,
Tianxin District
KB IH 665

No. 1 Xinglian Road,
Xlngalng Town, Kaifu District
B R T S R B 1 5%

No. 1 Xinglian Road,
Xingang Town, Kaifu District
PR RTE AR 15}

No. 1 Xinglian Road,
Xlngalng Town, Kaifu District
PR AR 157

Xinglian Village, Xingang Town,
Kaifu District
FE R 3B AR

Xinglian Village,
Xlngalng Town, Kaifu District
7R 8 378 A S

Xinglian Village,
Xingang Town, Kaifu District
RIS EER A

Guihua Ping,
Tianxin District
RUBEET

Guihua Ping,
Tianxin District
ROBHETET

Xiaoxiang Zhong Road,
Binjiang Xincheng
Sub-district, Yuelu District

FEREIINAE
AT

Others represents ancillary and others

8,353

16,440

14,351

23,164

183,070

51,099

13,626

160,929

56,658

83,620

159,644

163,861

100%  CP/Others Completed
B#T
100%  G/R/CP/Others Completed
BRI
100%  R/CP/Others Completed
B#T
100%  G/R/CP/Others Completed
B%RT
100%  G/R/CP/Others 2018-2019
—T-\FE
—Z-NF
100%  G/R/CP/Others 2019
—Z-NF
100%  G/CP/Others Completed
B#T
100%  G/R/CP/Others 2019-2020
—Z-NEE
it Sk 33
100%  N/A Not yet
TEA commenced
I AE) T
100%  G/R/CP/Others 2018
—2-N\F
100%  C/R/CP/Others 2020
S 33
100%  G/CP/Others 2018
—T-N\F
M5E
Ciam%
RIEEF=E
CPiEfZ®15
Others 8% B & E Ath

2018 &R



PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

TEME

PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT BEREZYZE
Attributable
Gross floor  interesttothe  Nature of property  Category
Project Address area (sq. m.) Group (Note) of lease
HREEE REEEL MEHE
HH iyt (FHK) Bx () HEER
Fuzhou City, Fujian Province
BEEEMT
Qianlong Gongguan® No. 77 Yuantong Road East, 241 100% C Medium
BN Shangjie Town, HHf
Minhou County
BEG HHERBRRTTSR
Hong Kong
&
Enterprise Square 3" No. 39 Wang Chiu Road, 6,763 100%  C/CP/Others Medium
TEES=H Kowloon i H
NBRRRRE 395K
Note: MiaE
C represents commercial Ciem%
R represents residential RIEE=E
CP represents carparks CPigiz®E15
Others represents ancillary and others Others 1§ %5 B & E Ath

#One of the shops is using by the Group.
% The Group intends to occupy one vacant floor as office of the Group in the future.

é FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B RHE

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FEMBRR
The figures below are extracted from the consolidated financial THIEIE sk B A ERATH B AMSRE -
statements as disclosed in this Annual Report. (AARBEFTIHR)

(Expressed in RMB’000)

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE

2018 2017 Changes
Operating Performance EEEN —E-NE —ET—+F& g %
Revenue WA 553,549 602,607 149,058 /8.1
Gross profit ES 222,303 174,014 148,289 127.8
Gross profit margin B ped 40.2% 28.9% 111.3% -
Operating profit before tax [ T BT 48 25 178,915 112,137 166,778 159.6
Income tax expenses PSR (79,024) (58,024) 121,000 136.2
Operating profit after tax MR 1B A& 99,891 54,113 145,778 184.6

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE

Financial effect of other Hith & EEE = 2018 2017
non-operating activities g g7 —E-N\F —T—+F
Operating profit after tax PR IB SR A 99,891 54,113
Less: A
Change in fair value of ARIRESITES D 2
derivative components of NEEEDH)
convertibles bonds (182,812) Nil &
Impairment loss on goodwill BE Y REEE (4,543,433) Nil £
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE)=EF (4,626,354) 54,113
(Loss) earnings per share BR(EE)ZR
(RMB cents) (AR% D)
Basic HK (59.64) 0.84
Diluted g (59.64) 0.84

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2018 2017 Changes

Financial Position B R —E-N\F =ZT—+F b= %
Restricted bank deposits and SRR FIIRITIF A K

bank balances and cash IRITHEBEIRS 560,503 389,274 171,229 144.0
Borrowings Eh= 2,226,326 1,536,286 1690,040 144.9
Deposit received for sale of HEME 2 BWIES

properties 1,496,763 283,455 11,213,308 1428.0
Carrying amounts of AR ESMETERD 2

convertible bonds and its IREE

derivative component 1,097,736 - 11,097,736 -
Equity attributable to owners RAREE AELER

of the Company 288,565 327,707 139,142 111.9

EREREREBERAR 7
20184 1§



Year 2017/18 was an important year for the Group. On 1 December
2017, the Group completed the major acquisitions and disposals,
with its businesses officially moving towards development and
investment of residential and commercial properties. After the
completion of the acquisition, the Group was officially renamed
Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited, underlining a new
direction and turning a new page for its business development.

With the favourable support of national real estate-related policies,
there is high development potential for the real estate market in
China. The Group has actively adjusted its development strategies
and tapped into the development and sales of premium residential
and commercial properties in Changsha by investing in the shares in
Fuzhou Fullsun Group Co., Ltd. (f& /N 1& R & & & R A 7)), with an
aim to capture the enormous business opportunities arising from the
policies which are positive to the development of the property
market. The Group is a leading provider of premium residential
properties and owns six property projects in different development
stages in Changsha, and places major efforts in developing
residential and commercial cum residential properties, including
residence, offices, commercial apartments, retail shops, hotels and
shopping malls. The Group proactively enriched and diversified its
investment portfolios through acquisitions. During the Year, the
Group acquired the development projects of Xingru Jincheng in
Changsha, and expanded its business presence in Hong Kong.
During the Year, we acquired the properties comprising top 5 floors
of office at Enterprise Square Three, No. 39 Wang Chiu Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, and we are in the process of negotiation to
acquire a high-end residential property at La Salle Road, Ho Man
Tin, Kowloon, which is soon to be completed, with an aim to bring
considerable returns to the Group in the future.
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The Group should take into account the overall situation and look
into the future with its foresights on investment and development.
Therefore, the Group has paid close attention to the national policies.
The report of 19th National Congress has pointed out the
coordinated regional development strategy based on city clusters
and will further advance the construction of a new urbanization
model. According to the outline of the “13th Five-Year Plan”, the
Chinese Government will further optimize the layout of urbanization.
The continuous growth in per capita disposable income of urban
residents in China, increasing consumer sentiment and stronger
purchasing power drove the demand for residential properties. We
are optimistic about the prospects of the property market in China
and Hong Kong in the long run. In addition to regions such as
Changsha and Hong Kong as mentioned above, the Group will
implement strategies for layout planning by region, and will focus on
city clusters in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, Yangtze River Delta
region, Pearl River Delta region, the Chengdu-Chongging region, the
middle reaches of the Yangtze River and central regions as well as
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and the
Hangzhou Bay Area, connecting the cities on the West Coast City
Cluster with the interior.

Our business for the year is still in the cultivating stage. The Group
will strive to bring considerable returns to the Company and its
shareholders in the near future through a number of properties/
development projects which have been or will be launched for sale,
proactively seeking quality customers and leasing out and selling
commercial projects. As for future project development, we will
progressively explore the possibilities of various value-added
products, and develop the concept of “Technology and Finance,
Pan-Education and Pan-Health” and its diversified products based
on the standardized system of “Technology and Finance for the
General Public”. The Group will also further improve product quality
to meet the needs of various customers and users.

The Group’s progressive objectives and its diversified business
development broadens the income sources and also strengthens its
competitiveness and its reputation in the industry. Equipped with an
operation model with high efficiency and stringent cost control
measures, the Group will accelerate the overall business
development and provide more satisfactory returns to our
shareholders.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our
gratitude to all shareholders for their support.

PAN Weiming
Chairman
Hong Kong, 15 June 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 (the “Year”), Fullsun International
Holdings Group Co., Limited (the “Company”, together with
subsidiaries, the “Group”) celebrated a number of significant and
milestone events. On 1 December 2017, it was listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited through reverse
takeover. The Group’s principal business is development and sale of
properties and property investment in PRC (including Hong Kong),
focus on developing mid-range to high-end real estate sector. It
actively seeks to capture business opportunities in the property
market to expand its business, thereby boost overall profitability in
the long run.

The Group aims to become a provider of premium residential
properties and places major effort into developing residential and
commercial cum residential properties, and has been keen on
pursuing property investment in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
The Group owns a mix of properties in different development stages
in Changsha City, of which the construction of Qianlong Academy,
Qianlong Fine Art, Qianlong Premier Mansion, Qianlong Royal Family
Phase |, Qianlong International Phase | have been completed and
Qianlong Royal Family Phase | and Qianlong International Phase |
have been launched to the market during the Year.

Qianlong Royal Family Phase 2 and Phase 3 and Qianlong
International Phase 2 are under construction and expected to be
completed between 2018 to 2020 with total saleable/rentable/car
parks GFA of approximately 390,260 sqg.m..

Qianlong Royal Family is a middle-class residential complex located
in Kaifu District in Changsha, which is adjacent to Xiufengshan Park
and Eryangshan Park. Together with the nearby project of the Group,
Qianlong International, these two projects are envisaged to become
a large-scale living community with facilities for residence, office,
hotel, vacation and shopping.

Fullsun International Financial Centre is positioned as a commercial
property located in Binjiang Xincheng of Yuelu District in Changsha,
where it is designed and expected to be the new central business
district of Changsha. It comprises offices, a shopping mall and car
parks. As at the date of this Annual Report, the project has been
approached by potential customers and purchasers. We expect the
construction of Fullsun International Financial Centre will be
completed by second quarter of 2018 and the planned aggregate
saleable/rentable/car parks GFA of approximately 163,000 sqg.m..
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, the Group acquired Xingru Jincheng (with 100%
effective equity interest under the accounting policy adopted by the
Group) at consideration of RMB150,000,000. Xingru Jincheng is a
property development project located at Tian Xin District, Changsha
City and adjacent to Guihuaping Station of Line 1 of the Changsha
Metro. The development site of phase Il and phase Il of the project
contains planned gross floor area of approximately 83,000 sg.m. and
159,000 sg. m., respectively. Xingru Jincheng contains residential,
commercial apartments, retail shops and other facilities. The pre-sale
of phase Il has been commenced in the second quarter of 2018.

During the Year, the Group also acquired 40% equity interest in Kela
Meili Shanzhuang at consideration of RMB120,000,000. Kela Meili
Shanzhuang is a property development project located at Tian Xin
District, Changsha City. Kela Meili Shanzhuang situated in the centre
of district, close to mega shopping malls, surrounded by parks and
green belts and also served by the Line 1 of the Changsha Metro.
The pre-sale of phase Il with saleable GFA of approximately 102,000
sg. M. has been commenced in the first quarter of 2018, remaining
portion of saleable area of approximately 141,000 sg.m. is excepted
to be pre-sell at fourth quarter of 2018. Phase Ill of the project has
not been commenced with a land site area of approximately 23,000
sg.m. with a planned GFA of approximately 109,000 sg.m.. As at the
date of this Annual Report, the Group is negotiating with relevant
parties in relation to acquire additional equity interest in Kela Meili
Shanzhuang.

During the Year, the Group also tapped into the property market of
Hong Kong. On 26 March 2018, the Group acquired a commercial
property in Enterprise Square lll, Kowloon East, Hong Kong, consists
of five floors of office, 16 car parking spaces and 3 external signages.
Certain floors/car parking spaces/signage area have been leased for
rental income. The Group intents to retain certain area for office use
and lease out the remaining area for rental income. On 16 March
2018, the Group entered into an acquisition agreement, pursuant to
which the Group will acquire a residential property project in Ho Man
Tin, Hong Kong. The acquisition is expected to be completed by the
end of September 2018. The Group intended to sell the residential
units to the market.

The Group will monitor for future investment and acquisition
opportunities in order to capture the capital appreciation
opportunities, diversify the investment portfolio and broaden the
revenue base of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B AT

Revenue WA
Gross profit ESVY

Gross profit margin EFE

For the Year, the Group’s total revenue amounted to approximately
RMB553,549,000 (2017: RMB602,607,000). Revenue from property
sales was approximately RMB553,257,000 (2017: RMB602,607,000)
and the total area delivered was approximately 54,600 sg. m. while
rental income was approximately RMB292,000 (2017: Nil).

For the Year, the Group’s gross profit was approximately
RMB222,3083,000, representing an increase of 27.8% from
approximately RMB174,014,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017.
Gross profit margin was 40.2% for the Year, higher than the 28.9%
for the year ended 31 March 2017. The increase in gross profit and
gross profit margin was mainly attributable to higher gross profit
margins of properties delivered by the Group during the Year.

Selling and distribution expenses ~ $5& & 5 $4 5 A
Administrative expenses TR
Operating profit before tax R 750 BT 48 20 A
Income tax expenses st
Operating profit after tax FRE 2 &0 F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Year, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses amounted
to approximately RMB20,854,000, representing an increase of
36.7% when compared to approximately RMB15,258,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2017. The increase was attributable to the
launch of pre-sale of new property projects by the Group. Selling and
distribution expenses are controlled at an appropriate level by the
Group.

For the Year, the Group’s administrative expenses was
approximately RMB28,281,000, representing an increase of 21%
when compared to approximately RMB23,378,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2017. The increase was mainly the result in
expansion of the Group’s business scale, and including labour cost,
legal and professional consultation fees.

For the Year, the Group’s income tax expense amounted to
approximately RMB79,024,000, representing an increase of 36.2%
when compared to approximately RMB58,024,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2017. The Group’s income tax expense included
payment and provision made after the EIT and LAT minus deferred
tax for the Year. Excluding the financial effect of other non-operating
activities, effective income tax rate of the Group declined from 51.7%
for the year ended 31 March 2017 to 44.2% for the Year.

For the Year, the Group made an actual LAT provision of
approximately RMB41,917,000, against the approximately
RMB23,547,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017. As at 31 March
2018, the Group’s accumulated outstanding LAT provision
amounted to approximately RMB73,679,000.

For the Year, the operating profit before tax was approximately
RMB178,915,000, representing an increase of 59.6% when
compared to RMB112,137,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017.
The operating profit after tax was approximately RMB99,891,000,
representing an increase of 84.6% when compared to
RMB54,113,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B AT

Operating profit after tax
Less: Ve
Change in fair value of derivative

components of convertibles bonds ZATEES
Impairment loss on goodwill R REBE
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE) BT
Basic AR
Diluted i3]

For the Year, there were other losses including the change on fair
value of derivative components of convertible bonds issued on 1
December 2017 and the impairment loss on goodwill arising from
the reverse takeover subsequent to the filing of new listing application
of approximately RMB182,812,000 and RMB4,543,433,000
respectively. The management considers that such losses were one-
off and did not have any direct impact on the Group’s cashflow and
had no direct relationship to the daily operation of the Group.

As such, for the Year, loss and total comprehensive expense for the
year attributable to owners of the Company were approximately
RMB4,626,354,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2017: profit and
total comprehensive expense approximately RMB54,113,000).

The basic and diluted loss per share from continuing operations was

RMB59.63 cents (for the year ended 31 March 2017: total basic
earnings per share RMB 0.84 cents).

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Year (2017: Nil).

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

PREIR &5 7

2017
—E—tF
RMB’ 000
ARET T

54,113

AR ESOTER D

Nil 4
Nil 4
54,113

0.84
0.84

AEE HEBEER _Z—+t&+=-A—H
B2 A BBRESTERD 2 AFEEZHRER
BRI EMERER RINEBFTE SR E 2 RER
B oAl 8 A AR 182,812,0007T K& A R #
4,543,433,0007t - EIEER B BHEIEB R — KX
M EAEERSREVEEEYE  BALKH
HE&E N EEERE -

B AFE - ARARHBEABEFABERS
MR R%E L) A AR 4,626,354,000 T (B EZ
T—+FZA=Z+—HILFE: BAEE2EAX
B AR 54,113,0007T) ©

KEABBEELEEBrBREANBEERAAR
50630 (HE-_Z—+F=A=+—HILF
£ BREREFEE  ARK0845) °

EEeTRENAFERNRPBEE(ZF—+¢
FE) e



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

According to the report of 19th National Congress, the China
government will implement the coordinated regional development
strategy; create networks of cities and towns based on city clusters,
enabling the coordinated development of cities of different sizes and
small towns, and speed up work on granting permanent urban
residency to people who move from rural to urban areas. The China
government will no doubt further advance the construction of a new
urbanization model. According to the outline of the “13th Five-Year
Plan”, the China government will further optimize the urbanization
layout in the future. Therefore, the Group remains optimistic about
the prospects of the overall property market development in China
and Hong Kong.

After an in-depth analysis, the Group has already seized the
development trend in its core markets. The Group will enhance the
city clusters in the eastern region, develop world-class city clusters in
the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, Yangtze River Delta region and Pearl
River Delta region; raise the entry level of the city clusters in the West
Coast for competition; foster the growth of city clusters in the central
and western regions and develop city clusters in the middle reaches
of the Yangtze River and the Chengdu-Chongging region. In the
future, it will set up operations in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area and the Hangzhou Bay Area step-by-step,
connecting the cities on the west coast with the interior.

Higher per capita disposable income of the urban population in
China, improved consumer sentiment and stronger spending power
of consumers will boost the demand for residential properties.
Changsha is not only the capital city of Hunan Province, but also an
economically important city in Central China and a hub with great
expansion potential. Its economy has been growing rapidly in recent
years, which in return increase the demand for premium residential
properties by residents. Therefore, the Group plans to gradually
expand its business presence in Changsha.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B AT

In addition, given Hong Kong has always played the role of an
international financial centre, the demand for commercial and
residential properties has been soaring. As for commercial aspect,
the Hong Kong government intends to develop East Kowloon as the
second CBD. In order to seize such opportunity, the Group has
acquired an office project in that district, and the Group is in the
process of negotiation to acquire a residential property in Ho Man
Tin, which will be completed shortly. With the extensive experience
of the management of the Company in developing diversified real
estate projects in Mainland China, these properties are expected to
generate considerable returns for the Group. The Group will continue
to identify suitable projects so as to seize the development
opportunities in the real estate market.

Meanwhile, certain property projects of the Group in Changsha City,
Hunan Province, including Fullsun International Financial Centre,
Qianlong Royal Family Phases 2 and 3, Qianlong International Phase
2 and Xingru Jincheng Phase 3, have gradually entered into
completion stage and are expected to generate additional revenue to
the Group. Moreover, the Group holds a number of properties
located in Changsha City, Hunan Province, Ningde City, Fujian
Province and Hong Kong, respectively, which will continue to
generate income to the Group.

Looking ahead, the Group will focus on implementing three
strategies: (1) integrate the development of residential and
commercial properties; (2) develop business in first- and second-tier
cities in the city circles at an equal pace; (3) focus on the
characteristics of first-, second-, third- and fourth-tier cities at the
same time and adopt a balanced model featuring a quick turnover
plus profit to formulate urban development plans and structures and
maximize efficiency.

As for products, the Group will construct a concrete strategic
development model based on the life perspective of combining
“Technology and Finance, Pan-Education, and Pan-Health” and the
corporate philosophy of “Build for You”. The Group is committed to
enhance efficiency of and add values to its “Five-Fortune” product
series to establish a standardized system of “Technology and
Finance for the General Public”’, which aims at different age groups
and consumer groups and serving an all-age smart community with
its pan-education and pan-health management service system.

Based on its excellent reputation and brand awareness, these clear
business strategies will enhance the Group’s overall competitiveness,
expand its market share and improve overall profitability, thus
generating greater returns for shareholders of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 March 2018, total restricted bank deposits and bank
balances and cash amounted to approximately RMB560,503,000 (31
March 2017: RMB389,274,000).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had total bank and other
borrowings of approximately RMB2,226,326,000 (31 March 2017:
RMB1,536,286,000) of which approximately RMB1,657,667,000
were repayable on demand or within one year; approximately
RMB323,476,000 were repayable in the second year; approximately
RMB245,183,000 were repayable in the third to fifth year, inclusive
the Group’s borrowings carried interest at fixed or floating interest
rates. The Group’s total bank and other borrowings divided by total
assets as at 31 March 2018 was 38.0% (31 March 2017: 54.2%).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had carrying amounts of convertible
bonds and its derivative components of approximately
RMB1,097,736,000 (31 March 2017: Nil). The carrying amounts of
convertible bonds and its derivative components divided by total
assets as at 31 March 2018 was 18.7% (31 March 2017: Nil).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMB4,566,069,000 (31 March 2017: RMB2,822,886,000) and
current liabilities of approximately RMB3,886,397,000 (31 March
2017: RMB1,234,707,000).

The net assets of the Group as at 31 March 2018 was approximately
RMB288,565,000. Subsequent to the Year, convertible bonds with
principal amounted HK$170,000,000 were converted into
772,727,271 conversion shares in aggregate. Such conversion
shares were issued and allotted on 7 May 2018, 8 May 2018 and 1
June 2018, respectively. The principal of the convertible bonds
outstanding up to the date of this Annual Report is HK$30,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB24,000,000). As a result, the
carrying amount of the outstanding convertible bonds together with
its derivative components were decreased from approximately
RMB1,097,736,000 as at 31 March 2018 to approximately
RMB134,086,000 as at 1 June 2018 (as assessed by an
independence valuer), the difference between the carrying amounts
is expected to be credited to the total equity of the Group in relation
to the abovementioned conversion and the net assets of the Group
is expected to increase accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B AT

The Group’s principal business operations and investments are in
the PRC and Hong Kong. All outstanding balances of its loans are
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The Group is
exposed to fluctuations in the foreign exchange rates of the Renminbi
and the Hong Kong dollars, but does not have any instruments to
hedge its exposure to foreign exchange rates as it considers the
potential exposure to foreign exchange rate risks is limited. The
Group nonetheless closely monitors the fluctuations in exchange
rates and will take appropriate actions to reduce the exchange rate
exposure.

The Group’s business, financial conditions or results of operations
are affected by a number of key risks and uncertainties outlined
below. There may be other risks or uncertainties, including those
which are not known to the Group or which the Group currently
deems to be immaterial but may affect the Group in future.

A majority of the Group’s assets are located in, and a majority of the
Group’s revenue is derived from PRC. As a result, the Group is
subject to extensive government regulations in most aspects of its
operations and is highly susceptible to changes in the regulatory
environment in the PRC. Those regulations may have a significant
impact on the Group’s business, operating results and financial
condition.

The Group’s business is also exposure to market risk (including
interest rate and foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
An analysis of the Group’s financial risk management is provided in
note 36(b) to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual
Report.

Details of pledge of assets and contingent liabilities of the Group are
set out in notes 37 and 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

The number of issued ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
as at 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 were 1,321,682,525 and
10,464,022,525 shares respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 20 October 2017, the Company and the placing agent (the
“Placing Agent”) entered into the placing agreement (the “Placing
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Placing Agent conditionally
agreed to place (i) an aggregate of 2,727,280,000 placing shares at
HK$0.22 per Share (the “Placing Shares”), on a best effort basis, to
not less than six share placees (“Share Placees”); and (i) convertible
bonds of aggregate principal amount of not more than
HK$200,000,000 (the “CB”) at an initial price of HK$0.22 per
conversion share (subject to adjustments) on a best effort basis to
CB placees (“CB Placees”), under the specific mandate. The placing
price of the Placing Shares and the initial conversion price of the CB
of HK$0.22 were approximately 82.11% discount to the closing price
of the Shares of HK$1.23 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 20 October 2017.

On 1 December 2017, 2,727,280,000 Placing Shares were allotted
and issued by the Company to the Share Placees, the net proceeds
from the Share Placing was approximately RMB480,002,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$594,002,000) or at net price of
approximately HK$0.218 per shares. On 1 December 2017, CB with
principal amount of HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB169,353,000) at the rate of 9% per annum were issued to the
CB Placees. The net proceeds from the issued CB was
approximately RMB168,506,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$199,000,000).

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiries, the Placing Agent, Share
Placees and CB Placees and its/their ultimate beneficial owners were
independent third parties to the Company and its connected
persons.

On 1 December 2017, the Company allotted and issued
6,415,060,000 Shares (the “Consideration Shares”) and paid a cash
consideration of HK$100,000,000 to Tongda Enterprises Limited
(“Tongda”) for acquiring the entire equity interest of Vivalink Limited
(the “VSA”) pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement dated 14
April 2015 (as amended and supplemented by supplemental
agreements thereafter) entered into between the Company and
Tongda in relation to the VSA.

Details for the Share Placing, CB Placing, the VSA and issue of
Consideration Shares were set out in the circular of the Company
dated 27 October 2017 and announcement of the Company dated 1
December 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI HEST

The total net proceeds from Share Placing, CB Placing, UR Disposal BHEEESE  AJRRESFIEEEE URHES
and Alfreda Disposal as completed on 1 December 2017 were R Afreda HEFER _T—+F+-H—H%
approximately RMB692,960,000 (equivalent to approximately X BEFATERIEEZEY A AR 692,960,000
HK$866,200,000). Below is an analysis for the status of the use of 7t (FB & R 49 866,200,000/ 7T ) » N AFAN &

proceeds for the Year and up to the date of this Report: HENREBHSRERRR T Z T
Intended use as disclosed in the AATBBA=ZE—+tF Used up to
circular of the Company dated +HA=++tHZ Total net Total net the date of
27 October 2017 BRAKECRERRE proceed proceeds this Report
BB BB EELREEH
AIRBEE RIRBE 28A
HK$'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Payment for the VSA EBREFENRESIR
Investment in new property development &R EFEHREIER ()
projects in Changsha (note)

Repayment for borrowings EEEE

General working capital —REEES

Total fBEt

Note: Proceeds spent on investment in new property development projects in M5E -

Chansha included (j) the total cash consideration of RMB150,000,000 paid
for the acquisition of 51% equity interest in Hunan Xingru Cheng Property
Development Co., Limited (“Hunan Xingru”); (ii) cash consideration of
RMB120,000,000 paid for the acquisition of 40% equity interest in Hunan
Zhenghao Property Development Co., Limited (“Hunan Zhenghao); and (iii)
partial settlement to the total cash consideration of RMB156,881,500 paid
for the acquisition of 34% equity interest in Ningde Bisheng Property
Development Co., Ltd. (“Ningde Bisheng”) (subsequent to the Year before
the date of this Report).

TAET AREFT ARETT

100,000 80,000 (80,000)
450,000 360,000 (360,000)
250,000 200,000 (200,000)

66,200 52,960 (52,960)
866,200 692,960 (692,960)

TERDIERETEE B4F () 3L UE R B0
EHEREAR AR (HREEL])51% T
438 & R B AR 150,000,000 7T ¢ (i) 7k 4k 88 4 =8
EREEZRAR QG ([HEIESR])40% IR HE AT
NIREHREB AR 120,000,000 7 : K (iii) &1 B 5
RUNBEETEREHEREERAR ([EER
R 1) 34% BRAE AT IR & KB AR 156,881,500
TT(RANFEERERANRER) o

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Changes for the Year” BRAFERH [ ANFHEE | —EMEEEIN - KNF
in this Annual Report, other acquisitions and investments during the EEMWERIEERENT

Year are disclosed below:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 7 February 2018, Hunan Fullsun Group Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Fullsun
Group”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
Changsha Hongya Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Changsha
Hongya”) entered into equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which
Hunan Fullsun Group acquired 40% equity interest in Hunan
Zhenghao, a company established in the PRC with limited liability, at
a cash consideration of RMB120,000,000. The principal asset of
Hunan Zhenghao is the property project of Kela Meili Shanzhuang
consists of 3 phases located in Changsha. Hunan Zhenghao is
accounted as an investment in associate of the Group.

Details of the transaction were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 7 February 2018.

On 12 February 2018 and 14 March 2018, Hunan Fullsun Group and
Changsha Qiantai Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Changsha
Qiantai”) entered into equity transfer agreements respectively,
pursuant to which Hunan Fullsun Group acquired 51% equity interest
in Hunan Xingru, a company established in the PRC with limited
liability, at a total cash consideration of RMB150,000,000. The
remaining 49% equity interest of Hunan Xingru is held by Daye Trust
Co., Limited (“Daye Trust”), a state controlled company established
in the PRC with limited liability, a connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level. The principal asset of Huanan Xingru is the
property project of Hunan Xingru Jincheng consist of 3 phases
located in Changsha.

Pursuant to the Financing Arrangement dated 26 November 2016 (as
set out in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
in the Report of the Directors), Daye Trust holds the 49% equity
interest in Hunan Xingru as collateral to secure the repayment
obligation for the loans owed by Hunan Xingru to Daye Trust. On 14
March 2018, the Group, Changsha Qiantai, Daye Trust and Hunan
Xingru entered into an agreement, pursuant to which, all the parties
agree that after repayment obligations of Hunan Xingru under the
financing arrangement are settled in full, Daye Trust shall release and
transfer the 49% equity interest in Hunan Xingru to Hunan Fullsun
Group. Hunan Fullsun Group can obtain control over Hunan Xingru
from the date of the acquisition and under the accounting policy of
the Group, Hunan Xingru is considered as the wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

Details of the transactions were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 12 February 2018, 14 March 2018 and 28 March
2018.

BN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B AT

On 16 March 2018, Giant Astute Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Delano Hills Limited and, Ms. Park Gi Youn
(collectively known as the “Sellers”) and Easyknit International
Holdings Limited, the Sellers’ guarantor entered into sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which Giant Astute Limited agreed
to acquire the 100% equity interest in Gold Asset Investment Limited
(“Gold Asset”), a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong, and
the 100% equity interest in Wise Think Global Limited (“Wise Think”),
a limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”), at a total initial cash consideration of HK$920,000,000
(equivalent to RMB 736,000,000) (subject to adjustments as defined
in the sale and purchase agreement). Gold Asset and Wise Think
own a residential property project located at La Salle Road, Ho Man
Tin, Kowloon, Hong Kong which is held by Gold Asset and Wise
Think as to 75% and 25% respectively.

The residential property project will be developed into a 17-storey
residential block over one basement floor with saleable area of
approximately 3,048 sg.m. in total. It is proposed to comprise 78
residential units, 1 duplex unit, club house facilities and car parking
spaces. The property project is currently under development and the
construction work has been substantially completed as at the date of
this Annual Report. The acquisition has not been completed on 31
March 2018 and the completion is conditional upon and subject to
certain conditions including but not limited to the grant of the
occupation permit and the certificate compliance and by the end of
September 2018 (or otherwise as stated in the sales and purchase
agreement). A refundable deposit of HK$92,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB73,555,000) has been paid to the Sellers on 31 March 2018.

Details of the transactions were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 16 March 2018.

On 25 March 2018, Splendor Keen Limited (“Splendor Keen”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Exquisite Ardent Limited
(“Exquisite Ardent”), Best Catch Ventures Limited (“Best Catch”),
Mark Well Investment Limited (“Mark Well”) and Wisdom King
Investments Limited (“Wisdom King”) (being independent third
parties), entered into a deed of novation, pursuant to which Exquisite
Ardent agreed to novate and Splendor Keen agreed to assume
Exquisite Ardent’s all the rights and obligations under the sale and
purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition by Exquisite Ardent
of the entire issued capital of Stardust King Group Limited, Gleaming
Sun Investments Limited, Charming Way Ventures Limited,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Auspicious Time Global Limited, Pleasant View Group Limited and
Obvious Bliss Investments Limited which were incorporated in the
BVI with limited liabilities (collectively the “Target Companies”) held
by Best Catch. Mark Well and Wisdom King were the guarantors of
Best Catch. The principal assets held by the Target Companies are
the property of 41/F, 43/F, 45/F, 47/F and 49/F floors, 16 car
parking spaces and 3 external signage areas of Enterprise Square
Three situated at No. 39 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
and were held by the subsidiaries of the Target Companies. The
consideration for such acquisition including acquisition related costs
was HK$1,343,260,000 (equivalent to RMB1,073,604,000). The
Group intended to hold the properties for office use and the
remaining units are used for generating rental income and capital
appreciation purpose. The acquisition was completed on 26 March
2018.

Details of the transaction were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 25 March 2018 and 26 March 2018.

The capital commitment of the Group as at 31 March 2018 were set
out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had approximately 92 employees
(including Directors). For the Year, the total staff costs including the
Directors’ emoluments was approximately RMB17,498,000.
Remuneration of employees is determined by reference to the
market terms and commensurate with the level of pay for similar
positions within the industry. Discretionary year-end bonuses are
payable to employees based on individual performance. The Group
provides benefits in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations including the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme of Hong
Kong. The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
government of the PRC.

Details of the events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events including (i) subscription of the registered capital of Fujian
Qianlong Haisheng Investment Co., Ltd.; (i) the acquisition of 34%
equity interest in Ningde Bisheng; and (iii) the conversion of the
convertible bonds issued under specific mandate on 1 December
2017. Details are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Fullsun International Holdings
Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) herein presents their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2018 (the
“Year”).

By a special resolution passed on 20 November 2017, the name of
the Company was changed from “U-RIGHT International Holdings
Limited” to “Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited” and
adopted the Chinese Name 1& & B B 15 iz & Bl B R 2~ 7] as the
secondary name of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
and principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries were wholesale and retail of
fashion garments, trading of construction materials and property
investment before 1 December 2017. Upon the completion of the
acquisition of Vivalink Limited by the Company (the “VSA”) on 1
December 2017, the principal activities of the Group have been
changed to the development and sale of properties and property
investment. Since the completion of the VSA, the Group classified
the wholesale and retail of fashion garments, trading of construction
materials as discontinuing operations of the Group. Save as
aforesaid, there was no other significant change to the Group’s
principal activities during the Year.

The results of the Group and the cash flows of the Group for the
Year and the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2018 are
set out in the consolidated financial statement on pages 95 to 102 of
this Annual Report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Year.

A discussion of the business review of the Group is set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
Annual Report.
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The principal properties owned by the Group as at 31 March 2018
are set out in the section headed “Principal Properties” on pages 5
to 6 of this Annual Report.

Details of the movements of the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of bank loans and other loans of the Group as at 31 March
2018 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details relating to the interest capitalised by the Group during the
Year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movements during the Year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the movements of reserves during the Year are set out in
note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2018, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution (2017: Nil).

During the Year, the Group made donations for charitable purposes
in an aggregate amount of approximately RMB20,000 (2017:
approximately RMB50,400).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHE

During the Year, the five largest customers of the Group together
accounted for approximately 43.1%, with the largest customer
accounted for approximately 35.6% of the Group’s total revenue
(including continuing operations and discontinued operation). The
five largest suppliers of the Group together accounted for
approximately 33.4%, with the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 22.3% of the Group’s total purchases during the Year.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, at no time during the Year
did a director, an associate of a director or a shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in any of the
Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

There is no provision for the exercise of any pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Bye-laws, or there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

Details of the events after the reporting period of the Group are set
out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial periods is set out on pages 211 to
212 of this Annual Report.
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The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report were:

Mr. PAN Weiming (Chairman)*
Mr. PAN Jungang *

Ms. CHEN Weihong*

Mr. LI Jinrong*

Mr. TANG Kwok Hung’

Ms. WU Jihong *

Mr. WU Yang

Mr. NG Cheuk Fan, Keith "
Mr. PAN Haoran 2

Mr. MAK Ka Wing, Patrick

Mr. YANG Xiaoping *

Mr. YUEN Chee Lap, Carl *

Dr. CHEUNG Wai Bun, Charles J.P.
Mr. CHAN Chi Yuen "

Mr. XIE Tom "

appointed on 1 December 2017

resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 1 December 2017
appointed on 14 December 2017

resigned on 1 December 2017

appointed on 1 December 2017 and resigned on 4 June 2018

> > % o %

Pursuant to Bye-law 83, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
Members after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

In accordance with Bye-law 83, Ms. WU Jihong, Mr. WU Yang and
Dr. CHEUNG Wai Bun, Charles J.P. shall retire from office and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick (“Mr. Mak”), has notified
the Company that he would like to devote more time to his other
business commitments and engagements. For this reason, he will
voluntarily retire and will not offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The Company is now identifying
suitable director(s) to fill the vacancy following the retirement of Mr.
Mak.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 37 to 46 of
this Annual Report.

Other than as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions”, no transactions, arrangements or contract
of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company, its ultimate holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company or a supervisor or his/her connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”, at no time during the Year was the Company or its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, there was or is
permitted indemnity provision (within the meaning in Section 469 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong))
in the articles of association of the Company being in force. The
Company has maintained directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover certain legal
actions brought against its directors and officers arising out of
corporate activities.

On 24 October 2017, Mr. Pan Weiming (“Mr. Pan”) (being an
executive Director and beneficial owner of the controlling shareholder
of the Company) and Tongda Enterprises Limited (“Tongda”) (the
controlling shareholder of the Company) entered into the deed of
non-competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) in favour of the
Company.
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Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, among other things, Mr.
Pan and Tongda will not, and will procure that his/its close
associates (other than any members of the Group) not to, following
the completion of VSA and during the Non-Compete Period (as
defined in the circular of the Company dated 27 October 2017),
other than the Excluded Projects (as defined in the circular of the
Company dated 27 October 2017), directly or indirectly, either on its/
his own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person,
firm or company, own, invest in, carry on, participate in, develop,
operate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each
case whether as a shareholder, director, partner, agent, employee,
or otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any activity
or business which is or may be in competition, directly or indirectly,
with the existing principal business of the Group. Details of the Deed
of Non-competition are set out in the section headed “Relationship
with the controlling shareholders — 3. Non-competition Undertakings
in the circular of the Company dated 27 October 2017.

Mr. Pan and Tongda confirmed to the Company that each of them
has complied with his/its undertakings under the Deed of Non-
competition and the disclosure of details of his/its compliance with
and the enforcement of the non-competition undertakings under the
Deed of Non-competition is consistent with the relevant requirements
under the Listing Rules.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, save as disclosed
above, none of the Directors, nor their respective close associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) is considered to have any interest in
a business apart from the business operated by the Group which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or in existence during the Year.
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The VSA completed on 1 December 2017 as disclosed in the section
headed “Changes for the Year” constituted a connected transaction
for the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.28 of the Listing Rules.
Further details of the VSA were set out in the circular of the Company
dated 27 October 2017.

Pursuant to requirements of the Listing Rules, the continuing
connected transactions conducted by the Group during the Year are
disclosed below. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
with respect to the continuing connected transactions entered into
by the Group during the Year.

The Group is engaged in property development in the PRC and
requires external funding in its business operations. In addition to
bank loans, the Group has obtained other financing with repurchase
obligation from lenders which are generally trust companies or other
financial institutions in the PRC. Such other financing with repurchase
obligation is an alternative source of funds for property developers in
the PRC and are available to borrowers in various forms, including
equity transfers, capital injections, equity acquisition, shareholder
loans, or secured entrusted loans (“Financing Arrangements”).

After the completion of the VSA (the “Completion”), Hunan Fullsun
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Fullsun”) became an
indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. As disclosed
in the circular dated 27 October 2017, Daye Trust holds legal title to
49% equity interest in Hunan Fullsun as collateral to secure the
repayment obligation for the loans owed by Hunan Fullsun to Daye
Trust. Subsequently on 28 March 2018, the Group acquired in
aggregate of 51% equity interest in Hunan Xing Ru Cheng Property
Development Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Xingru”), Daye Trust holds the legal
title of 49% equity interest in Hunan Xingru as collateral to secure the
repayment obligation for the loans owed by Hunan Xingru to Daye
Trust. Daye Trust is regarded as a connected person of the
Company at the subsidiary level upon Completion pursuant to, and
solely in relation to, the requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As such, any transaction entered into between the
Group and Daye Trust will constitute a connected transaction for the
Company after the Completion and is subject to the applicable
reporting, announcement and annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval (where applicable) requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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During the Year, the Group had two Financing Arrangements with
repurchase obligation involved transfer of equity interest and pledge
of the remaining equity interest in two subsidiaries namely, Hunan
Fullsun and Hunan Xingru, to Daye Trust to fund the property
development projects in each of the above subsidiaries. After
repayment obligations under each of the Financing Arrangement
individually are settled in full, Daye Trust shall release and transfer the
49% equity interest in each of the above subsidiaries to the Group.
Details of the continuing connected transactions are set out below:
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Maximum Interest
Relevant period to the Group available accrued
during the Year regarding as financing Balance during
continuing connected provided asat the
Date of relevant transactions Securities provided to Interest rate by Daye 31 March Relevant
agreement and maturity Nature (“Relevant Period”) Daye Trust (per annum) Trust 2018 Period
I
BAAKERFRNSE AEER  ZB-N\EF
BERS2EBEH Rtz ZA=t-B REBEH
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1 2016 Daye Trust Financing Arrangement Financing 1 December 2017 to Pledge of 51% equity interest in Hunan 9% for first year; RMB 220,005 9,839
dated 22 December 2016 (maturity at 21 arangement 31 March 2018 Fullsun; and pledged the land use rights of ~ and 10% for the 500,000,000
December 2018 and renewable with the four parcels of land located in Hunan Province  second year was provided
consent of Daye Trust) together with the buildings and constructions to Hunan
erected thereon Fullsun
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Detalls of the transactions were set out in the circular of the Company dated 27 October 2017 and the announcement of the Company dated 1 December 2017.
ReHAFHRARRREA T F T AT LAZBRRARARERA - T—LFT-A—-HZAM -
2 Financing Arrangement dated 26 November  Financing 28 March 2018 to Pledged the land use rights of the lands of 8.5% for first year; RVB 684,313 676
2016 (maturity at 25 November 2018) arrangement 31 March 2018 Hunan Xingru with a total area of and 10% for the 690,000,000
approximately 66,000 square metres located  second year was provided
in Hunan Province to Hunan
Xingru
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Equity pledge agreement dated 28 March ~ Pledge of 28 March 2018 to Pledge of 51% equity interest in Hunan Xingru - - - - -
2018 Assets 31 March 2018
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Detalls of the transactions were set out in the announcements of the Company dated 12 February 2018, 14 March 2018 and 28 March 2018,
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The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors)
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms; and

(8) according to the agreements governing them on terms which
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The balance with Fujian Liujian Group Co., Ltd. as at 31 March 2018
and the guarantee as provided by Mr. Pan Weiming, Fusheng Group
Co., Ltd. and Tongda as at 31 March 2018, as disclosed in notes
43(b) and 43(e) to the consolidated financial statements, constituted
continuing connected transactions and are fully exempted under
14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

Save for the transactions disclosed above, all applicable percentage
ratios of annual caps of the other continuing connected transactions
which took place during the Year are lower than 0.1% and are
therefore fully exempted from independent shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

B (BREMIFNTES) CEH LAHERE
X5 WHERZEXSTY

(1) RARE-REAERHEES
o

BERGR - &

R
Sy
=
)
-+
o
v
Im
2
o>
S
ol
=
i

RABEEBEZHAE - EREB G AT
(BB ERER R ERSE 30005%) 2 [EL
MBEERBARBHUIINZERER ] X2R
(EBHA)F 74058 [N EF B LA At
FEBER S ZRBEKME ] AAKEREH
BRXHELER ZHOMCRELTRAE
14A56 R A BB AR E Dl AR ER AR ER
HBERRAERERZBREBR AT - KARA]
B 2% R 1 Bl AR 2 B FR ©

ANLR A B IS SRR M #£43(b) 2 43(e) FT & » 12
—E-)\FZA=Zt+—HEREAEEEEARA
RIZEHRUNBEERLE  BREEERAT R
BERA T N\E=A=+—BFTEHERER
SFERER S 0 RIE ETRAIZE 14A00 K ERF 2
H#R -

B EXPEER S FABREEAMSERE
RPZFELRZAAEMAA DL EHER
0.1% @ B EEE R ETH L RAE - FE
ERNMFIERERE -



As at 31 March 2018, the following Directors or chief executives of
the Company or his associates had interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Name of director/

chief executive Capacity Nature of interests
EE THABHE 5% EEtE
Mr. Pan Weiming Beneficial Owner Personal interest
EEALAE E=lAA (BN £
Interest of controlled Corporate interest
corporation

REZGEE s DEEE

Ms. Chen Weihong Interest of spouse Family interest
BRIZAL L+ FiB s RIEER
Notes:

1. (L) represents long position in Shares/underlying Shares.

2. 6,415,060,000 Shares are owned by Tongda Enterprises Limited (“Tongda”)
which is wholly owned by Mr. Pan Weiming, an executive Director of the
Company. As such, Mr. Pan Weiming is deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares held by Tongda.

3. Ms. Chen Weihong, an executive Director of the Company, being the
spouse of Mr. Pan Weiming, is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares held by Mr. Pan Weiming and Tongda.

4, The total number of 10,464,022,525 Shares in issue as at 31 March 2018
has been used for the calculation of the approximate percentage.
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(Note 1) Total (Note 4)
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(Note 2)
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As at 31 March 2018, the following persons (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
of substantial shareholders required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange as follows:

Name Capacity

=L 5%

Tongda Enterprises Limited Beneficial Owner

BECEFRAA EmEBA
Notes:
1. (L) represents long position in Shares/underlying Shares.

2. The total number of 10,464,022,525 Shares in issue as at 31 March 2018
has been used for the calculation of the approximate percentage.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 March
2018.

On 1 December 2017, convertible bonds (“CB”) with principal
amount of HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to RMB169,353,000) at the
rate of 9% per annum were issued to the CB placees. The net
proceeds from the issued CB was approximately HK$199,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB168,506,000).

Details of the CB issued during the Year and its use of proceeds are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements in this
Annual Report and section headed “Use of Proceeds” of the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

RZB-NF=ZA=1+—8" TIAL(E=H
ARBEBITHABRINRAR B R S AE R
Py R A RIEE 5 N B IRGIFEXVERSE 2 M E
BN MEXARARBRE 2 BHZIRR - KA
FIARRBIRBEE S LA EIEPIE I IHRATHE
EZTEBRREBRMEDIRR  HARMT
AHAERNRF LB EEFARINT

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

capital
Total (Note 2)
HAERBEBITREZ
BHABEDL
#at (FfEE2)
6,415,060,000(L) 61.31%
(Note 1)
(PtEE 1)

Bt 5k :
1. (LB, BRI 2 B -

2. RZE—NFZAZ+—HEBTRHLER
10,464,022,525 IRE AT EBIA B S L ©

B EXHEEN RZE-N\F=A=+—81"
ARBATHBERRODIARBREEAF - H
BRU SRR E 5 M E 1R 5 336 1R A R AR
FTHREZELM 2 EMEMAREERSORE

RZZE—tF+=F—8  &£%/4200,000,000
7T (FHE R AR 169,353,000 7T ) B 1% 4 5| K
QEF B ZAMBRES([AIRES)BE#ITT
AR ESABLA - BEITARBRES ZATER
T8 /F 58 49 4199,000,0008 T (HERHARE
168,506,000 7T) °

FREBTAIBRBRESMEMSRERR ZFE
D RIBNAFE RIS M RRM T 29 R EEEH
WwEDITA [P AR®R] —&6



Details of the share option scheme were set out in the paragraph
headed “H. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IX Statutory and
general information to the circular of the Company dated 27 October
2017 and note 40 to the consolidated financial statements in this
Annual Report.

The total number of share option that could be granted was
132,168,252 shares at par value of HK$0.01 each, representing
approximately 1.18% of the total issued shares of the Company at
the date of this Annual Report.

The Company understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate
and long-term goals. The management will continue to develop
efficient communication platform to enhance relationships with
individual and corporate customers and suppliers.

Employees of the Group are selected, remunerated and promoted
on the basis of their merit, qualifications, competence and
contribution to the Group. The Company also has adopted the Share
Option Scheme as a long-term incentive scheme of the Group.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Directors’ remunerations,
bonuses and other compensation are determined by the
Remuneration Committee with reference to the Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and the Group’s performance and results.

Details of the retirement benefit plans of the Group are set out in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual
Report.

Full details on the Company’s environmental policies and
performance are set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” in this Annual Report.

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with any relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact
onit.
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EETHE

Full details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual Report.

The Audit Committee of the Company was established with written
terms of reference which are in line with the CG Code (as defined in
the Corporate Governance Report) and comprises four independent
non-executive Directors as at 31 March 2018.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the
company and the external auditor the Group’s annual results for the
Year, and was of the opinion that the preparation of such results are
in compliance with the relevant accounting standards, rules and
regulations and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s issued share capital were held by members of the public
as at the date of this report as required under the Listing Rules.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI ANDA”) resigned as
the auditors of the Company with effect from 5 January 2018 and
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) has been appointed as the
auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of ZHONGHUI ANDA.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018 have been audited by Deloitte who will retire
and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

PAN Weiming
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 15 June 2018
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Mr. PAN Weiming (“Mr. Pan”),
aged 53, is the executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Pan founded the Hunan Fullsun
Group, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, in
2006 and he is responsible for the
overall strategic planning,
corporate development,
investment, overall operations and
management of Hunan Fullsun
Group since 2006. Mr. Pan has
been a director of Vivalink Limited
since 12 December 2014. Prior to
the establishment of Hunan Fullsun Group in 2006, Mr. Pan has been
the executive director of Guangzhou Yunxing Real Estate Development
Group Company Ltd (“Guangzhou Yunxing”), a real estate and
property developer in the PRC, since March 1993, where he is
responsible for overall management of Guangzhou Yunxing. He has
been the president of Fujian Fusheng Real Estate Development
Company Ltd (“Fujian Fusheng”), a real estate developer in the PRC,
since April 2004 and he has also been the president of Fusheng Group
Co., Ltd. (“Fusheng Group”), a real estate developer in the PRC,since
May 2007, where he is responsible for overall management,
investment and operation management of both companies.

He is currently:

° Honorary chairman of Fujian Institute of Branding Economic
Development since 2009

° Vice chairman of Fuzhou Real Estate Association since 2010

o Standing director of China Real Estate Association since 2010

o Chairman of Guangdong Chamber of Commerce In Fujian
since 2010

° Vice Chairman of Fujian Enterprises and Entrepreneurs
Confederation since 2012

o Vice chairman of Fujian Real Estate Association since 2014

Mr. Pan was a Deputy to the Peoples Congress of Guangzhou City
from 2012 to January 2017.

Mr. Pan obtained a diploma in auditing from Guangzhou Open
University in the PRC in July 1988. Mr. Pan obtained an Intermediate
Economist certificate from the Professional Title Reform Office of
Zhangzhou City in December 2011. Mr. Pan is the spouse of
Ms. Chen Weihong and is the father of Mr. Pan Haoran, Mr. Pan is
the brother of Mr. Pan Jungang.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
sEZNEH

B ABEBREFSE

Mr. PAN Jungang (“Mr. Pan
JG”), aged 48, is an executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. Pan JG joined Hunan Weilong
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(*Hunan Weilong”), a subsidiary of
the Group in May 2009 as a
general manager and was
subsequently appointed as an
executive director and was
redesignated as a chairman of
Hunan Weilong in April 2011 and
May 2011, respectively, where he was responsible for the overall
management of Hunan Weilong. He has been the chairman and
general manager of Hunan Fullsun since May 2011, where he is
responsible for the overall management of Hunan Fullsun. He has
been the executive director of Hunan Fullsun Group since October
2011, where he is mainly responsible for the overall management of
Hunan Fullsun Group.

Mr. Pan JG was the deputy general manager of Guangzhou Yunxing,
a real estate developer in the PRC, from March 2006 to May 2007,
where he was mainly responsible for the project management and
sales management. Mr. Pan JG was the vice president and chief
executive officer of Fusheng Group, a real estate developer in the
PRC, from May 2007 to October 2015 where he was mainly
responsible for project development, design and engineering
management of Fusheng Group.

Mr. Pan JG is currently:

° Executive President of Guangdong Chamber Of Commerce In
Fujian since 2010

° Deputy to the Changsha Municipal People’s Congress since
2012

° Vice president of Hunan Industry and Commerce Confederation
since 2012

° Vice president of Hunan Enterprises Confederation since 2012
° Vice president of Hunan Entrepreneurs Association since 2012

o Standing Committee member of Changsha Federation of
Industry & Commerce
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Pan JG obtained a bachelor’s degree in Viethamese Studies
from People’s Liberation Army University of Foreign Languages in the
PRC in July 1994. He further completed the Real Estate Executives
Program from Tsinghua University School of Continuing Education in
October 2010. And he was awarded the title of the senior economist
by Hunan Provincial Human Resource & Social Security Department
in 2016, Mr. Pan JG is the brother of Mr. Pan.

Ms. CHEN Weihong (“Ms.
Chen”), aged 50, is an executive
Director of the Company. From
July 2007 to April 2011, Ms. Chen
was an executive director of
Hunan Weilong and was
redesignated as a director for the
period between May 2011 and
August 2013. She was mainly
responsible for the overall
management of Hunan Weilong.
Ms. Chen has been the general
manager of Guangzhou Yunxing,
a real estate developer in the PRC since March 1993, where she is
mainly responsible for the daily operation of Guangzhou Yunxing.
From April 2004 to May 2007, she was the vice president of Fujian
Fusheng, a real estate developer in the PRC, where she was mainly
responsible for the daily operation of Fujian Fusheng. She has also
been the vice president of Fusheng Group, a real estate developer in
the PRC, since May 2007, where she is mainly responsible for the
operation management and commercial property management of
Fusheng Group.

Ms. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from the Open
University of China in the PRC in April 2004. Ms. Chen further
completed the Wharton & E-House (China) Real Estate Executive
Program with the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania
in April 2015. Ms. Chen obtained Intermediate Accountant certificate
conferred by Minister of Finance of People’s Republic of China in
May 2000. Ms. Chen is the spouse of Mr. Pan and is the mother of
Mr. Pan Haoran. Ms Chen is the sister in law of Ms. Wu Jihong.
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EENSREEABBEFS

Mr. LI Jinrong (“Mr. Li”), aged
43, is an executive Director of the
Company. He has extensive
working experience in engineering
management and cost
management in real estate
industry. Mr. Li joined Hunan
Fullsun Group since June 2008.
He was the general manager of
Hunan Fullsun Group up to
November 2014 and has been
appointed as a director of Fuzhou
Fullsun Group since May 2015,
where he is mainly responsible for the cost control management of
Fuzhou Fullsun Group.

Prior to joining the Group, from October 2001 to October 2004, Mr.
Li worked as assistant to the general manager at Guangzhou
Yunxing, a real estate developer in the PRC. After that Mr Li joined
Fujian Fusheng and Fusheng Group in November 2004, and resigned
as vice-president in October 2015, where he was mainly responsible
for the cost control management.

Mr. Li has been the vice executive president of Guangdong Chamber
of Commerce in Fujian since 2010. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s
degree in finance and accounting from Renmin University in the PRC
in June 1999. Mr. Li also finished real estate entrepreneurs MBA
course in Sun Yat-sen University in May 2009 and the course for
presidents of real estate development and finance from Peking
University in October 2013, respectively.
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Mr. TANG Kwok Hung (“Mr.
Tang”), aged 51, is an executive
Director of the Company. Mr.
Tang has over 20 years of
experience in the strategic
management, business
development, corporate finance,
and investment management in
garment, retail, real estate
development, hotel, high-tech
business, logistics, international
trade and manufacturing
industries. He was also the
executive director of the Company for the period from 1 February
2010 to 18 September 2013 and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company for the period from 18 September 2014 to 1 December
2018.

Mr. Tang obtained a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from the University of Manchester in the United Kingdom in June
2005 and a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1989. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a member of the Institute of Management Accountants in the United
States of America, a member of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute, and an ordinary member of Hong Kong Institute
of Real Estate Administrators.

Ms. WU Jihong (“Ms. Wu”),
aged 49, is an executive Director
of the Company and she is also
the chief financial officer of the
Company.

Ms. Wu has over 20 years’
experience in the real estate,
properties development and other
businesses. She has been the
director of Fuzhou Fullsun Group
since May 2015, where she is
mainly responsible for the
investment and human resource management of Fuzhou Fullsun
Group. Ms. Wu was a vice president of Fusheng Group from July
2014 to October 2015, where she was mainly responsible for the
internal control, human resource management, legal management
and investment management.
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EENEREEAEBRBEFE

Prior to joining the Fuzhou Fullsun Group, Ms Wu held several senior
positions in various renowned companies operated in PRC from
1997 onward, such as Guangdong Pearl River Investment Co., Ltd.,
Guangdong Pearl River Investment Holdings Group Co., Ltd. and
Guangdong Pearl River Education Investment Co., Ltd..

From June 2011 to April 2014, Ms Wu was an audit committee
member of Beijing Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd..

Ms. Wu obtained a bachelor’s degree in finance from Central
University of Finance and Economics (formerly known as Central
School of Finance) in the PRC in June 1992. Ms. Wu obtained
Accountant certificate conferred by Minister of Finance of People’s
Republic of China in May 1997. Ms. Wu is the sister-in-law of Ms.
Chen.

Mr. WU Yang (“Mr. Wu”), aged
52, is an executive Director of the
Company. He has over 20 years
of experience in commercial
property development, and has
been in senior management
positions for years. He was a
director and president of Fusheng
Group from 6 February 2017 to
14 December 2017.

Mr. Wu was formerly an executive director and subsequently re-
designated as non-executive director of Shanghai Zendai Property
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 755, “Shanghai Zendai”) from 21 January 2009 to 10
June 2014. He was also served as a director of each of the group
companies of Shanghai Zendai.

Mr. Wu was also a president of The Bund Finance Center from
November 2010 to February 2016.

Mr. Wu received his bachelor’s degree in construction from
Shenyang Open University in 1987, and his master’s degree in
industrial economics from Capital University of Economics and
Business in 2001.
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Mr. MAK Ka Wing, Patrick (“Mr. Mak”), aged 53, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from
15 January 2009. He is also the chairman of each of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, and a
member of the Audit Committee. He is a registered solicitor of the
High Court of Hong Kong and Managing Partner of Patrick Mak &
Tse Solicitors. Mr. Mak has over 20 years’ legal experience.

Mr. Mak has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of each of Fresh Express Delivery Holdings Group Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as FU JI Food and Catering Services Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 1175), and Far East Holdings International
Limited (Stock code: 36) since 8 July 2013, and 18 July 2017
respectively.

Mr. Mak was an independent non-executive director of each of Tianli
Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as EYANG Holdings (Group)
Co., Limited) (stock code: 117) from 18 September 2013 to 15 July
2015, Golden Shield Holdings (Industrial) Limited (In Compulsory
Liquidation in Hong Kong) (stock code: 2123) from 6 November
2014 to 11 May 2015, and Convoy Global Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1019) from 9 March 2017 to 7 November 2017 respectively.

Mr. Yuen, aged 44, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 1 December 2017. Mr. Yuen
obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration degree and a Master
of Business Administration degree from University of Houston, United
States in 1997 and 1998 respectively. Mr. Yuen is currently the
financial controller of Courage Investment Group Limited (stock
code: 1145), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(the “SGX-ST”). Mr. Yuen has rich experience in finance and
accounting both in Hong Kong and the United States. Mr. Yuen
commenced his career in the United States and served as chief
accountant and managerial position in several companies between
1998 and 2003. Mr. Yuen joined Courage Investment Group Limited
in 2004 and was appointed as financial controller in May 2006. Mr.
Yuen is in charge of the company’s finance and accounting control,
as well as the company’s reporting, SGX-ST and the Stock
Exchange compliance. Mr. Yuen is currently a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and the Association of Hong Kong
Accountants. Mr. Yuen is an independent non-executive director of
Qianhai Health Holdings Limited (stock code: 911), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. YANG Xiaoping (“Mr. Yang”), aged 65, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 1
December 2017. Mr. Yang has extensive experience in properties
and construction industry. During the period from 2007 to 2015, Mr.
Yang worked as a vice president at ETON Properties Group, a
property company principally engaged in development of hotels and
commercial buildings in Dalian and Xiamen, the PRC, where Mr.
Yang was responsible for the management of the project
development, including management of engineering design, cost
control and marketing. From 1994 to 2007, he has worked as senior
management of Hopson Development Holdings Limited (a PRC
property developer listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code:
754), Tianjin subsidiary Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang Real Estate
Development Limited, and China Overseas Property Group Co., Ltd.,
a leading state-owned property developer in the PRC. Mr. Yang was
in charge of design, project management, engineering management,
cost control and marketing of property projects. From 1969 to 1994,
Mr. Yang worked at the Second Construction Co., Ltd. of China
Construction First Group, during the period from 1978 to 1994, he
worked as the head of the production control division and was
responsible for management of construction.

Mr. Yang graduated from East China University of Science and
Technology (formerly known as Shanghai Institute of Chemical
Engineering) in 1978 majoring in Chemical Engineering. Mr. Yang
attained the qualification of senior engineer accredited by China
State Construction Engineering Corporation in 1994,
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Dr. CHEUNG Wai Bun, Charles J.p. (“Dr. Cheung”), aged 82, has
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect
from 14 December 2017. He has appropriate professional
accounting or related financial management expertise. He is an
independent non-executive director and has been the chairman of
the audit committee since 2006 of Pioneer Global Group Limited
(stock code: 224), an independent non-executive director and has
been the chairman of the audit committee since 2007 of China
Financial International Investments Limited (formerly known as
Sunshine Capital Investments Group Limited) (stock code: 721), an
independent non-executive director of China Taifeng Beddings
Holdings Limited (stock code: 873), an independent non-executive
director, the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member
of the audit committee of Universal Technologies Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1026), a non-executive director of Galaxy Entertainment
Group Limited (Stock Code: 27), an independent non-executive
director and the chairman of the remuneration committee of Jiayuan
International Group Limited (Stock Code: 2768), an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee, and a
member of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of Modern Dental Group Limited (Stock code:3600),
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is
also an independent non-executive director, the chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of the audit committee of Yin
He Holdings Limited (formerly known as Zebra Strategic Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 8260), which is listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of Stock Exchange.

He was an executive Director and chairman of the board of directors
of Roma Group Limited (Stock Code: 8072) from 2 June 2017 to 18
December 2017 and He was formerly chairman and subsequently
co-chairman of the board and an independent non-executive director
of Grand T G Gold Holdings Limited (stock code: 8299) from 17 July
2009 to 23 March 2016.

Dr. Cheung obtained an honorary doctorate degree in business
administration from John Dewey University in the United States in
1984, a master’s degree in business administration and a bachelor
of science degree in accounts and finance from New York University
in the United States in 1962 and 1960 respectively.

Dr. Cheung is currently a non-executive director of the board and the
vice chairman of executive committee of Metropolitan Bank (China)
Ltd., and he was formerly an independent non-executive director
and the director general of the audit committee of China Resources
Bank of Zhuhai Co. Ltd. Dr. Cheung is a member of the Hospital
Governing Committee of Hong Kong Eye Hospital and Kowloon
Hospital and a member of the Regional Advisory Committee of
Kowloon of the Hospital Authority. Dr. Cheung is a council member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and is also the special advisor
to the president of the University of Victoria in Canada.
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Mr. Chan Ming Kei (“Mr. Chan”), aged 35, has been appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 15 January
2018. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and has extensive experiences in accounting,
audit, financial management and company secretarial works. He
holds a Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons) majoring in
Accounting from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He is currently an independent non-executive director of
Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited (stock code: 907), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

From 7 June 2012 to 30 September 2015, Mr. Chan acted as
company secretary and financial controller of Kuangchi Science
Limited (stock code: 439). From 2 October 2015 to 30 December
2015, he acted the chief financial officer, company secretary and
authorised representative of Sino Haijing Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1106), both companies are listed on the Main Board. He also
acted as i) a joint company secretary from 8 September 2016 to 6
November 2016; and i) an executive director, company secretary,
compliance officer and authorised representative from 7 November
2016 to 14 January 2018 of Evershine Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8022), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange.
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Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) recognises the
importance of achieving the highest standard of corporate
governance consistent with the needs and requirements of its
businesses and the best interest of all of its stakeholders, and the
board of directors (the “Board”) is fully committed to doing so. The
Board believes that high standards of corporate governance provide
a framework and solid foundation for the Group to manage business
risks, enhance transparency, achieve high standard of accountability
and protect stakeholders’ interests.

The Group has complied with the code provisions set out in
Appendix 14 (the “CG Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) except for the deviation from the
code provision A.4.1 which is explained below.

According to the code provision A.4.1 as set out in the CG Code,
non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. Two former Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. CHAN Chi Yuen (“Mr. Chan”) and Mr. XIE Tom
(“Mr. Xie”), and one existing Independent Non-Executive Director Mr.
MAK Ka Wing, Patrick (“Mr. Mak”), each of them had not been
appointed for a specific term under previous letter of appointment
but subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”), sufficient
measures have been taken as such to ensure that the Company has
good corporate governance practices. Nevertheless, following the
resignation of Mr. Chan and Mr. Xie on 1 December 2017, and the
renewal of letter of appointment with Mr. Mak for a term of three
years commencing from 1 December 2017, the Company has
complied with all code provisions as set out in the CG Code and,
where appropriate, the applicable recommended best practices of
the CG Code.

Save as disclosed above, in the opinion of the Directors, the Company
has complied with all code provisions as set out in the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2018 and, where appropriate,
the applicable recommended best practices of the CG Code.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. All Directors
have confirmed, upon specific enquiries made by the Company, that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes leadership and control of the Company and oversee
the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk
management and performances. The directors take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company. Some functions
including, inter alia, monitor and approval of material transactions,
matters involving conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or
director(s) of the Company, the approval of the interim and annual
results, other disclosures to the public or regulators and the internal
control system are reserved by the Board and the decisions relating
to such matters shall be subject to the decision of the Board. Matters
not specifically reserved to the Board and necessary for the daily
operations of the Company are delegated to the management under
the supervision of the respective Directors.

As at 31 March 2018, the Board currently comprises eight Executive
Directors, namely Mr. PAN Weiming (Chairman), Mr. PAN Jungang,
Ms. CHEN Weihong, Mr. PAN Haoran, Mr. LI Jinrong, Mr. TANG
Kwok Hung, Ms. WU Jihong and Mr. WU Yang and four Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. MAK Ka Wing, Patrick, Mr.
YUEN Chee Lap, Carl, Mr. YANG Xiaoping, Dr. CHEUNG Wai Bun,
Charles J.P. Subsequently on 4 June 2018, Mr. PAN Haoran
resigned as executive Director of the Company.

The biographies of the Directors including their family relationship are
set out in “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 37 to 46 of this annual report.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Company, and to
review and approve the Company’s interim and annual results. All
Directors are given the opportunity to put items on the agenda for
regular Board meetings. All Directors have access to the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) to ensure that
all Board procedures and rules and regulations are followed. Full
minutes of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and
are available for inspection on reasonable notice. During the year,
eleven Board meetings were held and the attendance of each
Director at the Board meetings is set out in the section headed
“Board and Committees Meetings” of this Report.

Any Director may, in furtherance of his duties, take independent
professional advice where necessary at the expense of the
Company. The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
covering the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out the
corporate activities, which has been complied with the CG Code.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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In accordance with Bye-law 83 of the Bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”), a director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

According to Bye-law 84, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years, and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 83, the shareholders of the Company
may by an ordinary resolution remove a director (but without
prejudice to any claim for damages under any such agreement)
before the expiration of his period of office, and may by an ordinary
resolution appoint another person in his stead.

Save and except as disclosed for each of Mr. PAN Weiming and Ms.
CHEN Weihong who beneficially and has the interest due to spouse
respectively, owns 100% in the issued share capital of Tongda
Enterprises Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, and
as disclosed in the “Profile of Directors and Senior Management”,
there are family relationship among Mr. PAN Weiming, Ms. CHEN
Weihong, Mr. PAN Haoran®, Mr. PAN Jungang and Ms. Wu Jihong,
there is no relationship among members of the Board.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the Group are clearly
defined and segregated to ensure independence and proper checks
and balances. The Chairman focuses on the business strategy and
direction of the Company and has executive responsibilities, provides
leadership for the Board and ensures proper and effective functioning
of the Board in discharging of its responsibilities. The CEO is
accountable to the Board for the overall implementation of the
Company’s strategies and the co-ordination of overall business
operations.

There is currently no officer carrying the title of CEO up to the date of
this annual report. In the absence of the CEQ, the duties of the CEO
have been/will continue to be undertaken by other executive
members of the Board, namely Mr. PAN Jungang, Ms. CHEN
Weihong, Mr. LI Jinrong, Mr. TANG Kwok Hung, Ms. WU Jihong and
Mr. WU Yang, therefore, in the opinion of the Directors, the roles of
the Chairman and the CEO have been/will continue to be properly
segregated in the absence of an officer carrying the title of CEQ.

4 resigned as executive Director on 4 June 2018
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The Company has received confirmation of independence from each
of four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. MAK Ka
Wing, Patrick, Mr. YUEN Chee Lap, Carl, Mr. YANG Xiaoping, Dr.
CHEUNG Wai Bun, Charles J.P. in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to A.4.3 of the CG Code, serving to a company more than
nine years could be relevant to the determination of a non-executive
director’s independence. If an independent non-executive director
serves more than 9 years, his further appointment should be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.

Mr. MAK Ka Wing, Patrick (“Mr. Mak”), being an independent non-
executive Director, has served the Company for more than nine
years, and will voluntarily retire at the coming Annual General Meeting
(the “AGM”) and will not seek for re-election.

The Board has also reviewed the independence of all other
independent non-executive Directors and concluded that all of them
are independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.
Furthermore, the Board is not aware of the occurrence of any events
which would cause it to believe that the independence of any of the
independent non-executive Directors has been impaired up to the
date of this report.

Upon appointing a new Director, each new Director receives an
induction package covering business operations, policy and
procedures of the Company as well as the general, statutory and
regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is
sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the
Company encourages the Directors to enrol in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the
Listing Rules, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and corporate
governance practices so that they can continuously improve their
relevant knowledge and skills at the expenses of the Company where
applicable. The Company has also provided reading materials to all
Directors to develop and refresh their professional knowledge.
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All Directors have provided the Company their training records for
the year ended 31 March 2018. During the year ended 31 March
2018, the Directors participated in the continuous professional
developments in relation to regulatory update, the duties and/or
responsibility of the Directors and the business of the Group,
including reading relevant listing rules, the general business or
responsibilities of the directors and other relevant training materials;
and/or attended seminars and/or lectures.

The Group adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to diversify members of the Board.
The Company believes that a diversified perspective can be achieved
through implementation of the Board Diversity Policy. The diversity of
the Board members should be assessed on a diversity of
perspectives including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on objective criteria, merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. The nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”) will review the Board Diversity Policy
on a regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
comprises four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
MAK Ka Wing, Patrick, Mr. YUEN Chee Lap, Carl, Mr. YANG
Xiaoping and Dr. CHEUNG Wai Bun, Charles J.P.. Mr. YUEN Chee
Lap, Carl is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the
Group’s financial information; (i) oversight of the Group’s financial
reporting system, internal control and risk management system; (iii)
make recommendations in relation to the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor; and (iv) review
and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity. In
addition, the Audit Committee discusses matters raised by the
external auditor and regulatory bodies to ensure that appropriate
recommendations are implemented.
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee has
performed its duties, reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company and reviewed the appointment of the
external auditors. The Audit Committee has also reviewed with the
management of the Company the interim results of the Group for the
period ended 30 September 2017 and also with the external auditor
the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018,
and was of the opinion that the preparation of such results was in
compliance with the relevant accounting standards, rules and
regulations and that adequate disclosures have been made.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended 31
March 2018. The attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out in the section “Board and Committees
Meetings” of this Report.

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) comprises four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. MAK Ka Wing, Patrick, Mr. YUEN Chee Lap, Carl, Mr.
YANG Xiaoping and Dr. CHEUNG Wai Bun, Charles J.P.. Mr. MAK
Ka Wing, Patrick is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for all
directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
remuneration policy; (i) make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of individual executive directors, non-
executive directors and senior management; and (iii) review and
approve compensation payable to executive directors and senior
management for any loss or termination of office or appointment.
The Committee is regulated by the terms of reference which follow
closely the requirements of the CG Code and shall be modified and
approved by the Board from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Remuneration Committee
has discussed and reviewed the remuneration policies of the
Company, reviewed and made recommendations with respect to the
remuneration of Board members for approval by the Board and
made recommendations with respect to the remuneration of the
newly appointed Directors during the year for approval by the Board.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted the operation model
where it performs an advisory role to the Board, with the Board
retaining the final authority to approve the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.
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The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance, experience, responsibility, workload and time
devoted to the Company and comparable market statistics, for
Board approval. Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic
salary which is reviewed annually. In addition, each of the executive
Directors may receive a discretionary bonus as the Remuneration
Committee may recommend. Such amount has to be approved by
the Board.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the year ended
31 March 2018 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Nomination Committee of the Company comprises four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. MAK Ka Wing,
Patrick, Mr. YUEN Chee Lap, Carl, Mr. YANG Xiaoping and Dr.
CHEUNG Wai Bun, Charles J.~.. Mr. MAK Ka Wing, Patrick is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the
structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board; (ii) identify individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members; (iii) assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors; and (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors. The
Committee is regulated by the terms of reference which follow
closely the requirements of the CG Code and shall be modified and
approved by the Board from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Nomination Committee
have reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, the
retirement and re-election of the Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and considered the appointments of new Directors.
All of the newly appointed Directors were appointed by going
through the selection process stated as above.
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The individual attendance records of each Director at the various
meetings of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2018 are
set out below:

Annual Special
general general
meeting meeting
Name of Director EEHE BRREEAE RRENAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. PAN Weiming (Chairman)* &8 B85 4 (F/8) - -
Mr. PAN Jungang * EB S - -
Ms. CHEN Weihong* BREEL L - -
Mr. LI Jinrong* FES e - -
Mr. TANG Kwok Hung BBt E 0/1 01
Ms. WU Jihong # Rt - -
Mr. WU Yang # RETE - -
Mr. NG Cheuk Fan, Keith * ﬁﬁm%i” 11 il
Mr. PAN Haoran EERSEL - -
Independent BUIHITEE
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. MAK Ka Wing, Patrick ~ ZEx&%4 i 01
Mr. YUEN Chee Lap, Carl* BB &4~ - -
Mr. YANG Xiaoping * BNERES - -
Dr. CHEUNG Wai Bun, wEWEL A P41
Charles J.P. * - -
Mr. CHAN Chi Yuen * BEELE" 17 01
Mr. XIE Tom* BT 17 I

appointed on 1 December 2017

appointed on 14 December 2017

resigned on 1 December 2017

appointed on 1 December 2017 and resigned on 4 June 2018

= > = %

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for each financial period to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statement of the Company
is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this report.

On 5 January 2018 while ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
(“ZHONGHUI”) resigned as the auditors of the Company and Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) were appointed as auditors of the
Company following the resignation of ZHONGHUI on the same date.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditor. The remuneration paid to the Company’s
external auditor, ZHONGHUI and Deloitte, in respect of audit services
and non-audit services during their respective appointment period
for the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out below:
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Fee paid/

payable

Services rendered PR R3S B ENLER

RMB’000

AREETIT

Audit services (rendered by Deloitte) EBZRS (HEHRE) 1,738

Interim review services (rendered by ZHONGHUI) FEAZERIARTS (A R FEIR M) 101
Other non-audit services H IR

— rendered by Deloitte — HBESEM 50

— rendered by ZHONGHUI — B ERME 488

2,377

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the
establish and maintain the internal controls and risk management
which covers financial reporting, operations, compliance and risk
management of the Company, as well as continuous monitoring the
effectiveness of such internal controls and risk management. The
Board has delegated such responsibility to the management of the
Company. The management, under the supervision of the Board,
has established an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks faced by the Group.
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The Board and the Audit Committee review the effectiveness of
internal control system and risk management that are significant to
the Group annually or at any time necessary. The Board and the
Audit Committee also considers the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function, as well as their training programmes and
budgets.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s
business and operations.

Risk Assessment
o Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
criteria developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact and consequence on the business
and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response
o Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and

° Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management
and the Board regularly.

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance
with relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper
maintenance of accounting records for provision of reliable
financial information used within the business or for publication;
and to provide reasonable assurance against material
misstatement, loss or fraud.
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The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and reviewing their
effectiveness. The Board oversees the overall risk management
of the Group and endeavours to identify, control impact of the
identified risks and facilitate implementation of coordinated
mitigating measures. The risk management and internal control
systems of the Company are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failures to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. It was decided
that the Board would be directly responsible for internal control
of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified
Public Accountants LLP as its risk management and internal
control review adviser (“the Adviser”) to conduct the annual
review of the risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 March 2018. Such review is conducted
annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The
scope of review was previously determined and approved by
the Board. The Adviser has reported findings and areas for
improvement to the Audit Committee and management. The
Board/Audit Committee are of the view that there are no
material internal control defeats noted. All recommendations
from the Adviser are properly followed up by the Group to
ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable period of
time. The Board therefore considered that the risk
management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate.
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An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosure are made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
policy regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information, which includes:

° Designated reporting channels from different operations
informing any potential inside information to designated
departments;

o Designated persons and departments to determine
further escalation and disclosure as required; and

o Designated persons authorised to act as spokespersons
and respond to external enquiries.

The Board is satisfied that the internal control system in place
covering all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions for the year
under review and up to the date of issuance of the annual report is
reasonably effective and adequate.

Mr. CHAN Ming Kei has been appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Company with effect from 15 January 2018. He is a full time
employee of the Company and has adequate working knowledge on
the Company to discharge his duty as the Company Secretary. Mr.
Chan supported the Chairman, the Board and the Board Committees
by ensuring good information flow and that Board policy and
procedures were followed. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters.
All Directors may call upon his for advice and assistance at any time
in respect to their duties and the effective operation of the Board and
the Board Committees. For the year under review, Mr. Chan has
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.
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Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at the general meetings of the Company shall at all
times submit a signed written requisition, specifying the purpose, to
the Board or the company secretary of the Company to require the
convening of a special general meeting (“SGM”). If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene the
SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, themselves may convene
a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from twenty-one days of the deposit.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws (as amended from time to time), the
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene a SGM follow the procedures as set out above.

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company either by
email at cs@fullsun.com.hk or by post to the principal office of the
Company at Unit 2408, 24/F., World-wide House, 19 Des Voeux
Road Central, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also make enquires
with the Board directly at the general meetings.

The Company considers effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business. The Company endeavors to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular,
through annual general meeting and other general meetings.

The website of the Company at http://www.fullsun.com.hk has
provided an effective communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.
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Currently approved Company’s bye-laws by the Shareholders is
available on the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Board has proposed certain amendments to the Company’s
bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) for approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming AGM, in order to reflect the new English
name and Chinese secondary name of the Company.

The amendments to the Bye-laws will become effective subject to
the approval by the shareholders of the Company by way of special
resolution at the AGM. Details of the proposed amendments to Bye-
laws has contained in the circular to be dispatched together with the
notice convening the AGM to the shareholders of the Company as
soon as practical.

By Order of the Board
PAN Weiming

Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 June 2018
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The Environmental, Social and Governance Report is prepared by
Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited (the “Company”,
together with subsidiaries, the “Group”) in accordance with the
requirements of Appendix 27 Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (hereinafter referred as the “Guidelines”) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (hereinafter referred to as the
“Listing rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“HKEX”).

According to the summary of Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide published by HKEx on 21 December 2015, the
issuers should disclose the general disclosures in accordance with
the principle of “Comply or explain” for their financial years beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. The key performance indicators in the
environment category should be generally disclosed for issuers’
financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

Environment, social responsibility and governance are significant to
the Company’s future. The Company recognizes that the business
model has far-reaching impacts on environment and society. The
Company chooses the appropriate key performance indicators of the
Group and compiles and discloses this report in accordance with the
principle of “Comply or explain”. The Company will continue to pay
close attention to the work of environment, social responsibility and
governance for the purpose of integrating these work into the
Company’s daily operations.

This report describes the Group’s concepts of environment, social
responsibility and governance, the overall performance and work
highlights of core business in the economic, environmental and social
aspect as well as the short-term or long-term Company’s plans and
goals.

The purpose of this report is to enable shareholders, investors
(including potential investors) and the public to have a more
comprehensive and in-depth understanding in the Group’s corporate
governance and culture. The Company is willing to take more social
responsibility, so as to maintain the balance between stockholders’
equity and social interests. The data in this report is from the
Company’s official documents and statistical reports, as well as the
reports that are provided by the Group’s subordinate companies.
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The report scope involves Fullsun International Holdings Group Co.,
Limited and its main subsidiaries. The environmental data is mainly
from Hunan Fullsun Group Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as
“Hunan Fullsun”) , describing the environment, society and
governance performance of the Group’s projects which includes 3
residential projects and 6 commercial projects in their major
workplaces (Hong Kong and Mainland China).

Through analysing the relativity between the stakeholders’ core
concern on environmental, social and governance issues and
Company’s business, the report records Company’s related core
performance indicators and other general disclosure indicators
during the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.

The Company is well aware of the importance of energy
conservation and low carbon development so that it has
implemented various measures to protect environment, like
focusing on some key areas’ energy conservation, carrying out
circular economy and raising employees’ awareness of
emission reduction. The Group is committed to integrating the
concept of low carbon development into every aspect of work
for the purpose of protecting environment as well as making
contributions to society. The Company has been closely
following the development of international environmental laws
for the purpose of ensuring the successful implementation of
Company’s environmental policies under international
standards as well as industrial standards.

Emissions

The Company places high emphasis on the management of
emissions during the business operation process. As a
qualified comprehensive group in real estate industry, the
Group keeps controlling the production of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste during the business process. The hazardous
waste mainly includes cartridges used in printers and lighting
bulbs while the non-hazardous waste is mainly waste paper.
As for the recycling of hazardous waste, it is disposed
uniformly through the property management companies to
which the Company pays the management fee as the cost.
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In order to avoid the generation of emissions, the Company
has proactively implemented various measures for energy
conservation and emission reduction, such as, generalizing
paperless office to reduce the use of paper, recycling unspent
paper or waste paper; using gas-fired air-conditioner which
relies on natural gas as energy for refrigeration instead of Freon
or other alternatives to achieve the lower air-pollution with high
efficiency and low energy consumption advantages. The
Company’s control of emissions also complies with relevant
national laws strictly. During the reporting period, the emission
rate of the Group did not violate the requirements of the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Law of the Peoples Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution,
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste and other
related laws.

Air pollutant ZERITEY
SO, HEE (SO
NO, Aa P (NOY
PM SEIZ KL (PM)
Waste BEEY
Hazardous waste BEEED
Non-hazardous waste mEEREY
Greenhouse gas emissions BERKBHEK
CO, by natural gas burning RIS
CO, by car driving YTELIRIE

CO, by tree-reducing BEBNRERE
Total CO, emissions CO &
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Use of Resources

In order to make full use of resources, the Company not only
needs to establish a comprehensive management system but
also needs all employees’ cooperation and support which the
implementation of related policies relies on more. The
Company strives to create a corporate culture of resource
saving for the purpose of enhancing employees’ awareness of
environmental protection and encouraging them to actively
participate in environmental protection activities like “Earth
hour”, afforestation, water-saving publicity, etc. The Company
also puts up posters near the restrooms, lights, air conditioners
and photocopiers, such as “One paper at a time, leading green
new fashion”, “Turn off the lights to save electricity”, “Cherish
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the forest through using paper in double-side”, etc.

Resource type

Electricity
Natural gas
Gasoline
Water

On the evening of 24 March 2018, the
Group turned off the lights for an hour for
the purpose of adhering to the
sustainable lifestyle of low carbon and
energy saving. To build a future with
action, to live a wonderful life.
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“Just one act of kindness shows
civilization.”

“One paper at a time, leading green
new fashion.”
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Unit Total
By WMEHEEE
KWh F FL B 20,176
m3 7 77 2K 53,400
A 8.55
t IR 1,680

On 11 March 2018, a day before the
fourth Arbor Day, the employees of
Hunan Fullsun conducted an afforestation
activity to practice the concept of green
development.
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The Environment and Natural Resources

Although the Company’s business nature has certain impacts
on environment and natural resources, such as the biodiversity,
the waste of Hunan Fullsun is uniformly disposed by its
property management companies and the waste in project
sites is disposed by project general contractors. Accordingly,
the waste generated by the Company (except exhaust gas)
would not have a direct impact on the environment. While the
Company will continue to pay attention to the possible impacts
of business operation on environment. If some issues that may
affect the environment and natural resources happen, the
Company will take into specific actions to reduce possible
damage.

The Group sets “Talent is the most powerful weapon for future
success, talent reserve is even more important than land bank”
as the Company tenet. Talent strategy ranks the top among all
of the Company’s strategies. Talents are regarded as the most
valuable assets in the Group. The Company has formulated
various comprehensive personnel management policies and
talent incentive regulations to protect employees’ basic rights
for the purpose of giving employees a strong sense of the
Company belonging and the Company security.

The Group also places much importance on middle or senior
managers. The Company has proposed a “FU XING” plan
which is aimed to cultivate high-quality talents. To better attract
outstanding talents, the Group has implemented various talent
strategies, such as publishing preferential policy for outstanding
employees and stock allocation policy for core teams or
cooperative project teams, etc.
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Age Region
Fie &

[ Under 30 30-50 Above 50
305RA TR 30-505% 50K L PN

[ Main China Overseas (including Hong Kong and Macau)
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Development and Training
By adhering to the talent cultivation strategy, the Group carries

out detailed and organized training programs based on the
corporate culture of “Unity, efficiency, integrity and
pragmatism” and the training principle of “Practicality,
effectiveness, and pertinence”. For example, the Company
provides orientation training for every new staff, mainly
including the introduction of Company profile, Company
culture, Company rules and regulations and real estate basic
knowledge, etc. New employees or transfered employees are
also required to receive new working skill training before
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starting the new jobs from the relevant department. Meanwhile,
the Company also arranges periodical training for employees
who work in different departments, including internal training
and external training, to improve their business capabilities and
working skills.

On 18 August 2017, from 10:30 to 12:00 am, the Group
invited Changsha Yuanda Residential Industry Co., Ltd. to an
assembly-type technique meeting for the purpose of
responsing to the Company’s new goal of “Professional
improvement, efficient breakthrough” and discussing the new
country policies and knowledge about assembly-type
technique.

20178 A 18 H 4 10:30-12:00 » AL EAR QT [ H IR
F ST NERE - BERAREH R TR AT
PIBRBIRBCERIE N - UM A ERABOR « 2% - #4E
MITEZER  FEEPBAEETEGR AR ERER
NEMRME  WEEE A A BB A FEEE 26 P B A 2 i = it
FRE OBEITTEFRRFRARR ©
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In order to respond to the new globel trends and the Group’s
developing goal of one hundred billion yuan, the Group held a
training on the topic of “Real estate development trend after
the Nineteenth National Congress” on 22 December. Mr. Pan
Weiming, the chairman of the board of directors, and other
core employees like senior managers and regional leaders all
entered the training to exchange opinions on the topics of real
estate development trends with each other.

RERRRBRNBY  FAEBLAEETEZREE X
SEN12 A22 BRIKTNARRBHERRBE)E-EE -
EXEEIRERPARLBEERE SEFBEASERLE
BAE  BERGMRAZENTRA - —RETRARE R
i BT AARRPBEFEET ISR RERNITA -

Gender 18.1
14 7l | | | 19.67
\ \
17 17.5 18 18.5 19 19.5 20

Average Training Hour

FF B

[ Female Male
z 3
Employee ‘ 18.36
Type
E TR 20.47
17 17.5 18 18.5 19 19.5 20 20.5 21
Average Training Hour
TR
[ Ordinary Employee Middle Management [ Senior Management
LTEET HRERE SRERE
Health and Safety REHEZE
Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group. ANEREREBNSEEELEE ~ARQAA
In order to provide employees with more comprehensive ETRHEBEANLE2HITIEIRERE  TE T
protective measures to avoid potential health risks or security EWFEREREZDHNBRNGE - FA 5
risks, the Company has established an ideal safe working AETRETTEMNMERE  HESE
environment and continuously improved the system of BEMERETZRAR - REHAR - AR
occupational health and safety. During the reporting period, the AAHBRERBIRELZ 2 TERBHEBD
Company did not violate any laws and regulations related to EEEREITE -

the safe working environment.

EREBREREEARQE
2018 F 3k 67



To enhance employees’ safety awareness, the Group regularly
organises a number of safety drills, in relation to emergency
treatment, fire safety, decentralization, leakage, escape from
natural disasters, etc. In addition, the Company has also
established appropriate accident reporting and investigation
system to encourage employees to report accidents and
insecurity factors. Meanwhile, to emphsize the importance of
employees’ physical and mental health, the Company provides
them with a routine physical examination every year and
organizes regular physical exercise and other recreational
activities. As to the mental health care, the Group has prepared
the “Fullsun Internal Communication Management Regulation”
which advocates “All staff accessibility communication” in
which the Company encourages employees to communicate
with superiors formally or informally. All managers are required
to consider the opinions and emotions of their subordinate
employees to create a harmonious and unobstructed
atmosphere for communication and improve employees’
confidence and belongingness of the Company.

Employment

The Group retains talents through providing more career
opportunities, better working platforms and more attractive
incentives. When vacancies occur in the Company, employees
are encouraged to compete for promotion that decided by the
their characters, working ability and performance.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B B REARS

REETFERLHERR - WA - BAL R
REFEE  MRSEILEEM bt
ARBFERZI A/ BEHEHRSE MHE
B ZBEIHREEHEMILZERAE-F
B ARRARREEINSORE  8F
REBTRE—RGITTEE  LABEEE
R R RIRTIREETS) - bR 7 S EREFEIN -
AEBREBIZNE IO REREB
EH - FHlE TCRRARSREERE) -
REZEERRBE] IBHIRETLE
BIEAMIENBEM T A E EREEGE
e ARRBREREREHITBET
MERMISEHE  EERG  BBRIBEN
CERSETIHMEE ©

(4

AEBELEXEZEA FEEA - BB
BAESEENASTEREE - MMEAM
B MR MBEARBIRE RNDRBALL
RERE - SBBTHF L -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group has proposed five luck talent plans of “FU SHUAI,
FU JIANG, FU XIANG, FU YING, FU XING”. This five plans are
prepared by the time line of “3691” and are aimed to build a
three-dimensional efficient multilevel comprehensive talent
supply chain for the Company. Take the plans of “FU SHUAI”
and “FU XING” as emamples. As to the plan of “FU SHUAI",
the Company can build the partner system through equity
incentive and authorized encouragement. Through “FU XING”
plan, the Company can cultivate more excellent students and
help them grow fast.

AEBENITEN [R5 - BHEE - BEFE B8
e BEE ARASTER - AERK[3691] REREIE
B #E T — IRt REE ZER 2REIOAS
s - LA [4RRnat 8l IR ErE] /P - T1EevETE ] &
RhA HETRR - BB AR 2RE I AER BRI EAE
—H [EL&] BBARS  [REE ] ERERE RN
MEREREFHRNEREIEZARBIERTE - 8P
BENE -

Regarding the emolument policy, the Group has applied the
principle of distribution according to work into emolument
determinations, based on the Company’s development
strategies and human resources management policies.
Meanwhile, the Group has set up scientific salary guarantee
regulations and salary regulations to cater to the Company’s
real condition, based on fair, floating and incentive salary
principle.

In addition, the Company organizes various activities to
improve employees’ loyalty, such as mini-marathons, employee
birthday parties, holiday blessing activities, social association
parties and other activities.

RIE e RERAHmE

FU SHUA

f&hD

FIVE FU
PLAN

hiEETE

FSESTE  REASEERRBBEND
EANNBREENEFE  ARBVEHET
RGN - AEIB] WA SRwM D &R
FRANBIERE - FBs - BREHEAF - B
MHBHERA - BEARNERESREN -
BTN EBH TERE S E MM IERRE -

B - ARASFURPRIRE RS
ETER® HANE BEISRER
WERISTRNES HhNEE e
B -
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In order to improve employees’ sense of the Company
belonging and show Company’s concern on every
staff, Hunan Fullsun organized the first employee
birthday party in 2017 with the theme of “Happy
birthday and work hard” to enjoy fun together.

BIEEE THANAMNARENRER 258 T
BSZRARARERREERE  HRERIA [T
BaE - BERT] AEBERNT2017FE-EETE
Be  EXEHZFRERZ -

On 8 March 2018, the day of International Women’s
Day, the Company presented flowers which
represented the best wishes to female employees.
Meanwhile, the Company also organized a makeup
teaching lesson for them.

£2018 3 H8H ' BIRIGRENE R - A AAl ALt
BTk FHIERRET AR o WRIKFER I 7 A3
BIEH) - BROAS  BLERE ALIEE TR E&EL
DR IZIERTEERR  RIEREL  EBF AT o

On the morning of 24 March 2018, Hunan Fullsun
organized a mini-marathon in Changsha Meixi Lake
park. The FU XING of Hunan Fullsun joined in the
activity together happily, which showed the great
ethusiasm of the new employees of the Company.

20183 A24HER ' WHEENEBEMEBERZRERYD

SENAR - BORGELNESED  BET AR
Al — AR L - BAEENED A -
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On Chinese Valentine’s Day, in order to help single
employees to look for love, the employees in human
resources department worked as matchmakers to help
others find their marriage.

ELSBABER  ATRESHETMERNE
BOBENERANERERHREARNAL - B
DHERTMRIEDE  BHATEEELERY -
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Labour Standards

According to Chinese labor law, the Company only recruits
people aged over 18 who gain official resident identification
cards issued by the Chinese Public Security department.
Based on the fair, open and voluntary employee hiring
principle, new staffs would be required to sign legal labor
contracts with the Company and forced labours are prohibited
strictly.

The Company has formulated some policies related to
employees’ marriage leave, funeral leave, maternity leave,
home leave and the annual leave, which builds work-life
balance for them.

During the reporting period, the Company has been in
compliance with laws and regulations in relation to human
resources, such as the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57), the Special
Protection Provisions for Juvenile Workers, the Prohibition of
Child Labour Provisions and other laws or regulations that are
related to the prevention of underage labour and forced labour.

In order to control the environmental and social impacts that
are resulted by the Group’s business, the Group has
established specific management systems and implemented
management measures of suppliers and customers. Based on
the Company’s sound internal compliance management
regulations, by implementing various measures like prohibiting
corruptions, improving supply chain management,
standardizing the bidding process and the division of duty or
responsibility, strengthening the examination of suppliers,
promoting the communication with customers to respond to
their requirements and improving service quality and service
effectiveness, as well as greatly promoting the sustainable
development of enterprises.

RIR - g RERRE

B TR

RRRERZREBEER  BEERF
Mm18ERA EBERREFIRENARER
BMEOAE - KRRBARZRF - RAF - B
EHRABEERAET  YEHEAZ AL
RAIBEAIEHAR  EBRHERST
Th -

ARARBER 'R ER BEENF
KR EBRENE T EIREN TIERL
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ZBEUWEERRER KREAKEYHD
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Product Responsibility

In order to strengthen the assessment of project, the Group
has formulated a specific project quality management system
to ensure the project quality and delivery time. The Group
project quality management system covers strict contractual
requirements and relevant standards and regulations, as well
as the “Three-inspection” rules which employees must observe
for project acceptance inspection. Meanwhile, according to the
supervision contracts and the supervision outlines, the
Company has set up supervision management and punishment
regulations for the purpose of helping onsite supervision
departments conduct control on project quality during the
project construction process. In addition, lots of professional
staffs, such as project directors, civil engineers, installation
supervision engineers, civil construction inspectors, and
document keepers, etc., are equipped into projects to ensure
the project’s quality and quantity.

Supply Chain Management

Because supply chain management has a significant impact on
product’s quality and cost, it has become a focus for the
Group. The Company holds a very serious attitude in the
selection of suppliers as well as its evaluation and management
process. When selecting and evaluating suppliers, the
Company must follow the regulation of supplier management
process for the purpose of making the whole process of supply
chain management comply with relevant laws and regulations.

In the supplier selection process, a selection group would be
established by the Company for the purpose of conducting on-
site supplier inspections. It is the selection group’s work to
investigate the suppliers’ production and supply capability,
product quality and environmental protection controlling,
management status, staff quality, after-sale service, etc., and
to check the supplier information survey form. At the end of the
whole selection process, the selection group also needed to
draw a conclusion on inspection opinions and assessment
results.

In the supplier evaluation and elimination process, the
Company focuses more on the performance of suppliers. The
Company would evaluate the quality, progress, and service of
all admitted suppliers from different aspects, and then rank the
suppliers according to their comprehensive evaluation scores.
The ranking result of suppliers is divided into three types:
excellent, qualified, and unqualified, and this result would be
announced after the whole evaluation process. As to the
unqualified suppliers, the Company would not cooperate with
them.
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Anti-corruption

The Group has implemented relevant internal policies based on
the tenet of openness, responsibility and honesty. All
employees are required to strictly comply with the personal
and professional ethics. Apart from the anti-bribery and anti-
corruption policies in the Company’s employee code, the
Company has also established relevant external reporting
procedures. In order to strengthen the supervision of the
management, the Company has set up suggestion box, report
telephone and report email. Meanwhile, the concept of anti-
corruption is also advocated by the Company for the purpose
of building an honest working atmosphere. As for the

RS

B HERE

P

RES

REECD B AR ARBE %ﬁAT\ﬁﬁ
BFHA AEEREEHENTE -
KA BT FEARETEARBEIRT o
BRARR TE’JEITYE\'JWﬁ%&ﬂﬁ%&ﬁE
VTSN - AR R RIRE AR A B AN EL 2R
WIZF - ARABBREERME BWE
W BREAESER MAHERENE
BHE WEARBANEBERESHIE
B BERZNIIELSE - RBEBKS
H RKBABHSEEZERELYN - WEH
W RERERER T‘XEE,\E’]%‘}’?‘FE

purchasing business, the procurement staffs must sign the C BRI ETEREN AR BR -
integrity contract. With all of these measures, corruptions ;,’E)Sz HREENAEBEEERE - E}E%%FE’]
involving the Company or employees never happened during PR ARABE— P TSEEBER A

the reporting period. The Company and all employees strictly
complied with the country’s legal provisions on anti-bribery,
extortion, fraud, and money laundering. In the future, Fullsun
Group will further improve the Company’s supervision system
to promote the Company’s sustainable development.

The Company actively carries out civic responsibilities and
encourages employees to participate in various types of charity
events, which shows the Company’s society responsibility.

ZIS TT*iZﬂ:%E?;E{/\ﬁj]{%EE ©
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Community Investment

The Company has actively participated in various charitable
activities, such as blood donation, snow shoveling, flood-
fighting and emergency rescues, etc., to make contributions to
society for years, which gains the society and the public’s
praise. For example, the Company was awarded the honorary
title of advanced group of flood fighting and rescuing because
of the excellent behaving in the activities of flood-fighting and
emergency rescues.

HERE

LER - AR ETERALBI 2 REF KR -
BRES  URBEREFAmER  KEE
THEESEEE - WHETUKBRRTEIE T
AR ST R B ARBRER -

On 8 July 2017, Hunan Fullsun and other companies
were awarded with the honor of “advanced group of
flood fighting and rescuing” at a flood control meeting
held in Kaifu district, Changsha city. Because at the
end of June, the Company actively participated in the
work of flood fighting to show the Group’s society
responsiblity.

2017F7H8H  ERAMHER BN TER
Hgel PEEREESEMNWR TIURBRITES
BELLETEYE - 7E6 ARRIARAR I A E L ESP
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T—REMAGEARMLERENED
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In the morning of 31 August 2017, Hunan Fullsun
worked with Jifu street community to carry out the
voluntary blood donation activity with the theme of
“responsibility and care”. All employees actively joined
in activity, showing the Company’s responsibility on
society, which gained Jifu community leaders’
recognition.

20178 ABIB LF HEERBAETRELRF
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A. Environment A, RIE
Aspects Description Remarks
EE B/ EEE8B EEYE TETHRRE
A1 Emissions Policies In the Group, part of the waste is disposed by its property
B BUR management company, and it does not involve specific

waste gas, waste water, hazardous waste. The specific
waste gas is the greenhouse gas produced by natural gas or
car fuel burning. The Company’s specific policies on energy
conservation can be referred to A2.1.
EREREN  ARENFIBREVAYESR—ER - B
WARERERER  BK ASEEVHR HEARRE
HMAEEREFERABRARIAEMERAER
BHR ARARERE M ABHRKRAIZ2ZA21

Information on compliance | During the reporting period, the Group did not violate the

with relevant laws and | laws and regulations related to the emissions.

regulations that have a | EMRK  AEEARLRERERBHERDEBNEZEE

significant impact on the | M5 °

issuer.

BTHBETABEATEN

HEEE KRB ER -

AlAd Types of emissions and | NOx: 70,000"0.0747*0.001 = 5.229 kg; (The Company has a
respective emissions data total mileage of 70,000 kilometers. The coefficient of NOx is
R R 0.0747 g/k.)

SOx: 8,550*0.0147*0.001/0.725 = 0.1734 kg; (Fuel
consumption by car driving is 8,550 kg; The coefficient of
SOx is 0.0147 g/I. The weight of a liter of 93- gasoline is
about 0.725 kilogram.)

PM: 70,000*0.0055*0.001 = 0.385 kg; (The Company has a
total mileage of 70,000 kilometers. The coefficient of NOx is
0.0055 g/km.)

NOx : 70,0000.0747*0.001 = 5.229 F 5 : (A A/ E1TE
NEHT0,000AE : AAREHREE0.074757%,/RE)
SOx : 8,550*0.0147*0.001/0.725=0.1734 T 52 : ((E H#E
WAL BRI 8,550 F 5% ¢ MBI EAEN0.0147 7%/ AF + —F
935 THA0.725 T =) ¢

FaRIY) : 70,00010.00550.001 = 0.385F 7% & (‘A A]/TE1T
BREH70,000AE : AREHMEL0.00555, RE) °
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Aspects
Em
A1.2

A13
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Description
BE/EEEE
Total greenhouse gas

emissions
BEREHRAE

Total hazardous waste

AEREENEE

Remarks
BEgE/ TETHRBRE

CO; by natural gas burning. (Subject to 2017 statistical data).
E = A*EF = 100.34 t (E represents emissions.; A represents
fuel consumption which is 53,400 cubic metres; EF
represents emission coefficient which is 1.8790 kg/m?®.)

CO, by driving: E = A*EF/0.725 = 27.83 t (E represents
emissions.; A represents fuel consumption which is 8,550
kg; EF represents emission coefficient which is 2.36kg/l; The
weight of a liter of 93- gasoline is about 0.725 kilogram.).
The emission of CH4 by car driving:
E = A"EF*GWP/0.725 = 63 kg (E represents emissions; A
represents fuel consumption which is 8,550 kg; EF
represents emission coefficient which is 0.000253 kg/l; GWP
represents global warming figure which is 21.).

The emission of N20O by car driving:
E = A"EF*GWP/0.725 = 4.04 t (E represents emissions; A
represents fuel consumption which is 8,550 kg; EF
represents emission coefficient which is 0.001105 kg/l; GWP
represents global warming figure which is 310.)

CO; by tree reducing: R = T"RF = 1.38 t (R is the amount of
CO;, reduction, T is the number of trees planted, and the RF
is the reduction coefficient which is 23 kg per tree.)

Total CO, emission: 100.34+27.83+0.063+4.04-1.38 =
130.893 t.
AARRMBELCO(BU0ITTEHRA B E R E):
E = AEF = 10034 M8 (X ERBNE : ABBELEREE -
53,4003 57K : EF A¥FMAE - 1.8790 F 5= /LK) :
B HRIGE S CO, « E = A'EF/0.725 = 27.83 M3 (H R E A
ME : ABMEEREE 8550 T %  EFAHMEE - 2.36
T/ Rf —HBKAMMN0725F ")

BB GE A CHABERNE © E = AEF"GWP/0.725 = 63 T 52
(HPERHINE  ARMEDERS » 8,650 T3 : EF BHEM
ZE 0 0000253 F 5/ AFt i GWP AEHERE © 21)
AEREEEN20HENE : E = AEF'GWP/0.725 = 4.04 1
(HPERHIME  ARKIEDERS » 8,650 T3 : EF BHEM
ZE - 0001105 F 7=,/ AF : GWP AEHZEREE + 310)
CO, Ak 2 (BRI A) : R = T'RF = 1.38ME (K R ACO,
FRE - TARERAREY - RFARBRRE - 23F 57 1]) :
CO, HEF 4 & : 100.34+27.83+0.063+4.04-1.38 = 130.893
WE o

0.051 t (Toner and bulb)

0.051 WA (3% - &)



Aspects
Bm
Al.4

A15

A1.6

A2 Use of
Resources

EREA

A2.1

A2.2

A23

A2.4

A25

Description

BR EBE%

Total non-hazardous waste
BEREEDREE
Description of measures to
mitigate emissions and
results achieved

R HERE 801836 R R
Description of how hazardous
and nonhazardous waste are
handled and results achieved

BEREREEEENNS
E R

Policies

R

Total energy consumption
gEREEE

Total water consumption
BREKE

Plans of energy using and
results achieved

RERE AR I AR

Plans of water using and
results achieved
FKER T8I R

Total packaging material
consumption for manufactured

products
@A EMENEE
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Remarks

ERHETETHEE

0.5t (Waste paper)
0.5 (RE4L)

The Company’s specific policies on emission reduction
energy conservation can be referred to A2.3.

RNAEPNRB BRI 2EA2.3 0

The waste of Hunan Fullsun is disposed by its property
management companies.
HEBEROEENHRCEMENE (KE/BER)R—&
8o

The Company puts up posters near the restrooms, lights, air
conditioners and photocopiers, such as “One paper at a
time, leading green new fashion”, “Turn off the lights to save
electricity”, “Cherish the forest through using paper in
double-side”, etc.
ARAREFHE B =H  FHERITREASER
B BT —RRA—RE s|EGRENER] - [HEFH
& SRRE] - [ERsE - ANBE]  [BREHRMN - 8H
e

26,301 kWh

26,301 FRE

1,680,000 m?3

1,680,000 37 7 >

The Group uses gas-fired air-conditioner which relies on
natural gas as energy for refrigeration but not Freon or other
alternatives for the purpose of making good use of its lower
air-pollution, high efficiency and low energy consumption
advantages. Meanwhile, the Company generalizes paperless
office to reduce the use of paper and recycles unspent paper
or waste paper;

AEEFRARRER  URARBERNEZEHSEAR
B HEBRER - TR EMERR 1854
AR BMATHERREONE - BERN - HHLrsE
o REEERRACHED  WRDARNER KRBT
FERMRERNA -

The Company regularly advocates water-saving principle
among employees to improve their awareness of water.
ARAINEIHREKEEHE Re2EEKES -
The main business of the Group does not involve the
business of packaging of manufactured products.
AEEREBETRRMS REB I ARETREmBEIE
ERERABEME -
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Aspects

i3]

A3  The Environment
and Natural
Resources

BRERXARER

A3.1
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Description
BR EEE%
Policies

R

Description of the actions
taken to manage the
environment and natural
resources
HRERRBERARERDEK
2L 08 =i

Remarks
BEgE/ TETHRBRE

The Company business has no impacts on environment and
natural resources such as the biodiversity. If some issues
that may affect the environment and natural resources
happen, the Company will take into specific actions to
reduce possible damage.
ARAMRBUEEHRELRAARER(WM  EVEHUETF)
WREERNTE - BERAIBERAMIEEHRIRA
EENTE AHRAURHRERRRERELATENS
TH - BEIE I i DURES A BE RN o

The Company business has no impacts on environment and
natural resources such as the biodiversity. If some issues
that may affect the environment and natural resources
happen, the Company will take into specific actions to
reduce possible damage.
ARBMEBHEHRBRAARER( - £WERIESE)
VWERBAEANTE - BRANSERABILEHRF L
EENTE AHREARERENARAERELTENS
I8 - BEIE SR AR AT R R R EE
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ocial: Employment and Labour Practices B. #8 —EBREIER

Aspects Description Remarks

Em BE/1EEEB EESE/ TETHRRE

B1 Employment Policies The Group retains talents through providing more career

B BUR opportunities, better working platforms and more attractive
incentives. When vacancies occur in the Company,
employees are encouraged to compete and the promotion
chances are decided by the employees’ character, work
ability and work performance.

Regarding the emolument policy, Fullsun Group has applied
the principle of distribution according to work into emolument
determinations, based on the Company’s development
strategies and human resources management policies.
Meanwhile, Fullsun Group has set up scientific salary
guarantee regulations and salary regulations to cater to
Company’s real condition, based on fair, floating and
incentive salary principle.
AEEREREA  FRBA  HBHEHEZAEREEN
AT BEREE  UATAEMRAMETHEIRE - UE
AME - R EEASBEARA - A BB LR ZEHRE
BEEIRFLE-
FMEELE  KERREBREREBNECRANERE
B DRIYERT RSO - SIREE ] BB RE
B RBIHIEH M - RIS BEHFMLT  BHEME
BERA #EDAINERELER  BUNBIERE
Tl E MBI ER R -
Information on compliance | The Group complied with the laws and regulations related to
with relevant laws and | labor and personnel strictly. During the reporting period, the
regulations that have a | Company did not violate the relevant laws and regulations of
significant impact on the | the country.
issuer FEBEBREATEARNB T BEELHATNEZER &
BEFHBETABERTEN | FHA RATRERERBEZKBEEERBIINTRE
HEEE LB ER
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Aspects Description Remarks
B BR EEE% ERYE TETHRE
B1.1 Total number of employees 92
BB R 2A
Male 55
B 55 A
Female 37
£°S 37 A
Age: 29 and below 26
BB 29 AT 26 A
Age: 30-50 57
P& : 30-505% 57 A
Age: 50 and above 9
R 5058 R L 9IA
Geographical Region: 77
WEBAE
Mainland China
PN
Geographical Region: 15
HWEBAE
Hong Kong
G
Education: 75
HE
Bachelor degree and below
REHRIAT
Master degree and above 17
BERIALE
B1.2 Employee turnover rate 15.38%
EEWMKLE
B2 Health and Policies To enhance employees’ safety awareness, the Group
Safety R regularly organises a number of safety drills, in relation to
REHEZE emergency treatment, fire safety, decentralization, leakage,

escape from natural disasters, etc. The Company also
prepared the “Employee handbook” to provide all employees
with relevant reference for occupational safety policies and
procedures. In addition, the Company has also established
appropriate accident reporting and investigation system to
encourage employees to report accidents and insecurity
factors.
AEBTFHRTHZR WA BB 2R BEFTEE
WRSBEIZEZEH - ARBEIRVT(EIFM)  HBE
ZEPRNREFEMBEABRE - b5 ARFINEREL
REMNEHNRENASHE  SBEIREEHNTILS

Information on compliance | The Company did not violate the laws and regulations related

with relevant laws and | to safe working environment.

regulations that have a | HEHA - AARKREREREL 2 TERBEHEBN AR

significant impact on the | JEZ#RH1TA °

issuer

ETHBETABEATEN

HEEE RO ER
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Aspects Description Remarks
B BE/REEB EERE TETHBE
B2.1 Number and rate of work- | O
related fatalities
THRRTABRLE
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury | O
THELAIER
B2.3 Description of occupational | The Company has gained the certification of occupational

health and safety measures | health and safety management. Every year the Company
adopted, how they are | would conduct health checkup for every employees.
implemented and monitored | AAFDABTBERFELE2EEERRE  UEFRE
BERERLZ2EHRIES | I TBRERRLERE -
Pz
B3 Development Policies By adhering to the talent cultivation strategy, the Group
and Training B carries out detailed and organized training programs based
BERIEI on the corporate culture of “Unity, efficiency, integrity and
pragmatism” and the training principle of “Practicality,
effectiveness, and pertinence”. For example, the Company
provides orientation training for every new staff, mainly
including the introductions of Company profile, Company
culture, Company rules and regulations and real estate basic
knowledge teaching, etc. New employees or transfered
employees are also required to receive new working skill
training before starting the new jobs from human resources
department. Meanwhile, the Company also arranges
periodical training for employees who work in different
departments, including internal training and external training,
to improve their business capabilities and working skills.
AEBUASEBRRFO - UIEE S8 KE BE]
MR AER  BREIEAL AL - sHEE] 0
AIRE - TR E - BEBKNIEINER - RAIABLH
ABHETREAABEI  HIRBTEERHE - RAIHE
N hEXE - REFHE  FHEERABZE HEIX
AEAT LENEAARPIRE - AR AR EL T
A ARARSSMeTRHETRAELSNE TAK
I (BRI - SN - RS EBK TR IEREE o
B3.1 The percentage of employees | 100%
trained
EEXIESL
B3.2 The average training hours 19 hours

B 8 X3 F 190 2 19/

2018 &R
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Aspects
Em

B4 Labour
Standards
BIER

B4.1

B4.2

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Description
BR EEE%
Policies

R

Information on compliance
with relevant laws and
regulations that have a
significant impact on the
issuer
BTHETABEATEDN
EEERRAROINER
Description of measures to
review employment practices
to avoid child and forced
labour

mE B R ERERARRE
ITREHST

Punishment process
EREENE

Remarks
BEgE/ TETHRBRE

According to Chinese labor law, the Company only recruits
people aged over 18 who gain official resident identification
cards issued by the Chinese Public Security department.
Based on the fair, open and voluntary employee hiring
principle, new staffs would be required to sign legal labor
contracts with the Company. In Fullsun Group, forced
labours are prohibited strictly.

The Company has formulated some policies related to
employees’ marriage leave, funeral leave, maternity leave,
home leave and the annual leave, which builds a balance
bridge between work and life for them.
ARAIBRRRBREEE R BEREAER18EARNLE
RRHBFARBNERERGNENAE - KRRAZFQF
A BRENRIBESRAEL  YEHAZBERE A
ERISHAR  EBRGIERALIITR -
ARAIRBER  BR ER KEABRNFARERE
RETITEHIEREERERE -

The Company strictly complies with laws and regulations All
employees in the Company must reach the minimum age
standard of 18. During the reporting period, the Company
did not violate the relevant laws and regulations.
ARABEBETEZOERER  BAARIMARENAR
FROFTEIN1BRFRERNFEERE - REHAN - A2
RIARWEME M 2 HER -

All employees hired by the Company must be over 18 years
old. Meanwhile, the Company stipulates the number of
employee hours of work in the human resources
management system.

AABERETIHFEISHENML  BRITHEANERER
HE - SR TEREEE THRTE

The mailbox for employee feedback is located in the
employee’s rest area, and the employee’s opinion will be
directly delivered to general manager. General manager will
arrange a team to investigate the irregularities and decide
publishments. Till now, the Company has not yet violated
relevant regulations.

CERBEER
BEEALE AREFHHERFAREARNERE ¥
RERBR TN c ARG REEREREE -
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ocial: Operating Practices B. & — &EEM

Aspects Description Remarks

Em BE/1EEEB EESE/ TETHRRE

B5 Supply Chain Policies The Company treats suppliers’ selection, assessment and
Management BUR management with a rigorous attitude. When selecting and
HEEEE evaluating suppliers, they strictly follow the supplier

management process and timely update the supplier
management process in accordance with relevant national
laws and regulations. A selection group would be established
by the Company for the purpose of conducting on-site
supplier inspections. It is the selection group’s work to
investigate the suppliers’ production and supply capability,
product quality and environmental protection controlling,
management status, staff quality, after-sale service, etc., and
to check the supplier information survey form. At the end of
the whole selection process, the selection group also needed
to reach the conclusions about inspection opinions and
assessment results.

Meanwhile, the Company focuses on the performance of
suppliers. The Company would evaluate the quality,
progress, and service of all admitted suppliers from different
aspects, and then rank the suppliers according to their
comprehensive evaluation scores. The ranking result of
suppliers is divided into three types: excellent, qualified, and
unqualified, and this result would be announced after the
whole evaluation process. As to the unqualified suppliers, the
Company would not cooperate with them.
ARAEHERNEEREREER T EBAZBARE
MR &R FEHERRERR(EERERRIE)
ETURBEN  FoREERBBER - BRFEERD
AABEARBHPIERE R E  BHEBETRSE
R PEHEBNEEREER N EnBEERRER B
BiR - AERE  ERBREFER  ER(HERERS
EETRINEHER BESHBZEERMRERR -
R BEEBIAEREANBEORR  #IREHOE
HAEERAHEETFHERNGE  £F  BRBEFE
EITRHE  RERBAENEST D EHERETERT
T ORES B TaB=E BRELJM - FEHE
HEBS T BRERMAEER -
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Aspects
Em
B5.1

B6 Product
Responsibility
EmEE
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Description
BE/EEEE
Number of suppliers by
geographical region.
R 25 AR ER# A
Total number of suppliers
HEREAER

Hunan province

RS

Fujian province

BEE

Guangdong province

BRE

Hubei province
iiipivk=)

Jiangsu province
TERE
Shanghai

g

Zhejiang province
k)

Policies

R

Information on compliance
with relevant laws and
regulations that have a
significant impact on the
issuer
ETHBETABERAZEN
HEEERRBINER

Remarks

ERHETETHGE

211

178

22

In order to improve the quality of the project, the Group has
formulated a specific project quality management system to
ensure the project quality and delivery time. The Fullsun
Group project quality management system covers strict
contractual requirements and relevant standards and
regulations, as well as the “Three-inspection” rules which
employees must observe for project acceptance inspection.
Meanwhile, according to the supervision contracts and the
supervision outlines, the Company has set up supervision
management and punishment regulations for the purpose of
helping onsite supervision departments conduct control on
project quality during the project construction process. In
addition, lots of professional staffs, such as project directors,
civil engineers, installation supervision engineers, civil
construction inspectors, and document keepers, etc., are
equipped into projects to ensure the project’s quality and
quantity.

AEERENIRESERRE KHETIREEER
HE - UEREIREE SRR TEEEEZ - HbE
BHARARRERANERIARRERS - BRIKER
REBRE =R HE - ASTIREEEIBREY RES
BER - BERAMARRRESEEDHEIEEET [FA
g Bt RITERERKESRE - AEARR
mE . TR REEETIRM tR¥EES EMES.
RRIIZBEERERENHEITK

During the reporting period, the Company did not violate the
state’s laws and regulations regarding the health and safety
of products and services.

WERA - ARAARBHRERBEREYNER « RBEE -
REERBRERERNITR
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Aspects

=]
B6.1

B7

B7.1

B7.2

Anti-corruption

K&

Description
BE/REEB
Total recalled products
BEEmME

Policies

BE

Information on compliance
with relevant laws and
regulations that have a
significant impact on the
issuer
BTHETABEATZEN
HEEE LB ER

Tatal corruption cases and
the outcomes
BERRGEB R
Description of anti-corruption
measures

RESEE

RIR - g RERRE

Remarks
BEE TETRRRE
0

The Group has implemented relevant internal policies based
on the tenet of openness, responsibility and honesty. All
employees are required to strictly comply with the personal
and professional ethics. Apart from the anti-bribery and anti-
corruption policies in the Company’s employee code, the
Company has also established relevant external reporting
procedures. In order to strengthen the supervision of the
management, the Company has set up suggestion box,
report telephone and report email. Meanwhile, the concept
of anti-corruption is also advocated by the Company for the
purpose of building an honest working atmosphere.
AEBECEREBNABEE  —EE N T HBETHA -
BREAENEEABENTE KB EIHFREETEA
REERT BRARBMEITIANEARBERERES
BERAN - N RIRE #w Hl A B RO SNR SR 3RA2 Fr % E B A
SENSDEERSORBERATHIEF  KARBBR
EERME BREFE BREE MBHEREENGE
B WEARAABEREGHIERES  €ERENT
TESE

During the reporting period, corruptions involving the
Company or employees never happened during the reporting
period. The Company and all employees strictly complied
with the country’s legal provisions on anti-bribery, extortion,
fraud, and money laundering.

HEHA - ARAREHRBARARAXERENE)FE

o ONMEBRETRRENRER ¥R BEFROAREN
HBDERBAE -
0

In order to strengthen the supervision of the management,
the Company has set up suggestion box, report telephone
and report email. Meanwhile, the concept of anti-corruption
is also advocated by the Company for the purpose of
building an honest working atmosphere.

EHENIES  ARABBREERM BHEE £
WEE NMEAHERENEENE  YEARANEBER
BEMIEER  SERZNIERE -
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B. Community

Aspects
BE

B8 Community
Investment

HERE

B8.1

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Description
BR/IBEEE
Policies

R

Focus areas of contribution
EraREE

B. #HE —HE

Remarks
BEE TETHRBR

The Company actively carries out civic responsibilities and
encourages employees to participate in various types of
charity events, which shows the Company’s society
responsibility.

ARAREEETCEAREME ZBEIRALELHE
£

The Company has actively participated in various charitable
activities, such as blood donation, snow shoveling, flood-
fighting and emergency rescues, etc., to make contributions
to society for years, which gains the society and the public’s
praise. For example, the Company was awarded the
honorary title of advanced group of flood fighting and
rescuing because of the excellent behaving in the activities of
flood-fighting and emergency rescues.

ZEK  ARARB2EEEEM - BRES - fUkER
ERHEH R EDBLELS - WERABRRTEE
FHUL R o BB E R -



Deloitte.

To the Members of Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited

FEREBEZEREBERARSIMLRKRER

(Formerly known as U-Right International Holdings Limited)
(ATRBE R BB ZE IR A BR A A))

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(RERETMA L. BRAE])

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fullsun
International Holdings Group Co., Limited (formerly known as
U-RIGHT International Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
95 to 210, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

EEDERTINEBE210E 2B R BRI E
EERAR (AIBERBEBIZERERAR) ([EA
A REMBAR (5E [ EX5E ) 2456 M BH
xR RERREEN-_Z—N\E=A=+—H2Z
BAVBRAREBEZBLFEZEEBER
HEf2AWaEER GEEREHRNGEEESR
ERUARGEVERERNT  BREEZSBUER
BME o

BEERR HARBRROCBET LSS
([BEEEFMAE)RH2BET KRS ER
(B BRELNDEEQFHRKR SEHE
R-ZZB-N\EF=ZA=1T—HZHEEHBRREE
ERALFEZGEMBRARGEARATRE
VEERBEEARGRIIZKBEREZL DR

EEREBEBESTMAGRM 2T ERT LR
([BABERDETER - EZRFET &
EZREREBSZHERN [RBERBREA R
BHRRAAEZEE] —HE— T - RIES
ARG Z[BEEFMERTR] (T
Al]) BFBYRN BEERE XCBETRIET
HiBREE - BFMHE  BEEMEEZRER
ARMEERESZZERE R IRMHER -

REBEESZZEXHE  BREAEE/EETER
RABRZ G ERBERRTREEZFR - BF
EECZE AV BREMMLERERFEE LS
R MIEREEEREFHERER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B I B AR S

Revenue recognised from sales properties

ERHEYHEZ KA

We identified revenue recognised from sales of properties as
a key audit matter as it is quantitatively significant to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
HRERHEVE WA GEBRR AR ERMNE
BEBEEX  BEEREEBETRABAREASZE-

The Group’s revenue from sales of properties for the year
ended 31 March 2018 amounted to approximately
RMB553.3 million, which is disclosed in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements, representing 99.9% of the
Group’s total revenue. As disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements, revenue from sales of
properties is recognised when the development of the
relevant properties has been completed and the properties
have been delivered to the purchasers pursuant to the sale
and purchase agreements.
EEEREE—_T—N\F-A=+—BHLFERAHEEDE
ZWAKRARKESS33EET 1 EREAWALI%
EREEMERRMTOKRE - KRS M EWKRMT 45T
B BHANEERTKMEZVECRBEEB RN
TER  ASBRHEHEMEIWA -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognised from sales
of properties included:

BEENAHBRAHENE I WMARNZIEF B

Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control over the
process of delivering the properties to the purchasers
and determining the point of time at which revenue
from sales of properties is recognised;

o  TERYNE EXEMESRXNYEBIZECAIMEE
ZRBAREEHERHEME Z WA 2R

o Inspecting, on a sample basis, the terms set out in the
sale and purchase agreements to understand the
criteria under which the significant risks and rewards of
the properties have been passed to the purchasers;
and

REBEEEREET W THGTIA T HIZE - &
b MEZERRBREEHREEREES &

Evaluating whether the criteria for the delivery of
properties have been fulfilled by checking, on a sample
basis, to the terms of the sale and purchase
agreements, the relevant completion certificate for
construction work, the delivery notice sent to the
purchasers and the settlement status of the
consideration.

s HHMBEAEFLRNMEZERERCEREESHE
IR BETREREETIEE  FRTEHZRM
BARREZ EEBEREK -



Valuation of inventory of properties

WRFEZEE

We identified the valuation of inventory of properties, which
includes properties under development for sale (the “PUD”)
and completed properties held for sale (the “PFS”)
(collectively referred to as the “Properties”) as a key audit
matter as it is quantitatively significant to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with significant
estimates are involved in the determination of the net
realisable value (the “NRV”) of the Properties.

HRYEFE (BEFEERTME(TBERDYE]) RFFHE
HEDRIME([FHIEHEEWED (BEA [ZEME]D 2&
BHGENBHREEEMEEHEEXN  MLEBEEZEME
ZAERFE(AERFEDRYREN G ESHEE
ERBERENEE -

The Group’s PUD of approximately RMB3,506.8 million and
PFS of approximately RMB251.1 million are situated in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) as at 31 March 2018
as disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements which in aggregate represent 64.1% of the
Group’s total assets. As set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the Group
determined the NRV of the PUD with reference to the current
market price of properties of a comparable standard and
location and construction costs to be incurred to complete
the development based on existing asset structure and
construction material price lists. The management
determined the NRV of the PFS with reference to the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
RZZE—N\F=A=+—H0  BSEMRFEAREMEH
(B 2EERTRWENRARYS,506.8 7 &7t RIFIEH
EMENR/ARKE2511 B BT (HAERE T B WK 5E22

PREE) A BEXEEREE641% - BAGFEMBERRK
MFESrE  EXEEEEETERTYE 2 ERHER

SEMNAUBRERMB 2 MEZRITHEARENREE
ERBIENERBEN TR ERAELRZERS - EEE
BEREHEMEZ ISR FER2ENBEEEEBIEZTZ
AR EERL A HEEMT LR AEFAE -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Our procedures in relation to valuation of inventory of
properties included:

BEEIMEFEHEZRFEE

o Obtaining an understanding on the management’s
process of estimating the construction costs to be
incurred to complete the development of the PUD and
estimating the NRV of the Properties;
TREBENETKABERPYEMESEBEXR
NREHEZEYME 2 AIRBRFEEF

Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated cost to
completion of the PUD, on a sample basis, by
comparing the budgeted construction costs, to the
signed contracts with subcontractors, and actual
development cost of similar completed properties of
the Group and comparing the adjustments made by
the management, on a sample basis, to current market
data; and

o  RHBEE BEUBBENANTEE - HHBEEFT
ZERNKR BEXEERBEUERIMEZ ERRAEX
R WBBHRERERR AT SERIBEL 2 A%
FHETERERTYE 2GR AZERYE &

o Assessing the appropriateness of estimated selling
price of the Properties, on a sample basis, by
comparing it to the recent market prices achieved in
the same project or comparable properties, based on
our knowledge of the Group’s business and the PRC
real estate industry.

RHERELE BRI RZEMF T EEEMERIER

HATLLEMELBOIRTISER REEEFH &%
BEBRTPBEMETEZTH  FERSFDEML

EEZ/@EM -
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B I B AR S

Valuation of investment properties

REYERZEE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter as it is quantitatively significant to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
the significant estimates associated with determining the fair
value. As disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the investment properties of the Group mainly
represent commercial properties located in the PRC and,
office units, car parking spaces and signboards areas
located in the Hong Kong and are carried at RMB990.0
million as at 31 March 2018, which represents 16.9% of the
Group’s total assets.
HRIREMEGEEGEVHRERERMES BEEEKN - M
FEEATFERIREN G  ESRREMEGLEEER
FREFTEE - MG E B MERMT18AEE  E5EF
REMHEETERMNTRZEEMERMREB 2P AEES
i FEUREERE R \F=ZA=1+—HZ2EHE
BERARKINOEET & EEEBEE16.9% °

All of the Group’s investment properties are stated at fair
value based on valuations performed by independent
qualified professional valuers (the “Valuers”). The valuation of
investment properties were determined based on the
investment approach by considering the capitalised rental
incomes derived from the existing tenancies with due
provision for any reversionary income potential of the
property interests. The key inputs in valuating the investment
properties are term yield, reversionary yield and market rent
of comparable properties. Details of the valuation techniques
and key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.
EXBMAREMEOUN—RBYEEREEGEM([HE
B ) P rT 2 MEAEMAAFETER - R EWMEZHED
ERZERMBEAMRLNMEHSBRAER L 2IRE T E(CEHY
¥R BEBEWAERERE) MEE - REMFEEE
ZEEZHASBEATHKGEE ERWEERAIELRYE
ZiGHE o e % HmERM T 18 B R B M ERMAEERT
REZHASBR 2 FHER
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

BEERBRENEMAEZEFBE

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity
of the Valuers and obtaining an understanding of the
Valuers’ scope of work;

o  FMEHEMZER - EAOREEYE - W T BEER 2
TEgE

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the Valuers’ valuation
approach to assess if they are consistent with the
requirements of HKFRSs and industry norms; and

o  FTAAEMBEREZEEN  UFHEEERER
BB ELERNRITERS - &

o Obtaining the detailed work of the Valuers, particularly
the key input to the valuation on investment properties,
in particular the term yield, reversionary yield and
market rent of comparable properties, and evaluating
the accuracy and relevance of key data inputs
underpinning the valuation and challenging the
reasonableness of the key inputs applied based on
available market data and our knowledge of the
property industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.

o  ENMEHEMBREMEZMEEIEFS  LEHKRE
MELEZFEGABRB(FRIEFHKEE  BEH
WaRRABEBRMETHHEE) » Rl #H
Bz FERABE £ RBAN - ARBIERA
MSHERESFHERBRPREEMETEMANEMAM
EREFERABBE AN -



Valuation of derivative components of convertible bonds
BRESFITES T Z1EE

We identified the valuation of derivative components of
convertible bonds at initial recognition and at the end of
reporting period as a key audit matter as the valuation of the
derivative components of the convertible bonds involved a
significant degree of management estimate.

R ATREFIT AR S RV HERR RN mE R 2 EE
PREBEBERGH  WESHAIRRESTES S 2HE
EERBEETEIE -

As at initial recognition on 1 December 2017 and 31 March
2018, the fair value of the derivative components of
convertible bonds were RMB812.0 million and RMB944.3
million, respectively. Change in fair value of derivative
components of convertible bonds of RMB182.8 million was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year.
RIEBE—+F+_A-—RUFERBERR_ZE-N\F=H
=+—8 AIRmREFITEFS 2AFEDIAARK
BI20BETLRARKI43BET - AIMRESFITERLD 2
ATFEEHARKIQ28AETNAFE 2 faEm REM
ZE SR AER °

As disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, the derivative components of the convertible
bonds on initial recognition and at the end of the reporting
period are stated at fair value, which is determined by the
directors with reference to the valuation carried out by
independent qualified professional valuer (the “Valuer”) using
Binomial Option Pricing model. The key inputs used in the
Binomial Option Pricing model include stock price,
conversion price, expected volatility, dividend yield, life to
maturity and risk-free rate and the valuation is sensitive to
the expected volatility which requires significant management
estimate.

HANERE ME IR M T 20 TR ER - MY SRR MRS
R ABRBRESFZITEROHESTL2EBLAEREEM
ER ([ A ER]) A —EA MR EERAETZEERAF
Bk —EAHEEERARABZIEGAREEER
(B - ]iE - EHPRIE - B X FHIRERRE - MEE
HIRRESR  FEEEEEAME -
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Qur procedures in relation to valuation of derivative
components of convertible bonds included:
EERRRESFITESX D HELIRFBIE -

° Inspecting the agreement related to the issuance of the
convertible bonds, and identifying the key terms which
may affect the valuation of convertible bonds;

s WMBERBEITAIMKRES 2WHE  WRRIAIETER
MR EFEE FE2EGK

° Assessing the professional competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the Valuer;
o  FHMEEERMZEXERE st RFEINE

° Obtaining the valuation report and detailed work from
the Valuer about the valuation methodology used,
assumptions and key data adopted;

o EELERBLPAERABMETE - FIERAERR R AR
B hESRE R ITEFE

o Involving our internal valuation expert to evaluate the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology;

s HABHEERRMHEGEDEZEELE

° Involving our internal valuation expert to assess the
reasonableness of major input which involved a
significant degree of management judgment i.e.
expected volatility used by the Valuer by comparing to
the historical volatility of comparable listed companies
and by comparing the other inputs to entity-specific
information and market data; and

e FRAKBMABBHEAELR T AR ZELRIELL
B AR EAM i ABIRERE BT 2 R R HISE
BETLEER - BABGEEERTHEERARE S
B g KBRS XA E (BMhERD AT HTE S
R : &

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the fair value change
of derivative components of convertible bonds with
reference to the share price movement of the
Company during the period.

o  KBE BRAMAREEE -
BHDFEBEHZ AR -

AHA AR AE ST
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The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2017 have not been audited.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B I B AR S

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lam Chi Hong.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

15 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Hitt 2R &R

g‘g_:\An\l

For the year ended 31 March 2018 Eki_ =

—N\F=ZA=+—RHLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F = —+ 5
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B & ARBT T AR¥ET T
(unaudited)
(REER)
(restated)
(F&E%)
Continuing operations BFEREEK
Revenue g A 6 553,549 602,607
Cost of sales HE KA (331,246) (428,593)
Gross profit EF 222,303 174,014
Other income and gains E A R 8 22,833 4,641
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHE R (20,854) (15,258)
Administrative expenses ITERX (28,281) (23,378)
Change in fair value of derivative AMBERTESD 2
components of convertible bonds NEEEY 29 (182,812) -
Impairment loss on goodwil ez REEE 33 (4,543,433) =
Other expenses HER 9 (9,485) (15,586)
Share of loss of an associate i /NI o) E = 19 (250) -
Finance costs [ELEE DN 10 (6,925) (12,296)
(Loss) profit before taxation BRELAT (B1ER) & T (4,546,904) 112,137
Income tax expense PSR X 11 (79,024) (68,024)
(Loss) profit for the year from continuing — FFERK L ¥
operations REE (FBE) BT 13 (4,625,928) 54,113
Discontinued operation BRIEEEERE
Loss for the year from discontinued ERIEEEREB 2 AFEBE
operation 12 (426) -
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive ZF[E (F18) HF R 2MH
(expense) income for the year (BxX) =58 (4,626,354) 54,113
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive RAREE ABREARFE ( E1E)
(expense) income for the year A R (RS a8 58
attributable to owners of
the Company
— from continuing operations — REFEKEER (4,625,928) 54,113
— from discontinued operation — REBRIELEER (426) =
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive KARHEE ANEEARFE(BE)
(expense) income for the year A RER(FX) KWaEiesE
attributable to owners of
the Company (4,626,354) 54,113

EREBREZEREEARQF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e BmMEME W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ =T —/\F=A=+—HILtFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
NOTE (unaudited)
Liks3 (REEER)
(restated)
(F&E5))
(Loss) earnings per share S (&E8) BT
From continuing and discontinued REFHELE R RIS E
operations
— Basic (RMB cents) — AR (ARES) 16 (59.64) 0.84
— Diluted (RMB cents) —EHEARED) 16 (59.64) 0.84
From continuing operations REFELEED
— Basic (RMB cents) — BER(ARED) 16 (59.63) 0.84
— Diluted (RMB cents) —BE(ARED) 16 (59.63) 0.84

Qé FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
a MBI R

At 31 March 2018 R=Z—\F=A=+—H

At 31 March
R=RA=+—H At 1 April
2018 2017 2016
RZTE—RF
—ZE-N\F —T—+F mA—H
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
5T AR®T T ARETIT AREFIT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(CREEEZ) (REEEZ)
(restated) (restated)
(&g E5) (ge&E3)
Non-current Assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - M= K& E 17 104,074 4,419 5,350
Investment properties "B 18 989,957 = =
Interest in an associate R—EEE AR 2 s 19 119,750 - -
Available-for-sale investment HEEERE 20 500 - -
Deferred tax assets BERIIRE B 31 7,055 1,615 1,305
Deposit paid for acquisition of ~ WEEF B AR 2 MiZe
subsidiaries 21 73,555 - -
Long-term guarantee deposit ~ KHIRFE S 23 - 5,000 -
1,294,891 11,034 6,655
Current Assets REBEE
Inventory of properties MEFE 22 3,757,914 2,386,051 2,411,856
Trade and other receivables JE LA BR R N L A JE Uk
and prepayments FRIALA R FEN 5RIE 23 176,325 17,647 23,890
Amount due from an associate U — RE1 B & N B K IE 25 30,000 - -
Prepaid income tax B TSR 41,327 29,914 29,119
Restricted bank deposits ZIREIRITIER 24 77,175 42,294 31,706
Bank balances and cash RITHEBARE 24 483,328 346,980 240,337
4,566,069 2,822,886 2,736,908
Current Liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables FE A BR 30 R E A FE A
and accruals FIALA R FEETE A 26 490,879 139,579 101,812
Deposits received for sale of HEME  BEWES
properties 1,496,763 283,455 151,349
Amount due to a related company  FE1S — & 83 A & 7R 43 5,766 12,871 17,134
Amount due to immediate EREEIERARIZIA
holding company 27 - 328,258 310,953
Income tax payable FERI PR 235,322 190,544 176,811
Borrowings BE
— due within one year — R—FREH 28 1,657,667 280,000 1,659,454
3,886,397 1,234,707 2,317,513
Net Current Assets REEEFEE 679,672 1,588,179 419,395
Total Assets Less Current EEAERTBHARS
Liabilities 1,974,563 1,699,213 426,050

EREBREZEREEARQF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REFBAILR

At 31 March 2018 R=ZE—/\F=A=+—H

At 31 March
R=A=+—H At 1 April
2018 2017 2016
RIZZE—RF
—E-N\&F —E—+tF mH—H
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 ARET T ARETF T ARET T
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(CREEEZ) (REEEZ)
(restated) (restated)
(g E5) (F&&E75)
Capital And Reserves ERRHE
Share capital N 30 88,605 305 305
Reserves ] 199,960 327,402 273,289
Total Equity RS 288,565 327,707 273,594
Non-current Liabilities FEREBERE
Borrowings =91
— due after one year — R—E1%F|H 28 568,659 1,256,286 140,000
Convertible bonds AR (E A 29 153,478 = =
Derivative components of AR E S 2 OTE R
convertible bonds 29 944,258 - -
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIEAE 31 19,603 15,220 12,456
1,685,998 1,271,506 152,456
1,974,563 1,599,213 426,050

The consolidated financial statements on pages 95 to 210 were
approved and authorised for issue by the directors of the Company

FBEELN0EZGEMBHREEARAES
RZFE—NEXNA+RABBREERY - Y

on 15 June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: UTESERREZ :
Mr. Pan Weiming Ms. Wu Jihong
BEALE REA L
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BF EF

Q8 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HEZ —=

BREm

Attributable to owners of the Company

ABEHR

—N\F=ZA=+—RHLFE

RAFHEEAEL
Retained
profits/
Share Share Capital Other Shareholder’s Statutory (accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve  contribution reserve losses) Total
REER/
R RiaE EARE At RREE it (RAER) &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETr ARETn ARETR
(note i) (Noteii (Note il
(BizEi) (izki) (FizEii)
At1 April 2016 (unaudited) (restated)  R=E—ENA—H
(k@) (WE7) 5 - - 6% - BT 1790 2135
Profit and total comprehensive FREHREZERRES
income for the year - - - - - - 54,113 54,113
Appropriation to statutory reserve BRDETERE - - - - - 9,203 (9,293) =
At31 March 2017 (unaudited) (restated) E—+F=fA=1-H
(ﬁz«%w,@w) 5 - - 61 - 20 28897 307
Loss and total comprehensive ERBRR2ARY AR
expense for the year - - - - - - (4,626,354)  (4,626,354)
Appropriation to statutory reserve ERELTRE = - - - - 10,757 (10,757) =
Recognition of share capital and BAZRYESER
share premium of the Company KAR ZRARRR
immediately before the Acquisition (B (M3£30)
(note 30) 34,285 484,980 (519,265) - - - - -
Elimination of share capital of HEBRBRAR ZRA
Vivalink Limited (305) - 305 - - - - -
Deemed contribution from the Utimate @ {ERXRBRRE &
Controling Shareholder (note 33) (Bif3E33) = = - - 335,821 - - 335,821
Desmed consideration for RIEWESE RE
the Acquisition (note 33) (FzE33) 54320 4,197,071 - - - - - 4251391
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=A=1-H 88,605 4,682,051 (518,960) 61,295 335,821 52,967 (4,413,214) 288,565
Notes: FfzE -

Capital reserve represents the difference between the issued share capital
and share premium of the Company and the share capital of the Vivalink
Limited (the accounting acquirer) immediately before the Acquisition (as
defined in note 2).

Other reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid by
Vivalink Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the
carrying amount of registered capital of certain subsidiaries of Vivalink
Limited, in respect of the transfer of equity interests of those subsidiaries to
Vivalink Limited from the companies controlled by Mr. Pan Weiming (the
“Ultimate Controlling Shareholder”).

In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries established
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), those subsidiaries are required
to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the statutory reserve until the
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must
be made before distributing dividends to equity holders. The statutory
reserve can be used to make up for previous years’ losses, expand the
existing operation or convert into additional capital of the subsidiaries.

ARREEERVBEEEN(EREAMFED AR
EETRAREMDEERZBERAR(E uﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁ)
1 ==
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2 ARSZEHBARN 2 RESRTRAAR
NP

REBERPEZEARKXMBE(TFE DKL ZAENEBEAR

RZAEMERAR - ZEHBARAKRREEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GEHTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ =T —/\F=A=+—HILtFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETIT
(unaudited)
(REEZ)
(restated)
(F&&E75)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETER
(Loss) profit for the year FAEER) =AM (4,626,354) 54,113
Adjustments for: HTFNSB AR -
Income tax expense i8R 79,024 58,024
Depreciation e 1,323 1,673
Finance costs & R 6,925 12,296
Interest income F 2 A (1,252) (753)
Exchange gain FE o Ua &8 (20,148) -
Share of loss of an associate L —MEEE R E 2 BE 250 =
Change in fair value of derivative AR ESITE R D 2
components of convertible bonds N EE 182,812 -
Impairment loss on goodwill ez REBE 4,543,433 -
Operating cash flows before RetEBESE A2
movements in working capital KRESRE 166,013 125,353
(Increase) decrease in inventory MEFE L) ED
of properties (372,936) 208,583
Decrease in trade and other receivables, & BR 70 & E 1t & Y 2038 LA M
and prepayments TERT SRIER 20,377 6,243
Increase in trade and other payables JE A5 BR 0 K2 L 4th FE A~ FRIE LA K2
and accruals FERTE AL N 152,576 30,712
Increase in deposits received for sale LB E WY 2 1= & 18 N
of properties 1,213,308 132,106
Decrease in amount due to FE — R B A R SRIE R A
a related company (7,105) (4,263)
Cash generated from operations ZEMEINS 1,172,233 498,734
Income tax paid EXHEREE (46,826) (42,632)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING RETDHERES TR
ACTIVITIES 1,125,407 456,102

—‘ OO FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= ATH AN =
mMeEREMER
For the year ended 31 March 2018 & Z =L — \F=A=+—HIFE

2017

—T—tF

NOTES RMB’000
hE=s ARETT
(unaudited)

(CREg&EZ)

(restated)

(5£E:75)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETER
Purchase of property, plant and BEYHE  BERRE

equipment (779)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BEMKEEZ

plant and equipment FT{S 38 37
Net cash inflow arising from the WHEEEMEARSTAFE

Acquisition 33 -
Net cash outflow on acquisition WK B AR 2B R R

of subsidiaries 34 -

Acquisition of an associate WEE—REE R A =
Deposits paid for acquisition WEEKIB AR 2 BEffiEe

of subsidiaries -
Settlement of consideration receivable SEAHERB AR Z EBRNRE

from disposal of subsidiaries -
Addition of available-for-sale AR HERE

investment -
Loan advanced to a third party BNFE=ZHZ2ERK =
Advances to an associate ) — B & R R B AR =
Additions of restricted bank deposits AT R HIRITIER (68,573)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposit IR HIRITIEK 57,985
Payment of guarantee deposit T RHRES (5,000)
Interest received B F 8 753
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETHFARSFH

ACTIVITIES (15,577)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HAERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & EZ = — \F=A=+—HIFE

2017
—E—4F
RMB’000
AREFIT
(unaudited)
(CREg&EZ)
(restated)
(#&E=75)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il E B
Additions of borrowings EAEE 1,808,000
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (1,971,168)
Advances from immediate =R N UNGIE T
holding company 17,305
Interest paid BTHE (188,019)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING RESEBMAREEE
ACTIVITIES (333,882
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HeRBESESHEEREGMTFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 106,643
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REPDzRERESEEER
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 240,337
EFFECT OF FOREIGN SIEERBE ZEE
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES =
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZESRES
AT THE END OF THE YEAR, Z£EHER >
representing bank balances and cash FRIRITHEBREIR S 346,980

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=A=+—HILFE

Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited (formerly
known as U-RIGHT International Holdings Limited) (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively referred
to as the “Group”) is incorporated in Bermuda as a limited
liability company and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The
principal place of business is Unit 2408, 24/F., World-wide
House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The principal
activity of the Company is investment holding and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries and an associate are principally
engaged in property development and property investment
business.

The immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company
is Tongda Enterprises Limited (“Tongda”), a company
established in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) with limited
liability and 100% owned by Mr. Pan Weiming.

Subsequent to a special resolution passed on 20 November
2017 and completion of the Acquisition (as defined in note 2),
the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda has approved the
registration of the new name of the Company on 1 December
2017 and issued the Certificate of Incorporation on Change of
Name on 19 December 2017. Hence, the English name of the
Company has been changed from “U-RIGHT International
Holdings Limited” to “Fullsun International Holdings Group Co.,
Limited” and “ 48 & B BRI S B B BR A 77 be adopted as the
secondary name of the Company with effect from 1 December
2017. The Certificate of Registration of Alteration of Name of
Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was issued by the
Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 4 January 2018,
confirming the registration of the new English and Chinese
name of the Company in Hong Kong with effect from 4 January
2018.

Upon the completion of the Acquisition (as defined in note 2)
on 1 December 2017, the Company changed its functional
currency and the Group changed the presentation currency of
its consolidated financial statements from Hong Kong Dollar
(“HK$”) to Renminbi (“‘RMB”) because, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”), this could better
reflect the Group’s business (majority of which is located in the
PRC) since then and could provide users with more
comparable financial information with the peers in similar
industry. Comparative figures of the financial statements of the
Company have been represented in RMB.

BREEEZERSEEGRA A (BIEA R
TRARAT) (AR A BREKBA
AFE [ AEE D REREEIMNLABR
NE EROREBHER AR A A
([BEAZFT)) ERET o RABFEMPFEE
b 31k & Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda ° 3 2 & 2 i 2
BEBTREHEPIONIRIKKNE241E
2408F c NRRZFBEB B EER
mMEMBAR K —HBERRETEREY
FERNMFEREFET

RRBZEEREREEERARRBELSE
BRAR([EEZE]D  ZRARAREBHER
REES((EBERARREDRIZAERA
A BERALLEZEHESR -

B—EFRHABZER_T—tF+—A
“t+tHBEBREEEE(EERMT2) K
& BREAFEMERRENR-Z—t
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On 1 December 2017, a very substantial acquisition and
reverse takeover of the Company involving a new listing
application was completed. The Company acquired the entire
issued share capital of Vivalink Limited, a company
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability, from Tongda (the
“Vendor”) and assumed the outstanding balance of
RMB335,821,000 owed by Vivalink Limited to the Vendor in
consideration of the issue of 6,415,060,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at the issue price of HK$0.22 per share (the
“Consideration Shares”) to the Vendor and the remaining
amount of HK$100,000,000 settled by cash (the “Acquisition”).
Vivalink Limited is an investment holding company which was
100% owned by the Vendor immediately before the completion
of the Acquisition. Vivalink Limited and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the property development in the PRC.
The details of the Acquisition were set out in the Company’s
circular dated 27 October 2017.

Prior to the completion of the Acquisition, the Company
engaged in the i) retail of fashion garments and wholesale
trading of raw materials and textile products in the PRC
through a wholly-owned subsidiary, UR Group Limited, a
limited company incorporated in the BVI, i) design, distribution
and sale of fashion apparels in the PRC through a wholly-
owned subsidiary, Alfreda Limited, a limited company
incorporated in the BVI, iii) construction materials trading
business in the PRC and iv) property investment in the PRC.
Immediately upon the completion of the Acquisition, UR Group
Limited and Alfreda Limited were disposed to independent
third parties at a cash consideration of HK$56.6 million and
HK$22.4 million, respectively. The considerations have been
substantially settled and the outstanding consideration
receivable of RMB4,723,000 at 31 March 2018 was included
in other receivable.

Prior to the Acquisition, Mr. Pan Weiming owned 1,080,000
shares of the Company, representing 0.08% of the issued
share capital of the Company. Upon completion of the
Acquisition, the Company allotted and issued the
Consideration Shares to the Vendor, which, together with Mr.
Pan Weiming, owned 6,416,140,000 share of the Company,
representing 61.32% of the issued share capital of the
Company and becomes the ultimate controlling shareholder of
the Company subsequent to the Acquisition. The Vendor, in
substance, acquired the construction materials trading
business and property investment business of the Company
through the Acquisition, which constitute businesses under
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 3 “Business
Combination”.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

RZE—+tF+=A—H ARAITK—
BHEFERNRBEEES R ETERE
RUEE - ARmmBEE(ER]) WEES
ERAF (REBHEB RS MK ZE
RAR)ZEEZITIRA - WEERBAER
RBEIBRBEBAZAEBEREGBARY
335,821,000t - REAZEITETR0.22
78 T [A) & 5 317 6,415,060,000 BE AN A 7]
AR ([RERS ) - #3100,000,0007 7T
LIRS EMTRESE] -BEBERAF
BIEER AT REEREEETK A
HEFZEHAE BBAERARKRENE
REIEZRFENREWERE - WESHE
FBEEHRARABHEE_ZT—LFTA
e o ol = W [

RUBEEETRAT - AR 1) BREEN B
A FUR Group Limited (R BH# B RS
EMAZZERAR) NP R ERETE
R EMR R EGERMEES i) BRE
A Tt B A 7] Alfreda Limited (IR 2 B # 8 2
HEAMRIZBERAR) NP EKERFE
BE - DEREE i RPERYEEMNE
SEBRIV) RPBIEEMEIRE - BRI
BE=1E5C k1% - UR Group Limited & Alfreda
Limited HEFBYF=H  BEREH 7
/556,600,000 7T & 22,400,000 JT ° X
BERAADELN MRZZT—NF=
A=T—"HBZARAEBENERREARE
4,723,000 T B AT A H Ath FEUGRIE o

RUEEIER] - EEFEALERES 1,080,000
BARRRIRG  BERARRBDEITRA
20.08% > RIKIEEIETEMK R - NARIAE
FlRERFTRERD  BEHERERERS
A5 6,416,140,000 f A A RIR% 15+ 48
ERARRBEBITRAZ61.32% @ BUIHE
FRWEBEREBR AN DR Z & &R
ReBREE FEBKESHERBANT
BMESEBRYMEREE  BRES
M EEREIREREH B TER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=A=+—HILFE

For accounting purpose, the Company is deemed to have
been acquired by Vivalink Limited which is considered as the
accounting acquirer. These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared as a continuation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Vivalink Limited and its subsidiaries
(the “Vivalink Group”) and accordingly:

(i) The assets and liabilities of the Vivalink Group are
recognised and measured at their carrying amounts;

(i)  The identified assets and liabilities of the Company and its
original subsidiaries are recognised at fair value at the date
of completion of the Acquisition and the Consideration
Shares allotted and issued to effect the Acquisition are
measured at the fair value of the equity consideration
deemed to be issued to the former shareholders of the
Company (the “Deemed Consideration”). Since the
shareholders of Vivalink Limited deemed to have issued
shares with a fair value in excess of the net assets
acquired or liabilities assumed by the Company, the
difference is recognised as goodwill and subject to
impairment assessment; and

(i) The comparative information presented in these
consolidated financial statements is restated to be that of
the Vivalink Group.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
Group has applied the reverse acquisition accounting under
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 3 to account for the
Acquisition. The results of the Company and its original
subsidiaries have been consolidated to the Vivalink Group’s
consolidated financial statements since the completion date of
the Acquisition and further details of the Acquisition and the
goodwill arising on the Acquisition are set out in note 33.
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The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s performance and financial positions for the current
and prior years and/or the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes in financial
assets if cash flows from those financial assets were, or future
cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing
activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
business; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;
(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
these items is provided in note 32. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 32, the application of
these amendments has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments!

HKFRS 16 |eases?®

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions’

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts!

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement?

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property"

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Except as described below, the Directors anticipate that the
application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations, will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in the
foreseeable future.
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HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
are:

° all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All
other financial assets are measured at their fair value at
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss;

° with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as fair value through profits or loss (“FVTPL”),
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as FVTPL is
presented in profit or loss; and
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° in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2018, the Directors
anticipate the following potential impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement

° Equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investment carried at fair value as disclosed in note 20:
these securities qualified for designation as measured at
FVTOCI under HKFRS 9, however, the fair value gains or
loss accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
will no longer be subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss under HKFRS 9, which is different from the current
treatment. This will affect the Group’s profit or loss and
other comprehensive income but will not affect total
comprehensive income. There is no fair value gains or
losses accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve of the Group at 1 April 2018;

° The derivative component of the convertible bonds
issued by the Group carried as at FVTPL as disclosed in
note 30: these financial liabilities qualified for designation
as measured at FVTPL under HKFRS 9, however, the
amount of change in the fair value of these financial
liabilities that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of those liabilities will be recognised in other
comprehensive income with the remaining fair value
change recognised in profit or loss. This is different from
the current accounting treatment under which the entire
change in fair value of the financial liabilities is recognised
in profit or loss; and

o Except for financial assets that are subject to expected
credit losses measurement, all other financial assets and
financial liabilities will continue to be measured on the
same bases as are currently measured under HKAS 39.
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Impairment

° In general, the Directors anticipate that the application of
the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in
earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised costs and other items that are
subject to the impairment provision upon application of
HKFRS 9 by the Group.

° Based on the assessment by the Directors, if the
expected credit loss model were to be applied by the
Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss to
be recognised by the Group as at 1 April 2018 would be
slightly increased as compared to the accumulated
amount recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to
expected credit losses provision on trade and other
receivables and amount due from an associate. Such
further impairment recognised under expected credit loss
model would increase the opening accumulated losses
and increased the deferred tax assets at 1 April 2018.

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for goods and services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The Directors have assessed the impact on application of
HKFRS 15 and anticipate an impact on revenue from the sale
of properties and the following areas:

The Group has considered all the relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether the property sales
contracts contain significant financing component, including
the difference between the amount of promised consideration
and the cash selling price of the property; and the combined
effect of the expected length of time between the Group
transferring the property to the customer and the customer
paying for the property and the prevailing interest rates in the
relevant market. The Group has applied the practical expedient
in HKFRS 15 and has not considered the financing component
of contracts which are expected to be completed within one
year from the date of payment made by customers. The
Directors estimated the amount of interest expense only to the
extent that a contract liability (deposits received for sale of
properties) is recognised in accounting for the contract with the
customers and by using a discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer reflecting the credit characteristics of the Group as
well as any collateral or security provided. The Directors expect
an adjustment to increase the opening accumulated losses
and inventory of properties and corresponding increase in
deposits received for sale of properties as at 1 April 2018.

Currently, the Group expensed off the costs associated with
obtaining the property sales contracts with customers. Under
the requirement of HKFRS 15, incremental costs of obtaining a
contract is eligible for capitalisation as deferred contract costs
if they meet certain criteria. Based on the assessment of the
Directors, the amount of deferred contract costs at 1 April
2018 was insignificant to the Group.
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In addition, the application of HKFRS 15 in future may result in
more disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors intend to apply the limited retrospective method
with cumulative effect of initial application recognised in
opening balance of equity at 1 April 2018.

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 “Leases” and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to
be recognised for all leases by lessee, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the
lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as
well as the impact of lease maodifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in
relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and interest portion which will be both
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

HEOh B R B B I A R AU 159
THE A B BRI T S5 -

E=ZEEREABREWE BRERME
ERBRENR T/ \FHA-—HzE=R
HRTAE SR FERR

EEMBHREEAEZ 165 /BN EELHE
ARHBARABAZ G RETTESIA
FEEN BEMBRSEIF16HFER
ERERRBRB G ERE 175 [HE] &
HHEARRE

RV REERF1FRIEFABRNEE
=ERAEPEVKENHERRE AL -
RERHEREKEEEMEN  KEME
HREHECERAAEASHRERH
o WHABABRMERERERERR
BENMHAEREZRAZA -

EREEENSEKAE - HERRKAR
(& T HISMESER SN ) B R 54T & KR (E &
Bt YHEHGFEREREMIELH
E - HERBENFRIFFNZBEXNZE
ENFREAE K HEABRSHA
ERAENFAR(EHEE)BEEFTZ
FEMELAE RRESRENEMS -
AEEARKEREREELMEZED
BRREWFEZHEEI i BANES
MKV RRERSARE MEAMBEER
ENFARINRLERERE - BAEE
MR ELERIF165R1Z - AEBHEHEE
SRECHAENFTNEREE RMNEEHS -
WIRBMERSRERS

HARASFTREAR  FEMBHREE
AIF16RABRE TR ST EUF 7R
HEASHERERTE  TESZLKEEA
HHEENEAKEHENMERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=A=+—HILFE

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of RMB12,041,000 as disclosed in note
38. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of RMB494,000 and refundable deposits
received of RMB4,173,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of
lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amount of such deposits may be
adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments are
considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be included in the
carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits received would be considered as
advance lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosures as indicated above
and the Directors anticipate that the application of the other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transferred at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

FEMEELAFEMAEEREMSL2EE
BRUARERZARD A ERZEELS
ZEELET S —HeURERRERT
NERRBELTH2EEMELE ZKE
F2mZBETT °

R AFEEREZREME A LR ERH
R EAFERERIIBRERGAREL
BETEME @ HETES TIAFAEILE
METDEERERFERS -

LS B BHREMS - X FEFERE
RFEFEZHABBAIBERREERBA
BB AV EFECEREELEDRE—
A BoREE= - FphT

s FABARBRERAUREAH
BHEREEXRBZERTISRE
CRIGHAE)

s FABABBERE-—AMEREZE
BRI ERIFREEXRETER
RRABE : &

s FEABRABRBREEXRBZIAT
B A BUE -

TEEHEEIN T

2018 & 3R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A8

.

B M BEHRRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 & Z =%

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

° has the power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has right, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that
do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to the
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair value,
the remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If
the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal (or any of the cash-generating
units within group of cash-generating units in which the Group
monitors goodwiill).

The Group’s policy for the goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate is described below.
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An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest in a financial asset within
the scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the
same basis as would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal or partial disposal of the relevant
associate.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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When a group entity transacts with an associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates, other similar allowances and sale-
related tax in the PRC.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

Sales of properties

Revenue from the sales of properties is recognised when the
properties are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied.

° the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transferred to buyers;

° neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over the properties are retained;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised when the
development of the relevant properties has been completed
and the properties have been delivered to the purchasers
pursuant to the sale and purchase agreements. Deposits
received from sale of properties prior to meeting the criteria for
revenue recognition are recorded as “deposits received for sale
of properties” under current liabilities.
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Property rentals

Rental income under operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

Sales of construction materials
Revenue from sales of construction materials is recognised
when the goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
apportionment basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset. Other than investment properties measured under fair
value model, such costs are recognised as an expenses on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
a lease includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property is accounted for as an
operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant lease payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is
generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance
leases.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of the entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group i.e.
Renminbi, using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees

(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “(loss) profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administration purposes,
are stated at cost less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

—NF=ZA=t—RALFE

BEEMEEERBEDNRESNAGSE
SEESBRPHERIHERFE - BED
R(RBER) RRBEHRACHRHOXEL
BERMmZHER(RBIE)

BEEHRBRABMNEEZFE  RRAKE
RBEHARAFHRUEAHNBEEEERA
BREEI T AMEEZBIBER

HABERARFERAFEZREMEZ
BERAM = - RIFZBRWKE - TRAIB
AYE < REENBRESEBHERIK
Bl - RIEMEXBAITE LB IR REER
MREAREMEANS ZBRE D LB
ZEEBEATE MIEEBHEHERBZRB
AT RIARREEEE -

BIHR MR FE RS IR 18 25 PO RERR - HEfie L B2
REMEEKEHERRERHER EE
BEE - EZBERT » A SRER BT 5
REMEERSIEERNERER  fiE
ﬂ%i‘%/\ﬁtﬁ%ﬂﬁéAmﬁﬁﬁﬁFiﬂﬂﬁ;ﬁ
BIESELEN IR - MRBEEFAETE
P2 BFTERIEA °

RELEEXIMHRERmEIRBRITEAEZ
M BEMREBERAR A E R RF
FERERRRERBR(MAE)JIEE -

FEDINMAFT AT ERFEHAMBEEEXA
BRI EREE LB ARRER - Bt ERF
B MRBEIMTENENSREHRR
A MAEMGFESHcFBZALIRE
DR

M BERRZEBEENL SR FERFE
8 A& B 8 5 2R SRAC T ) 25 R 4% L 1
R HEXERYE  BERREEEES
Z AW RSB IR EMSRIBEE
EREEZBE - WTRERRER -
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Investment properties are property held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included
in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Properties under development for sale and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account the
price ultimately expected to be realised, less anticipated selling
expenses and costs to completion, if applicable.

The cost of properties under development for sale comprises
land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised
according to the Group’s accounting policy and directly
attributable expenses incurred during the development period.
On completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets (“AFS”) and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables or (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS
financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Dividends on AFS equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries, long-term
guarantee deposit, trade and other receivables, amount due
from an associate, restricted bank deposits and bank balances
and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline

in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.
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Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When the AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group entities are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2018

4,

TREEE)

EREEBE (&)

IR BERATEZEREEMS
WEBBRBENERARBAMRD - MARE
BMAOGEEE LRBRANEBRRELELE
AR RIZAC R CRERBERER
BaTUARE  HEZEENRERELDE
BZREETSEBRERRER 2CH#
SHRA

LA ERAREMS » KATR B E
RZBEBEISEEBRRED - 2 FE
RBEBRRE ZEMENGERNEMEE
W iR YRAEREEMHFHEEHERT -

SHEERERTIR
SEERET 2 CHAERERTANR
BRIV AHNLZHEZABR R R & &
HTAZEENEASRARNER -

= 2

#mTH
BETAAERALECNBEREER
B BEFEGERZEIREGH - &E
BT 2R T ERWRELZ RS FKIE
BREBEEITNAER ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts
due to immediate holding company and a related company
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds contain debt and derivative components
A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments is a
conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent
periods, the debt component of the convertible bonds is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The derivative component is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the debt and derivative components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating
to the derivative component are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt component
are included in the carrying amount of the debt portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair value and, if not designated at fair value
through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at the higher
of: (i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and (i) the
amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
each reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

The Group allocates portions of land and development costs to
properties held and under development for sale. As certain of
the Group’s property development projects are developed and
completed by phases, the budgeted development costs of the
whole project are dependent on the estimate on the outcome
of total development. Based on the experience and the nature
of the development undertaken, the management makes
estimates and assumptions, concerning the future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Given
the uncertainties involved in the property development
activities, the related actual results may be higher or lower than
the amount estimated at the end of the reporting period. Any
change in estimates and assumptions would affect the Group’s
operating performance in future years.
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The assessment of the net realisable value of the properties
under development for sale involves, inter-alia, considerable
analysis of current market price of properties of a comparable
standard and location and construction costs to be incurred to
complete the development based on existing asset structure
and construction material price lists. If the actual net realisable
value of the underlying properties under development for sale
are more or less than expected as a result of change in market
condition and/or significant variation in the budgeted
development cost, reversal of or provision for impairment
losses may result. The carrying amount of properties under
development for sale at 31 March 2018 is RMB3,506,781,000
(2017: RMB1,902,278,000).

In addition, management estimates the allowance for inventory
of completed properties held for sale with reference to the
existing market environment, the sales performance in previous
years and estimated net realisable value of the properties, i.e.
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. A specific
allowance for completed properties held for sale is made if the
estimated net realisable value of the properties is lower than its
carrying amount. If the actual net realisable value of the
completed properties held for sale are less than expected as a
result of change in market condition, provision for impairment
losses may result. The carrying amount of the completed
properties held for sale at 31 March 2018 is RMB251,133,000
(2017: RMB483,773,000).

The Group’s investment properties are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The Directors assigned the
Group financial controller to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and key inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
independent qualified external valuers to perform the valuation.
The Group financial controller works closely with the
independent qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs to the model.
The Group financial controller reports the findings to the
Directors to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of
investment properties.
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The Group uses valuation techniques that include key inputs
that are not based on observable market data to estimate the
fair value. Further details about the valuation techniques, key
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value are set out in note 18.

Investment properties of RMB989,957,000 is stated at fair
value based on the valuation performed by independent
qualified external valuers. In determining the fair value, the
independent qualified external valuers have based on valuation
methods which involve certain estimates of market conditions.
In relying on the valuation report, the Directors have exercised
their judgments and are satisfied that the assumptions used in
the valuation are reflective of the current market conditions.
Changes to these assumptions would result in changes in the
fair value of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
would be recognised in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds issued by the Company are not traded in an
active market and the respective fair value is determined by
valuation techniques to estimate the fair value. The use of
methodologies, models and assumptions in pricing and valuing
convertible bonds i.e. expected volatility requires varying
degrees of judgement by management, which may result in
different fair values and results. The changes of the key inputs
to the Binomial Option Pricing model for the estimation of the
fair value of derivative components of convertible bonds
detailed in note 29 might cause a material adjustment to their
carrying amounts within the next twelve months.

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of the tax varies amongst
different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC and certain
projects of the Group have not finalised their LAT calculations
and payments with the local tax authorities in the PRC.
Accordingly, significant estimate is required in determining the
amount of land appreciation and its related income tax
provisions. The Group recognised the LAT based on
management’s best estimates. The final tax outcome could be
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, and
these differences will impact the income tax expense and the
related income tax provisions in the periods in which such tax
is finalised with local tax authorities.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses and deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Significant management estimation is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. As at 31 March 2018,
deferred tax assets of approximately RMB7,055,000 (2017:
RMB1,615,000) have been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position. In case where the
actual future profits generated are less than expected, reversal
of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in
the profit or loss.

REVENUE

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations is analysed as
belows:
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2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETIT

(restated)

(F&&E75)

(unaudited)

(REEER)

Sales of properties HEWE 553,257 602,607
Rental income from investment properties & & #1215 S WA 202 =
553,549 602,607

Note: The related outgoings for generating rental income of investment
properties are insignificant to the Group.
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Prior to completion of the Acquisition, for the purpose of
resources allocation and segment performance assessment,
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) (i.e. the board of
directors of the Vivalink Group) reviewed the overall results and
financial position of the Vivalink Group as a whole prepared
based on same accounting policies set out in note 4. The
property development projects which are mainly located in
Hunan province, the PRC, and their revenue is primarily derived
from the sales of properties, and subject to common risk and
returns. The directors of Vivalink Limited considered all the
Vivalink Group’s property development projects have similar
characteristics in terms of construction process, class of
customers and distribution method and are under similar
economic conditions and subject to similar regulatory policies.
Therefore, the management considered that the Vivalink Group
only had one reportable segment.

Subsequent to completion of the Acquisition on 1 December
2017, other than property projects located in Hunan province,
the Group also owns certain commercial properties in Fujian
province and acquired investment properties in Hong Kong.
Information reported to the CODM (i.e. the executive directors
of the Company), for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment, is based on the location of the
property projects. Specifically, the Group’s reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 are Hunan province, Fujian province
and Hong Kong. Each reportable segment includes a number
of companies engaging in property development and
investment, each of which is considered as a separate
operating segment by CODM. For segment reporting, these
individual operating segments within the same province or
region have been aggregated into a single reportable segment
as the Directors considered the property companies located in
the same province or region are subject to common risks and
returns.

The segment information does not include any amounts for the
discontinued operation, which are described in details in note
12. Comparative figures are restated to conform with current
year’'s segment presentation.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
from continuing operations by reportable segments.

For the year ended 31

March 2018

Continuing operations

PEER #)

DHEWARELE

AT ARARESBEDAEB RS HE
QARSI A 2 2B AT o

BE-—ZEZ—-N\F=A=+—HLEE
BB

Hunan Fujian Segment
Province Province  Hong Kong total  Elimination Total
ey BEY E# PEMEE g @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥Tn AR¥TR AR®TR AR¥TR AR%Tx
Segment revenue (external)  HHUA (ShR) 553,257 76 216 553,549 - 553,549
Segment profit Gkl 182,199 6 216 182,421 - 182,421
Impairment loss on goodwill ~ HERERE (4,543,433)
Change in fair valug of HRREFITE
derivative component of Brz AT EES
convertible bonds (182,812)
Professional feeinrelationto ~ WEZEIEHEELER
the Acquisition (9,349)
Share of loss of an associate  JE(E—REt& A RIE R (250)
Finance costs BERA (6,925)
Bank interest income RATFIBIA 1,252
Exchange gain R 20,148
Unallocated expenses RAWAZ (7,956)
Loss before taxation B AE 1S
(continuing operations) (BELZER) (4,546,904)

—‘ AO FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oEER®)
For the year ended 31 March 2017 (unaudited)(restated) BE_ZE—tH&=HA=1+—HLEE
(KRBT (KREF)
Continuing operations BEREEK
Hunan
Province Total
HEAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

Segment revenue (external) DEUWA (FNFR) 602,607 602,607
Segment profit K8 ) 141,729 141,729
Professional fee in relation to the Acquisition W iEETEHBEEXE A (13,645)
Finance costs B R (12,296)
Bank interest income HRITH EWA 753
Unallocated expenses RABLFSZ (4,404)
Profit before taxation (continuing operations) B& i B i 7 (3548 48 44 2£75) 112,137
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the %§%ﬁ§52@§+ﬂlﬁéﬁiﬁﬁﬁ4?ﬁﬁ$%@
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. E{rﬂlﬁﬁ [ o 9 %8m M5 ﬂiﬁ fe SR AT IER
Segment profit represents the profit earned incurred by each A ESMe  BERERRE - AARE
segment without allocation of central administration costs, FOTER D 2 R EEE - ”515%%15\*@ %?
directors’ emoluments, impairment loss on goodwill, change in EXER  EBi6—XBEQREE R
fair value of derivative component of convertible bonds, FEWA EEHQE&@§W$HIJ%Q¥E\
professional fee in relation to the Acquisition, share of loss of Ffr E\%HM_TE Moo gt 5B Hﬁﬁﬁ&#ﬁ%ﬁ
an associate, bank interest income, exchange gain and finance AEIBELERRERBRZE -

costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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ARE B IS R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER®E)
Segment assets and liabilities PEEEHEAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities LRBIRAREDHE NS AEB 2 EER
by reportable segment: BESM:
Segment assets PEEE
At 31 March 2018 R-E-NF=H=1—H
Hunan Fujian Segment
Province Province  Hong Kong total  Elimination Total
HEE R E# PEMEE g @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARMTn AR®TR ARMTR AR®TR ARET:R

Segment assets NEEE 3,836,832 8,366 1,081,407 4,926,605 - 4,926,605
Assets related to BRIMEEER
discontinued operation BHEE 301
Unallocated AOEE 934,054
Consolidated total assets GABERA 5,360,960
At 31 March 2017 (unaudited) (restated) R-IE—+F=HA=+—H(FKKEEZ)
(& EZI)
Hunan
Province Total
A @t
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Segment assets DA E 2,406,980 2,406,980
Unallocated AOE 426,940
Consolidated total assets A BERE 2,833,920

—‘ A 2 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— N\ =A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 2EEBER @
At 31 March 2018 R-ZZE—NEF=A=+—H
Hunan Fujian Segment
Province Province  Hong Kong total  Elimination Total
ey BES &b PEAT e st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®Tn AR%Tn ARETrn AR%Tx AR¥Tn
Segment liabilties ABEE 1,861,682 63 121,524 1,983,269 - 1,983,269
Liabilties related to BRIHEERT
discontinued operations EHERE 825
Unallocated AOE 3,588,301
Consolidated total liabilties 474 & &4 5,572,395
At 31 March 2017 (unaudited) (restated) RZZ—tF=A=Z1+—H(KKER)
(&E5)
Hunan
Province Total
N IETRE) st
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETIT
Segment liabilities SEAaE 421,975 421,975
Unallocated R fe 2,084,238
Consolidated total liabilities e BaEEE 2,506,213

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
interest in an associate, available-for-sale investment,
deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries, bank
balances and cash, deferred tax assets, amount due
from an associate, long-term guarantee deposit,
restricted bank deposits and prepaid income tax and
unallocated corporate assets of headquarter.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than amounts due to a related company and immediate
holding company, income tax payable, borrowings,
convertible bonds including debt and derivative
components, deferred tax liabilities and unallocated
corporate liabilities of headquarter.

RERSBERBELRSBEROEERMNE -

. FEAESEELENE BT
R—REE AT 225 - AHHER

B WEBHBARZENETR  RiT
‘HMRE  BERAEE  BR—
REERRRE  RBARESR  XR
HERIT IR KB ST AR AR B
BERBERE -

s MEBRBOIEERENE ETERE
FEW —REAE R R R EEIER A RR
B BNMBH B8 ATRERES
(BREBRITERD) BREHREE
EARARDEAMARALE -

BREEZEREBERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e R R R I EE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 Bl Z —Z—\F=A=+—HILFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Continuing operations
At 31 March 2018

TEER (#)

BE-—ZEZ—-N\F=A=+—HLEE
BESEEK
R=ZEBE-NE=A=+—H

Hunan Fujian Segment
Province Province  Hong Kong total  Unallocated Total
ik g BA PEE KB ait
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR AR®TR AR%®Trt AR®Trn ARETR
Amounts included in the measure 5+ A2 B4 73 B8 5%
of segment profit or loss or PEAEHEZHE
segment assets:
Additions to non-current sEraaEgmfE)
assets (note) 4,278 8,736 1,078,835 1,091,849 120,000 1,211,849
Depreciation e 1,109 32 - 1,141 182 1,328
At 31 March 2017 (unaudited) (restated) REZZE—tF=A=1+—H(RLER) (&
251)
Hunan
Province Unallocated Total
WA KoL 5T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT
Amounts included in the measure 5t A 534854 1| 5k B 1B 3¢
of segment profit or loss or DREESEZRIA
segment assets:
Additions to non-current JERENE AL I (M)
assets (note) 732 a7 779
Depreciation e 1,492 181 1,673

Note: Non-current assets excluded those relating to discontinued
operation and excluded financial instruments and deferred tax
assets.

The analysis of the Group’s revenue by different types is set
out in note 6. The analysis of the Group’s revenue from
discontinued operation is set out in note 12.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— N\ =A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

The Group’s operations are located in the mainland China and
Hong Kong. Information about the Group’s revenue from
continuing operations from external customers is presented
based on location of the operations. Information about the
Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the
geographical location of the assets.

7 BE R ()

AEBEBURPEAMKREE - BEX
SEBEREXRBRAIARELZKRAE
MZEGEHEMNERY - BEASEIER
BEECEMZEEMEMEMESZD -

Revenue from

external customers
for the year ended 31 March

Non-current
assets as at 31 March

BE=A=1T—-HLFE R=A=t—HZ
REMREF ZWA FRBEE

2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-N\FE ZE—tF ZE-NF ZZT—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT AR®TT ARETT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(RE&E%) (REERZ)
(restated) (restated)
(=51) (&=51)
Mainland China Hh B A 3 553,333 602,607 13,931 4,419
Hong Kong 55 216 = 1,078,835 =
553,549 602,607 1,092,766 4,419

Non-current assets excluded those relating to discontinued
operation and excluded financial instruments, available-for-sale
investment, interest in an associate, deferred tax assets,
deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries, long-term
guarantee deposit and restricted bank deposits.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the sales of properties
to a PRC entity independent of the Group was
RMB199,120,000, which was more than 10% of the revenue
of the Group. Except for this, there was no customer who
accounted for over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for
the current and prior year.

FRDEETERAFEDRIERERH
BEE NIRRT A  AIHEER
B R—ZXBERRZED BREREAE
EWBEHNBRRAZENTE RERE
& RERHIWITER °

BE T )\F=A=t—BLFE @A
—RBURNAKEZFEERHENR
HERE A AR 199,120,000 © ALK E
WAEL10% ° BRitb 240 » RNEE R EFH
BEPIEAEEAKAE10%

EREBREZEREEARQE
2018 F 3k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Re PR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

8. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8. HfhWm AR Wz

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)
(F&&E75)

Continuing operations: BESEEL

Rental income from temporary lease of EEHEREREE R I
completed properties held for sales FECR AL ON 1,233 2,990
Interest income on bank deposits IRITIF A BULA 1,252 753
Exchange gain, net M e - R 20,148 -
Others Hih 200 898
22,833 4,641
9. OTHER EXPENSES 9. H#EH

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+t5F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
(unaudited)
(REEZ)
(restated)
(F&=75))

Continuing operations: BHEREEK
Surcharge for late payment of taxes i HR L I hn B 126 1,921
Professional fee in relation to the Acquisition WiEETEHBEEXE R 9,349 13,645
Other H 10 20
9,485 15,586

—‘ Aé FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— N\ =A=+—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. A& R A
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFIT
(unaudited)
(REEZ)
(restated)
(F&&E5)
Continuing operations: BELSEEL
Interests on ATZIBZHE
— bank borrowings — IRITEE 1,042 59,122
— other loans — HMWER 137,983 135,952
— convertible bonds — AR ES 5,883 =
144,908 195,074
Less: amount capitalised in properties B RNGERRPYERTER
under development for sale 2 FIAR (137,983) (182,778)
6,925 12,296
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FIEHAX
2018 2017
—E-N\E —TE—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFIT
(unaudited)
(REEZ)
(restated)
(F&&E75)
Current tax: BVEARR IR -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) R EMSHE ((REMER]) 36,050 36,931
LAT + I (E R 41,917 23,547
77,967 60,478
Deferred tax (note 31) EERTE (F5E31) 1,057 (2,454)
79,024 58,024

For the year ended 31 March 2018, no provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated financial
statements as the Hong Kong subsidiaries incurred tax losses ERERE R

during the year.

B A

BE_T—)\F=A=t—HLFE" H
REAZTEMBERAREEVAEE 8L
FH AR R ARSI -

BREEZEREBERAR
2018 F 3k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re PR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 &2 —Z— N\F=/A=+—HItFE

11.

143

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017, no provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated financial
statements as the income of the Group neither arises in nor is
derived from Hong Kong.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the requirement
set forth in the relevant PRC tax law and regulations. LAT has
been provided at ranges of progressive rate of the appreciation
value, with certain allowable exemptions and deductions.

The income tax expense for both years can be reconciled to
the (loss) profit before taxation per consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

11.

FIEHmx (e

BE-T— ti_ﬁz+—5¢¢§'m
RAEE 2 WAL IR EREETIERE
B QUBREG AR HREHREAR
BB -

RIEPEARAMBERMAERA(EE
PREHUE]D) R EEMETOEE RGNS - &
BB AR ZHER25% °

TR EN B ERE BB ERRA
HPTE R E (A5t o T ISED B RILER
MRERETBERERE MEETAE
FrER R NR R

ZMEFEZAERAX A E2EARER
Hofth 2 [ Yo a8 3R PR BR B AT (518 4 ) ¥
BRA0T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —t5F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARKETT
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)
(F&&E75)
(Loss) profit before taxation MrFE AT (518 m A (4,546,904) 112,137
Tax at PRC EIT rate of 25% (note) BRPBEEMEHE25%E
ZEIE (MisE) (1,136,726) 28,034
LAT T I E R 41,917 23,547
Tax effect on LAT IR ER 2 B2 (10,479) (5,887)
Tax effect of share of result of an associate &5 — K E ‘& A A %45 zmjﬂ% &z 63 _
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for — NE[HIFFI % 7 B iS5/ &
tax purpose 1,180,195 7,747
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRIERIEER 2 Mg & 1,029 781
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAT IR E R =5 2 MG &
differences not recognised 1,089 2,129
Withholding tax on undistributed R BB A RIR D s M 2 TEHI AR
profits of the PRC subsidiaries 1,936 1,673
Income tax expenses for the year REEZMEHRFX 79,024 58,024
Note: The PRC statutory tax rate is used as PRC is the jurisdiction where MizE : AP BEEEHESHNAEB RN EB

the operation of the Group is substantially based.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— N\ =A=+—HIFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 12. ERIEKEEK
Subsequent to completion of the Acquisition on 1 December R-TE—+F+- A —H=RkKEEEE
2017, the Directors decided to focus on the property BERFEITNMELERBNREER  Z
development and investment business, which is considered as EBEWEAAREB 2 ROERE  MEME
the core business of the Group and the construction materials SEBEE_T—N\F—A=+—HEK
trading operation has been ceased since 31 January 2018. |FEIE o
The results of the construction material trading operation for —E—+HF+-_A—BE-_ZE—NF=HA
the current period from 1 December 2017 to 31 March 2018, =+ —HIEABRZEVESEBEED
which have been included in the consolidated statement of FAGEEREEMETIKZEEK X275
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, were as NN
follows:
From
1 December
2017
to 31 March
2018
—E—+tF
+=A—HBZ
—E-N\EF
=A=+—8
RMB’000
AR®T T
Revenue WA 30,159
Cost of sales SHE A (29,680)
Gross profit EF 479
Other income and gains R NS € 51
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (535)
Administrative expenses 1TER S (421)
Loss for the period AR SR (426)

E%@%}%Eﬁ%;@ﬁgég "‘ AQ



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Re PR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 & Z =%

—NF=ZA=t—RALFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 12. CRIEREER &)
Loss for the period from discontinued operations includes the ORI EEB 7 ANBABEREBE Y&
following: 8 -
From
1 December
2017
to 31 March
2018
—E2—tF
+=ZBA—HZE
—ZE-N\F
=A=+-8
RMB’000
ARETT
Staff costs BT
Staff salaries excluding retirement BETI#He (TEEBERKEFEID
benefit contributions 328
Retirement benefit contributions IRIRAR AR 8
336
The construction materials trading operation contributes RZBE—+tF+_A—B=_ZT—N\&F=

insignificant operating, investing and financing cash flows to
the Group during the period from 1 December 2017 to 31

March 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— N\ =A=+—HIFE

13. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. AFE (EHB) #=F
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREFIT
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)
(F&&E5)
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived ARG (EHE) 3 K Jh &R (GHA)
at after charging (crediting): THBIBEER
Auditors’ remuneration ZE BN < 1,738 -
Cost of properties for sale included in STASHER A Z FFEMERK A
cost of sales 327,356 414,929
Depreciation of property, VI BB KRBT E
plant and equipment 1,323 1,673
Minimum lease payments under KEHER T RERERNK
operating leases 1,610 1,384
Staff costs BT
Staff salaries and allowances BT #H& NERL 14,459 13,302
Retirement benefit contributions BRRIEF TR 704 663
Total staff costs, excluding BIRABRE(TREIEEZMHE)
directors’ remuneration 15,163 13,965
Less: amount capitalised to properties B RNGERRPYERTER
under development for sale Z I (4,277) (4,607)
10,886 9,358

E%@%}%ﬁ%zﬁﬁzgg "‘ 6"‘



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE SRR MR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

14%$‘ﬁéﬁigﬁﬁA§2%

RIFER L ARR R R RMRDIHE 2 AF
EEEREBTBRABZFHMAT

Salaries Performance Retirement
Directors’ and related scheme
fees allowances bonus contributions Total
HERREHH BRGTE
EEHE  HeREH 2L =% @t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BitzE ARETn AR®Tr AR%BTn AR®Tr AR%Txn
Executive Directors YITES
Mr. Pan Weiming EERTE 1 - 119 - - 119
Mr. Pan Jungang aaC s ke 1 - 691 95 21 807
Ms. Chen Weihong BRI L 1 - 119 - - 119
Mr. Pan Haoran BERTE 5 - 70 - - 70
Mr. Li Jinrong EE TS 1 - 119 - - 119
Ms. Wu Jihong Rt 2 - 685 39 17 ™4
Mr. Wu Yang RERE 2 - 107 - 107
Mr. Tang Kwok Hung BB E 3 - 120 - 125
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith RENKE 4 - - - - -
Sub-total Nt - 2,030 134 43 2,207
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick BRELHSE 33 - - - 33
Mr. Yuan Chee Lap, Carl REMEE 1 33 - - - 33
Mr. Yang Xiaoping B NERAE 1 33 - - - 33
Dr. Cheung Wai Bun, Charles J.P. REMWEL 2 29 - - - 29
Mr. Xie Tom AR E 4 - - - - -
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BERLE 4 - - - - -
Sub-total Nt 128 - - - 128
128 2,030 134 43 2,335
Notes: PE -
1. The directors were appointed on 1 December 2017. 1. EERNE—tF+-A—BEZE-
2. The directors were appointed on 14 December 2017. 2. EER T —tFT A THAESF-
3. The director resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 1 December 3. BER-ZT—tHF+-A—-BEHETBRAR
2017. BT o
4. The directors resigned on 1 December 2017. 4. EEN_T—+F+-A—HEHE-
5. The director was appointed on 1 December 2017 and resigned on 4 &, BEEN_FT—LF+_A-RAEZRT &R
June 2018. —T-N\FERNAMBEHE -

Mr. Pan Weiming’s emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the chief executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.
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14.

15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND CHIEF 14. E5 - EERTEITBRAEZF
EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) M)
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown BT IERTES 2 ENEZ SR EE
above were for their services as directors of the Company. RN BESFMIRHE 2R ©
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the R EE KA ENKENEARTES
Company prior to the completion of the Acquisition are not Z2EHMIT EAFAGEERMNEMEEmES
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and R -BERIBEHIEATIEREEZ ZAA
comprehensive income. The performance related bonus is RIEBETE -
based on the individual performance of the directors.
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief RAFERN MEEBEFTHEETHRA
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during ERR R E IR REHNZ T8 -
the year.
Details of the five highest paid individuals of the Group who are PREEEAN KREBRAZLIWIERQARE
not the directors of the Company during both years are as EVESHATHEBOT
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)
(ge&E5)
Salaries and allowances 4 NEEL 1,569 1,798
Performance related bonus HAZR IR EMA 2 TEAT 266 339
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 3K 39 72
1,874 2,209
The remunerations of each of the five highest paid individuals HE_Z—\GR-_ZE—+tF=A=+—
during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 are within HIEFE: AEGEasm ALTEEZHMH
HK$1,000,000. 741,000,000 87T AR ©
During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no HE_Z—\GR-_ZE—+tF=A=+—
emolument was paid by the Group to any of the directors of HIEFE  AEBWHERAARAREAES
the Company, five highest paid individual of the Group as an AEBRE TR AL HEMEBB - £
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as BEZFMAREBE SR INARNE B K2 48
compensation for loss of office. DEIERBEBAEE -
DIVIDENDS 15. K&

No dividend was paid to or proposed for shareholders of the
Company during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017,
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period.

BE_Z— )\ _ZB—+tF=RA=+—
AIEFE  BEARNARBRRINHESR
EARE - BHEHARARITEZZEEMA

BB e

EREBREZEREEARQE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re PR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

16. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE B (58 ZF

SHEARARES AR SRS RS (6
18) BRI TY A TR A R |

16.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

(Loss) earnings figures are calculated as follows: (B BREFTEDT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)
(F&&E75)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to RRBEE ANERARFEE
owners of the Company (E518) & 7 (4,626,354) 54,113
Less: Loss for the year from B BRI R E S 2 A FEEE
discontinued operation (426) -
(Loss) earnings for purpose of basic and FIRELEEBTRERR
diluted (loss) earnings per share from (BB anNms .z
continuing operations (B8E)&F (4,625,928) 54,113
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+t5F
(unaudited)
(REEZ)
(restated)
(F&=75))
Weighted average number of ordinary MEBREAREERNME 2
shares for the purpose of basic and TSR A% I 192X
diluted earnings per share 7,757,318,810  6,415,060,000

AEEE_Z-/\F=ZA=+—HLFE
BRERNEBEMBROMEFEHHTI2E
PRUBERET 2 EBREE RRKES
AR BEITHEIN ERRBBEE

The weighted average number of shares used for the purpose
of calculating basic loss per share for the year ended 31 March
2018 is determined by reference to the number of ordinary
shares issued for the Acquisition and the number of ordinary
shares outstanding after completion of the Acquisition.

HEBRE-F—LF=A=T-ALTE
SREABFIF BB INETFHHTIEE
PRI EER T HBREE T -

The weighted average number of shares used for the purpose
of calculating basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2017 is determined by reference to the number of
ordinary shares issued for the Acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 &2 -~ — \F=A=1+—HItFE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share from continuing and discontinued operations attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic
and diluted (loss) earnings per share

2 (E8) &BF|

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the basic and diluted
loss per share for the discontinued operation is RMB(0.005)
cents per share, based on the loss for the year from for the
discontinued operation of RMB426,000 and the denominators
detailed above for both basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 March 2018 does not assume the conversion of the
Company’s outstanding convertible bonds since their assumed
exercise would result in decrease in loss per share from
continuing operations.

JF SARNRHA ANELEESEEBKLD
IEREERERER RS (BE) B
EMTE'J%&F%%@E 3

2017
—t5F
RMB’000
ARETT
(unaudited)
(CREEEZ)
(restated)
(F&&E5)

PREREAR R E (R BRmS

54,113

PR B E XL S RERN R #
& (BR) BFRAEMER -

@:I:—? NEF=ZRA=1T—BLFE"

i“‘**%ﬂ“‘tﬂxﬁ$&1§ﬁ7§§ﬁﬁﬁtﬁx
}\EM(0.00S) R TI A B AR R TS
ZARFEEEE AR 426,000 7T M | XFTEF
A EERERNNEE(BR) BMAAD
BREE-

AEEE—T-N\F=-A=1T—HLFE
tﬂxﬁﬁ/ﬁ%?@lﬁﬁjmiﬁﬁﬁ ALZ AR
TEABREES  RESBRRITESER
FREKEXBEBRERRD -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE SRR MR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% - BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold Motor fixture and
Buildings improvement vehicles  equipment Total
B -
B¥ HE%E AE KERRE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
COST A
At 1 April 2016 RZE—RFNA—A

(unaudited) (restated) (REER) (REF)) 1,343 3,090 3,568 4,488 12,489
Additions NE = — - 779 779
Disposals HE = = (747) = (747)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=A=+—H

(unaudited) (restated) (RE&ER) (KLET) 1,343 3,090 2,821 5,267 12,521
Additions NE - 265 80 324 669
Acquisttion of subsidiaries (note 34) Yt /& 22 &) (M7 34) 95,738 - 3,575 34 99,347
Acquisition of the Company v NG EEReR)

(note 33) 1,460 282 - 134 1,876
Disposals k= - (869) - (1,013) (1,882)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=A=+—H 98,541 2,768 6,476 4,746 112,531
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Ziti7&

At 1 April 2016 RZZE—"EMA—HB

(unaudited) (restated) (REEZ) (REF)) 181 2,180 2,797 1,981 7,139
Charge for the year AEEZH 62 710 249 652 1,673
Elimination on disposals HE R - - (710) - (710)
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—tF=A=1+—AH

(unaudited) (restated) (REER) (REF)) 243 2,890 2,336 2,633 8,102
Charge for the year AEELH 64 424 256 579 1,323
Elimination on disposals HE R - (823) - (145) (968)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=A=+—H 307 2,491 2,592 3,067 8,457
CARRYING VALUE BEE
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=A=+—H 98,234 277 3,884 1,679 104,074
At 31 March 2017 RZF—tF=A=+-A

(unaudited) (restated) (REER) (REF)) 1,100 200 485 2,634 4,419
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated using the straight-line method after taking into
account of their estimated residual values at the following rates
per annum:

3%-5%
Over the shorter of the term of
lease, or 3 years

Buildings
Leasehold improvement

Motor vehicles 20%-25%
Furniture, fixture and 10%-50%
equipment

The Group has pledged the buildings with carrying value of
approximately RMB95,738,000 (2017: nil) to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. V% - BMERRXE @)

bk - BE REEE B KR REMGE
RIBERABROIZATFRFERE

¥ 3%-5%

HEXE MAEFHE=F
(B E %)

E 20%—25%

R KENERME 10%-50%

AEE D EHREELN A ARKE5,738,000
T(ZZE—+F:B|)2EF EALAEE
TERIRITRVE 2 I -

18. REWMZE

Completed
investment
properties
BRIRENWE
RMB’000
AREFIT

Completed properties, at fair value BRI - A FENIER
At 1 April 2017 (unaudited) RZZE—tFMA—H (REFEZ) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34) Ue BB BB A 7] (Bi=E34) 983,097
Acquisition of the Company (note 33) WA A 7] (T 3E33) 6,860
At 31 March 2018 R-E—NF=ZA=+—H 989,957

Unrealised gains on investment
properties included in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income

HARABHREMRERERY
18 R B 2

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or intended to earn rentals in future or for
capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

The investment properties are situated in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

AEEMERBEEHEREUARDRESR
KT BN B RRBEEREEREERE
ZOERBRAATEERGE A DE
RN BREDE

REMRUNFBERES

EREBREZEREEARQE
2018 F 3k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P mARM T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 &/ Z—Z—N\F=A=+—HItFE

As at 31 March 2018, the fair value of the Group’s completed
investment properties of RMB989,957,000 was arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group, which have
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

The fair value was grouped under level 3 and was determined
based on the investment approach, by considering the
capitalised rental income derived from the existing tenancies
with due provision for any reversionary income potential of the
property interests. For the properties which are currently not
rented out, the valuation was based on capitalisation of the
hypothetical and reasonable market rents with a typical lease
term. The key inputs in valuing the investment properties are
the term yield, reversionary yield and market rent of
comparable properties. The term yield and reversion yield are
determined by reference to the yields derived from analysing
the sales transactions of similar properties in Fujian Province,
the PRC and Hong Kong and adjusted to take into account the
market expectation from property investors to reflect factors
specific to the Group’s investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s investment properties with
carrying amount of RMB983,097,000 were pledged to banks
to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

R-Z—-—NF=A=+—8 "&EED %
TREWE 2 N FEAEARE 989,957,000
T W EREAEETEBEREEBA
HERRABRBEI AEDEETHE
N HER B A AR BEEGEMATE
THEERE -

ZRFEIAZ=ZR  HREBEBRY
EERTMEEERBAGERGEZRA
MOMBEBREARAZEEWAREKRR
BAETE -HREMEELBEZYENS
MEEESKHRABEERRZBRE R
EEMEHSRTELS - REMEMGEM
REZHABBERAELEMEZFHK
aX ERRAEETERS FHKE
EREFWRaRDE2EREEEZELE
BREMREEXIHDITABREXREE

W RMEREE 2R RRIEL S
B URRAEEREMEZHERSE

EHYENTEE MY RS NRER
BIHBATRR -

RZE—NF=ZA=+—"H ' A&£BEM@
B A AR 983,097,000 T2 REMEDH
HFRT EARNEEERETRE 2K
# o

TEBIAMDARERSRENES A
ST {8 (2 T R s (A 2 A )
1R A TE 52 TR A BE 2 TREE
ERATENESHEFBATEBMRY
HH o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE PR

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continueqd)

Investment properties
held by the Group

AREFERENE

Fair value as
at 31 March Fair value
2018 Hierarchy
RZE-NE
ZB=t+-H
ZAYE ATEER
RMB'000
ARETT

Valuation techniques Significant

and key inputs unobservable inputs  Range
HERHER EXFTRE

IZHAHE BAHE 8B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— N\ =A=+—HIFE

18. REWZE &)

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

FTREEABAS
AV EBBE

(Office units, car parking Spaces
and signboards areas
in Hong Kong
IREBZHAZEN - BBl
REEHE

Commercial properties in
Fujian Province, the PRC
RPERRE 2 BENE

983,007 Level 3
224

6,800 Level3
=1

- Investment approach 1.
-key inputs are term yield, 1.

reversionary yield and
market rent of
comparable properties.
- k&%
- FERAIBATELR

MR FMRER . 2
ERbaERmERS -2

- Investment approach 1,
—key inputs are term yigld, 1.

reversionary yield and
market rent of
comparable properties.
- k&%
- IERARERTANLR

nE ERNEE . 2
EENEXRmERS 2

Term yield 2.25% — 4.50%

b=

Reversionary yield ~ 2.75% — 5.00%
EEhaE

Market rent
(RMB/sgm/month)
mERE(AR
®/Th%/R)

362 — 3,284

Term yield 4.00%
EfhsE

Reversionary yield ~ 4.50%
ERNEE

Aslightincrease in term yield
would not result in significant
decrease in fair value,
and vice versa.

RGN AT eg
MHERRETS - R2HA -

Aslight increase in reversionary yield
would not result in significant
decrease in fair valug,
and vice versa.

EENREEHY o8N
ATEAETE  R2HA -

A significant increase/decrease in
market rent would result in
significant increase/decrease in
fair value.

mEReAR LA/ THeEH
AHEARLA/ TH-

Aslight increase in term yield
would not result in significant
decrease in fair value,
and vice versa.

FHpREAN HATeEN
AFEABTE®  R2HHA -

Adlight increase in reversionary yield
would not result in significant
decrease in fair value,
and vice versa.

RENRREN LA gLy
NEAETE - R2IH -

3. Market rent 183 A significant increase/decrease in
(RMB/sgm/month) market rent would result in
3 mEHE(AR significant increase/decrease n
®/Th%/R) fair value,
nERSAB LT/ THEEH
AHEARLR/ TH-
989,957
There were no transfer into or out of level 3 during the year. RAFER  HEBASLBEBHE=R -

BREEZEREBERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are ISR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. R—XBEE QT 2

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETIT
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)
(F&&E75)
Cost of investment, unlisted WERA - JELE™ 120,000 =
Share of post-acquisition result FEAE W BB 18 4R (250) -
119,750 =
Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the reporting REEBERBRBESHERZFBOT -

period are as follow:

Proportion of

Equity interest voting power

Place of Place of attributable to in the board Principal
Name of entity establishment operation the Group held by the Group activities
AEEfEESS
ERER sk R AEEELRE RRFELL B TEER
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-\§F ZB—+F ZE-N\f ZT—+&
HEEREXERERADA PRC PRC 40% N/A 33% N/A  Property development
(“Hunan Zhenghao”) in the PRC
HREREXERERAR  + H 40% TEm 33% TER RPEZEER

(THEIER])

In February 2018, the Group paid cash consideration of
RMB120,000,000 to acquire 40% equity interest in Hunan
Zhenghao from an independent third party. The Group has
40% voting power in the shareholder’s meeting of Hunan
Zhenghao. The Group has 1 board seat out of 3, which can
exercise significant influence on the operating and financing
policies of Hunan Zhenghao.

Summarised financial information in respect of the associate
are set out below. The summarised financial information below
represented amounts shown in the associate’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

—‘ é@ FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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RZZE—NFZR AEER—RKRBILE
=R e E AR 120,000,0007T
LAUBS AR IE 2 2 40% PR HE - REEFH
HFEE SRR A S 40% KRR - REER
EFZgh=nz B THPBMERZ
KERREPORITEERTEN -
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T o 5 EFHR R & R RRIEE
BUBHREENREL M BRRAREHE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are M TSR MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— N\ =A=+—HIFE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 19. R—FREE QT 2= (@)
The associate is accounted for using equity method in these ZHE NN ZEFR SN ISRREBREDS
consolidated financial statements. JENER ©
2018
—E-N\E
RMB’000
ARET T
Current assets MENEE 1,136,459
Non-current assets EMENEE 2,212
Current liabilities RBBE 139,297
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE 700,000
Loss and other comprehensive expense for the year  ZNFEEE18 & b 2 EH % (626)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to BB BRSBTS RE TR
the carrying amount of the interest in Hunan Zhenghao AT IF 24z 2 BRI E YR
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
2018
—E-N\EF
RMB’000
AR¥T
Net assets of Hunan Zhenghao HMEER 2 EEFE 209,374
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest AREBE AR E 2 ARG
in Hunan Zhenghao 40%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest REERNYHERERRAE
in Hunan Zhenghao 119,750

E%Wé}%ﬁ%zﬁﬁggg "‘ é"‘



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re PR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 20. JHEEKRE

Available-for-sale investment comprises: AHEEKERE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)
(F&&E75)

Unlisted investment in the PRC: REBEZIEETRE :

— equity securities — IRARES 500 -
The carrying amount of the above unlisted equity investment L3 FRARE 2 BREEEE R &M
represents 5% shareholding in each of M EFIZEHREGE A BREREARAT RBINRZHEERE
7] and BINELFEIREBRAF], being private entities BRAR(HBERRKLZFLAERE) S
established in the PRC. The Group does not have any board B Z25%8#E c AEEAThERT NEET
seat in the interest. It is measured at fair value at the end of the MESFELA - BERERBRERREA
reporting period. The investment was acquired by the Group TFEHAE EHERERASEBERFANE
during the year at an aggregate cash consideration of SRESFEARE500,000 THEA - EER
RMB500,000. In the opinions of the Directors, the fair value of B BEERERZZE—N\F=A=+—H
the investment at 31 March 2018 approximated to the cash ZAFEEANSEFREARESNRERE -

consideration paid by the Group.

—‘ 62 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=A=+—HILFE

On 16 March 2018, Giant Astute Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into sale and purchase
agreement with Delano Hills Limited and, Ms. Park Gi Youn
(collectively known as the “Sellers”) and Easyknit International
Holdings Limited, the Sellers’ guarantor pursuant to which
Giant Astute Limited agreed to acquire the 100% equity
interest in Gold Asset Investment Limited (“Gold Asset”), a
limited company incorporated in Hong Kong held by Delano
Hills Limited and 100% equity interest in Wise Think Global
Limited (“Wise Think”), a limited company incorporated in BVI
held by Ms. Park Gi Youn at a total cash consideration of
HK$920 million (equivalent to RMB736 million). A residential
property project located in Ho Man Tin, Kowloon, Hong Kong
is held by Gold Asset and Wise Think as to 75% and 25%
respectively. The residential property project will be developed
into 17-storey residential block over one basement floor and is
currently under development and the construction work has
been substantially completed in March 2018. The acquisition is
not completed at 31 March 2018 and the completion is
conditional upon and subject to certain conditions set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 16 March 2018.
Deposit of HK$92,000,000 (equivalent to RMB73,555,000) has
been paid to the Sellers at 31 March 2018. Further deposit of
HK$138,000,000 (equivalent to RMB110,330,000) has been
paid by the Group to the Sellers in May 2018. Pursuant to the
sale and purchase agreements, in case the aforesaid
acquisition is not completed, the deposits would be fully
refunable to the Group by the Sellers.

RZZE—NF=ZA+B ' XRa2EMH
B A 7]Giant Astute Limited * Delano Hills
Limited £ Park Gi YounZ L (578 [ 5 &
F) EXEBRREBBRAR (REESE
RA)EIME E W% & Itk Giant Astute
Limited[@ 2 W B Gold Asset Investment
Limited ([ Gold Asset] *  H Delano Hills
Limited BN EBFMAZZBR AR 2
EBA%AE LA K2 Wise Think Global Limited ([ Wise
Think | » f1Park Gi Youn Z =455 7 58 4
RRBESHEMAL 2 BRAR) 2K
#3184 (8 45 920,000,0007 7t (FBE B A
R # 736,000,0007T) - —HBUREBNLE
I HZEEWEIBE 5 5 H Gold Asset
Wise Think3% 8 75% & 25% #E 3 © %2 [£ E
MEBEBERAE—BREEBHHEZ17
EeEEEF REREF BETIREDS
ABRA—ZE—N\F=AK - KER-Z
—N\F=ZA=Z+—HMEAKTK ' MTHKAE
FETEHEERARFBSEAE-ZT—N\F
ZATARBZAM) EKEREEE - Ee
92,000,000 7% 7t (#8& A A R % 73,555,000
TIER_E—N\F=A=+—BXMNFZ
E£EFH - i — £ 138,000,000 7T (48
B AR % 110,333,000 7T) B B AN & B R
ZE-N\GFRAZNTZEES - REE
Eipem o W BRI ESTK - Be B\
EHEERETALEHR -

2018 & 3R
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

22.

23.

164

INVENTORY OF PROPERTIES 22. MEFE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)
(L& =51))
Completed properties held for sale BEHEBR R TYE 251,133 483,773
Properties under development for sale HFEBRRERDYE 3,506,781 1,902,278
3,757,914 2,386,051

The inventory of properties are located in the PRC. Included in
the amount are properties under development for sale of
RMB2,683,051,000 (2017: RMB1,737,197,000) which are
expected to be completed and realised more than twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables mainly arise from sales of properties in the
PRC. Consideration in respect of properties sold is paid in
accordance with the terms of the related sales and purchase
agreements, normally within 90 days from the date of
agreement. Certain property buyers used their housing fund
contributions to pay for the consideration through the
application to the Housing Provident Fund Bureau and certain
portion of consideration (3% to 5%) will be settled by the
Housing Provident Fund Bureau upon the release of building
ownership certificate to the property buyers.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

23.

MEGFEMRTRE ZeEREFEER
R A R#2683,051,000( —F —+
£ AR®1,737,197,0007T ) © T8 #3451
MEHRE A+ —AAB T RER -

PE W RR AR e HL ft FE WK TR LA K. T8
ESE!
EUEREERENTABENE - O&
W 2 KB THIR AR R B B 1 2 R —
BR % B SR 0 ANX - HFYE
BEXBBATEAESERRRFD AL
ERARMSERIANE  ERETHS
(3% E5%) REBR N EERERRE R
BREBEHIEAES TR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE PR

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

I =7

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— N\ =A=+—HIFE

eSS

23. FEUR AR H i FE WK T LA 78

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREEFIT

(unaudited)

(REEER)

(restated)

(F&&E5)

Trade receivables JE U AR 3R 1,690 2,801

Other receivables H fth fE W IR 24,848 6,544
Receivable from a former shareholder of RE—ZRMBRAR—BAREZ

a subsidiary FEW F B 8,745 -
Consideration receivable from disposal of KB EHERQA T RENEB AR 2

original subsidiaries of the Company R E (FH:E2)

(note 2) 4,723 =
Loan advanced to a third party (note a) mM—BB=FRANEK (HizEa) 94,977 =
Deposits paid BffiI & 9,158 5,236
Guarantee deposit (note b) RiEE (M3Eb) 9,905 5,000
Prepayments to suppliers A it P 7S 2 TR RIE 967 621
Prepaid other taxes TR E MR 21,312 2,445

176,325 22,647
Less: amounts shown under B IEMBEER NTIRERE

non-current assets - (5,000)

Amount shown under current assets MEEEE NS 176,325 17,647

Notes: FiE -
a. In December 2017, the Group advanced RMB94,977,000 for the a.
provision of short-term financing to a third party which owns a piece
of land for property development in Hunan, the PRC. The amount is
interest-free and the maturity date of the loan is on 30 September
2018.
b. The amount represents the guarantee deposit paid to KZE(ZFEE R b.

& £ 2 A (“Daye Trust”), a trust company, as the security for two
trust loans provided to the Group and will be released upon the
settlement of the trust loans in December 2018 and January 2019.

RZE—tF+=A

CAREEFRE=TTR

HIZHA R E B AR 094,977,000 © B
F=ABETENE —BIEDERRARY
Wik - EASHEARE  MERIHPAA=

T-N\EAA=TH

FRSBEXN T EARAREETAERE
ERR(TREGRD 2REBR - FAEEHE
ERHEMEETERZER KR =-F
—NEF+_ARZT-NF-AENZER

LR KA AR -

EREBREZEREEARQF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re PR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. EWERF R HMEWFEURTE

PREPAYMENTS (Continued) ~HFIE (&)
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables based on IUTARSRERREOREIMNIEZ
the date of delivery of the properties to the customers at the HEIZ2 %1 7 R BRZRER WS AT o

end of each reporting period.

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFTT

(unaudited)

(REEEZ)

(restated)

(s=E5)

0 to 30 days 0£30H - -
31 to 90 days 312 90H 235 -
91 to 180 days 912180 H - -
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 67 437
Over 1 year HBiE—F 1,388 2,364

1,690 2,801
The trade receivables at the end of each reporting period REREMRZBUERFEZHZERE
mainly related to those buyers who applied for the Housing NEEABESHAINREZERER -
Provident Fund contributions to pay for the consideration and MRERETDENRERERERMAE
the final portion will be settled upon the release of building BREN - REMEBRCEBWERRE
ownership certificate to the buyers. The trade receivable WARBHMARGHE KERBBERDEXRE
balances at the end of each reporting period are considered R RETRERER  REARFSER
not yet past due. No allowance for doubtful debts on trade FEARBLHELEBAER  WEHEZT—N
receivables was provided during the years ended 31 March FRZE—tF=A=T—RHILFEHE

2018 and 2017, taking into account the past low default rate BLIE W AR ST IR AT R AR A -

and the concentration risk is limited because the customer
base is large and unrelated.

—‘ éé FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— N\ =A=+—HIFE

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 24, FMREBITER BRITEBKE
BALANCES AND CASH %
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBT T
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)
(F&&E5)
In relation to: W
Mortgage loans applied by EEARBRBER (Msta)
customers (note a) 51,810 23,822
Security deposit for workers of HMEBEB I 2RES (M)
property projects (note b) 25,365 18,472
77,175 42,294

Notes:

a. The restricted bank deposits are secured for the mortgage loans
applied by the customers and will be released upon the banks
obtained the building ownership certificate from the customers as a
pledge for the mortgage loans.

b. The property development project companies are required by the
relevant PRC regulations to place certain bank deposits in restricted
bank accounts and they will be utilised to compensate for the
construction workers in case the contractors of the project
companies failed to pay for the salaries of those workers. They will
be released upon the completion of the property projects.

The Group’s restricted deposits carry interest at prevailing
market rates which range from 0.35% to 0.385% (2017: 0.35%
to 0.385%) per annum.

Bank balances carried interest at market rates which range
from 0.01% to 1.85% (2017: 0.01% to 0.385%) per annum.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

The amount due froman associate is of non-trade in nature,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
directors expect the amount will be fully recovered within one
year from the end of the reporting period.

25.

BaE

a  ERGIBRTEFIMERFFMBAGERBER
ZER YRRNRITERFPRGEEMARE
BIERIBIBERZ EREFARR -

b. YEEREBABRNAREBETERIRE
RERBBITRSFRE TRITER - AH
T OB FE TR B 1 B 2 AR B A S A R SR
THEBENTREREZFRT - AER
WEIAB TR RS o

AEEZRHFERREMDEMNENFE
#0.35% £0.385% ( =& — £ 5 : 0.35%
F0.385%) 5T & ©

BITEBREMENENTEF001%E
1.85%(—ZF —+ % :0.01% &£ 0.385%) &f
B o

FEWR — KB D B FRIR

BN —RBERRREBHERZEE - B
B RENBRERER EFEY
BRAFERRREARE —FRATHK
[B] o

E%@%}%Eﬁ%;@ﬁgég "‘ 67
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 26. BYRARHEMEMKEUARE
ACCRUALS STEA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T AREFIT
(unaudited)
(REEEZ)
(restated)
(L& =51))
Trade payables FEfTEREX 21,070 28,404
Retention payables B IRE S 1,272 1,077
Interest payable FET A B 19,386 20,093
Other payables HAth BT 50IB 8,731 3,145
Other tax payables HAth IR 4,758 8,875
Consideration payable for acquisition of WEEKTE A R 2 B (E
subsidiaries (note 34) (PfF5E34) 117,497 -
Deposit received BUET® 8,623 4,260
Accrued construction costs FEET iR SRR AN 304,978 72,090
Other accruals Hib st &M 4,564 1,635
490,879 139,579
Trade payables mainly represent the payables to suppliers for ERNEREZERRELETIRENHER 2
construction work. The credit period for trade payables ranged FIE o BANERZEERANTFO0EI0H °
from O to 30 days.
The following is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables NTARBERREEZAHEN 2 ARE
presented based on invoice date at the end of reporting period. B AR RARER D AT ©
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)
(#EE5)
0 to 60 days 0Z60H 1,809 5,753
61 to 180 days 612180 H 2,630 5,403
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365 H 1,364 4,398
Over 1 year fE—F 15,267 12,850
21,070 28,404
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=A=+—HILFE

27. AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The amount due to immediate holding company at 31 March

28.

2017

was non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand. Upon completion of the Acquisition on
1 December 2017, the advance from the immediate holding
company of RMB335,821,000 was assumed by the Company
through the issue of Consideration Shares to the Vendor. The
amount was accounted for as the deemed contribution by the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholder.

27. ENEEZERARRE

R-B—+FE=A=+—BZEMNEEE
SRR RBEIFRZEE - BEIKF - %
BREREREE KWESTER=_F—+
F+ZA—HRER%E  KEEEZRAR
ZEE AR 335,821,000 7T AR A3 i@
ME TR EBRMDEE - BERIEARE
P ABERAIERREEE -

BORROWINGS 28. 6 &
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBT T
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)
(F&&E5)
Bank loan (note a) RITER (Ea) 263,808 =
Loans from third parties (note b) KEE=HZ2ER(FED) 1,962,518 1,536,286
2,226,326 1,536,286
Notes: =2
a. The bank loan was borrowed by the Group in March 2018 and the a. RITERBEAEER_T—N\F=AER

maturity date is in March 2021. The Group is required to make
instalment settlement according to the loan repayment schedule.
The bank loan is interest bearing at Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rates (“HIBOR”) plus 1.80% per annum and secured by investment
properties of the Group and guaranteed by Mr. Pan Weiming.

The loans from third parties include the borrowings under trust and
other arrangements which are secured by certain property
development projects undertaken by the relevant subsidiaries or/and
the ownership of the property project companies legally transferred
to the lenders as collateral for borrowings and the Group has
repurchase obligations at the maturity date of the loans and the
repurchased amount is pre-determined in the financing agreements.
The carrying amounts and details of the loans from third parties are
set out below.

FHAAE-_Z-_—F=H AEEBERRE
HEERFBERS AR - RITBEFIREEER
TREFEF R ((HBRITRAERSFE])
SMEFE1.80%FE @+ WAREEIEEY
VR R BB AER -

b. REF=ZFZEFBEEEREMTHRT
BE > ZEEENERAMBARMARET
MEBREAR REEZEZTERAES
EREMRRCYERE RRHEERERR
BARKERERIMEAFRLRE  MME
HHERTEBELEE - KEF=FTZ2ERZK
EERFFERRTX

E%@%}%HE%;@%;% "‘ é@



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE SRR MR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

28. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

b. (Continued) b. (&
Equity
interest of
property The Group
companies has
Loan financing transferred  repurchase
Name of subsidiaries arrangement Notes to the lenders obligations Maturity date 2018 2017
BETERAZ £5£H
i) PNEIEE EXREZH M  xAAKRE FROEE FHA “E-N\F ZE—iF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARETR
<Yes/No> <Yes/No> (unaudited)
<R/B> <R/E> (REEER)
(restated)
(=51)
HEEREHEREERAR 2016 Daye Trust 0} Yes Yes  December 2018 220,005 496,286
(“Hunan Fullsun”) Financing Arrangement
HRERRHEREERAA ZE-RERERR = = “Z-N\E+ZA
(MRl RERH
BMEREEBRAR N/A (i) No No July 2018 650,000 1,000,000
(“Fuzhou Fullsun Group”)
BNEREEARAR NER i & “Z2-\F+A
(MBMEREE])
BMEREEERAF N/A (i) No No December 2018 94,000 40,000
BNEREEBRAA @R B & “T-N\E+ZA
HEETHEEREERAR Daye Trust (iv) Yes Yes January 2019 684,313 -
(“Hunan Xingru”) Financing Arrangement
HRETAEHEREERAR  AEEERERH = = —T-NE—A
(I#m L)
Vivalink Limited N/A (v) No No March 2020 314,200 -
BRERAR NER & & “ZT-TF=f

1,962,518 1,536,286

(i) 2016 Daye Trust Financing Arrangement

On 21 December 2016, the shareholders of Hunan Fullsun
and Daye Trust entered into a loan financing arrangement
pursuant to which the third parties provided loan financing to
Hunan Fullsun to finance its property project (the “2016 Daye
Trust Financing Arrangement”). Under the 2016 Daye Trust
Financing Arrangement, 49% equity interests in Hunan
Fullsun held by # 7 & &R & E A& R 2 & (“Hunan Fullsun
Group”) was transferred to Daye Trust to secure the
borrowing. Hunan Fullsun Group will repurchase the 49%
equity interest in Hunan Fullsun at a pre-determined amount
after 2 years from the date Hunan Fullsun obtained the loan
financing. Hunan Fullsun Group maintained the control over
Hunan Fullsun and it is considered as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hunan Fullsun Group during the years end 31
March 2018 and 2017. Upon the maturity of the 2016 Daye
Trust Financing Arrangement, the 49% equity interest in
Hunan Fullsun will be transferred directly to Hunan Fullsun
Group after Hunan Fullsun settle the repayment obligation
under the 2016 Daye Trust Financing Arrangement.

—‘ 7 O FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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R-ZE—RE+-_A=-+—B " #83
BRZBEREXREETITIVERRE
ZHE B BEZ AR EEISIEE
EXpENRGEMEBREME (=
T-RNEREEABRELZH]D - BRI
T ARFREGARERH  HE
EBREBERAR(HERREE])
s HmER 2z 49% BiEEET A%
Bt EABEZERE - HEERS
BN HmERREERERE B it
AR REELETSERBLAERE
RAOBBHE - BHE_T—NEFEL_-ZT
—tF=A=+—HILFE  HEE
REBSHFH Y REERZLE  m
HEERERAYEREEEZ2E
MEBAT . —E—RNEXEETHE
ZHR R EHREREER =%
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E1% - HrRITER 2 49% IR HEHS E 1
ETHERRER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=A=+—HILFE

Notes: (Continued)

b. (Continued)

(i)

(i)

The loan is provided by ZHEZELSHREF L (BREE),
an independent third party, and drawn down by the Group
from April to July 2016, which is interest bearing at a fixed
rate of 8% in the first year and 11% in the second year and
secured by properties under development for sale and equity
interest in 4 FA & 5 5 b & [ 3 B R A & The effective
interest rate of the loan is 9.5% per annum.

The loan is provided by @M EZ L& B & & B R A A, an
independent third party, in July 2016, which is unsecured and
interest bearing at a fixed rate of 8% per annum.

Daye Trust Financing Arrangement

On 26 November 2016, a financing arrangement was entered
into between Daye Trust and Hunan Xingru, pursuant to
which a maximum amount of available financing of
approximately RMB690,000,000 (the “Daye Trust Financing
Arrangement”) was provided by Daye Trust to Hunan Xingru
to finance the development of the property project of Hunan
Xingru. The term of the loan is two years and renewable with
the consent of Daye Trust. As part of the securities for the
repayment obligations of Hunan Xingru under the financing
arrangement, & F % 5 b & [ % A R 2 & (“Changsha
Qiantai”), the shareholder of Hunan Xingru had transferred
49% equity interest in Hunan Xingru to Daye Trust.

On 14 March 2018, Hunan Fullsun Group entered into sale
and purchase agreements with Changsha Qiantai, for the
acquisition of 51% equity interest in Hunan Xingru at a total
cash consideration of RMB150,000,000.

On 14 March 2018, Changsha Qiantai, Hunan Fullsun Group,
Daye Trust and Hunan Xingru entered into an agreement,
pursuant to which, the parties agree that after all repayment
obligations of Hunan Xingru under the financing arrangement
are settled in full, Daye Trust shall release and transfer the
49% equity interest in Hunan Xingru to Hunan Fullsun Group
or a third party as designated by Hunan Fullsun Group.
Hence, Hunan Fullsun Group maintained the control over
Hunan Xingru and it is considered as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hunan Fullsun Group from the date of
acquisition of Hunan Xingru.

The loan is provided by Harbor Sure (HK) Investments
Limited, an independent third party, in March 2018, which is
secured by investment properties and properties, plants and
equipments of the Group, and guaranteed by Mr. Pan
Weiming, & & % B & R 2 7 (“Fusheng Group”) and the
immediate holding company of the Company. The principal
amount of the loan is HK$400,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB314,200,000). The loan is interest bearing at a variable
rate, which depends on higher of (i) HIBOR plus 8% per
annum; and (i) 9.0% per annum.

BeE : (&

(i)

FHEFROBLE =T HNERSR
BERL(ERER) RYH - AhAE
BN —E-REFNAEEAER ®
BEFRETNE 8% T B RNE —FIR
BIEMZEI1%ETE - AEEERFPY
ERHEEEFEERBERRARZ
BRAE(EIES - BRAERZERFEME
739.5%

FHERBRBYFE=FTRMNELESE
HmBRARN T RFLARYE
REERRIREEFHE8%FE -

REEEMELRY

AZE—XRF+—A=+/"8 ' K¥
EE R EL R AL IR
AEETAPEELIRENSHARE
FRIE &% 4 AR 690,000,000 7T © LA
B HEEL 2 MEBEERAE( KX
X¥EARELH]  BEERASER
F A EREGEIRETEE - EA
B 22 P TE T8 D B4 08 TR E (T K A
Z—Eb5  HmEZZRERD TR
EBHERBKERARTEDTHRDT
REE TR R B4R 7 49% AR AE -

RZZE—N\E=ZA+HMHA - HEBER
SERRDTFRICEE HE - IR
438 & KB AR 150,000,000 7T W iE
AR BL% 2 51% AR AE o

RZZ-N\F=A+H0OA &P THF -
HEREREE  REETLNEEL
IR Bt RIS RERRE
ZHIR TN L& R EEEE
% REEFEHANREREREBSON
MEREBRIEEZE=T BN REE
W B 2 49% K - EUE - BB
WEELE B - HrEREREEER
58 A B 2 PR RE - i )4 R R AR
BhREEREEZ2EHB AR -

A B E A I8 L % = 77 Harbor Sure
(HK) Investments Limited /A =& — /\ &
SARME UAEEZEREMEAR
ME  BERZEERR L HER
BiL EBREEERAR(ERE
BEARDRARTEEZERARER -
BRI Z A% 55 400,000,000 7T
(SR AR 314,200,0007T) © A7
BRIZZFBHERE - MIZEFIERE
FTRINEBEZRSEME : () BBRIT
FIFEF R B INFEFR8% : [ (i) F
FIE9.0% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Re PR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

28. BORROWINGS (continued)

28. BE (&)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETIT
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)
(F&&E75)
The borrowings are repayable: EEAR T HRFEERZR
Within one year —FR 1,657,667 280,000
More than one year, but not exceeding L —F - BRBBRE
two years 323,476 1,256,286
More than two years, but not exceeding ZHME - B TNHBBRT
five years 245,183 -
2,226,326 1,536,286
Less: Amounts due within one year B ORBBEE TR —FR
shown under current liabilities B EAFRIE (1,657,667) (280,000)
Amounts due after one year R—F1& 5 BiF08 568,659 1,256,286
2018 2017
—E-N\E —TE—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT T AREETIT
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)
(F&&E75)
Secured borrowings BEEBEE 2,132,326 1,496,286
Unsecured borrowings EIRPEE 94,000 40,000
2,226,326 1,536,286
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 & Z =%

—N\F=ZA=+—RHLFE

28. BORROWINGS (Continued) 28. & (#)
2018 2017
—g-NF —fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBT T
(unaudited)
(REEEZ)
(restated)
(#e&E5)
Variable rate borrowings FEEE 578,008 =
Fixed rate borrowings EEEE 1,648,318 1,536,286
2,226,326 1,536,286
The range of effective interest rates of borrowings at the end of REREMREECEFFERGHERNT ¢
each reporting period were as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFT
(unaudited)
(R EZ)
(restated)
(&&&E5)
Effective interest rate (per annumj: BEFE(FE)
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 2.9%-9.1% N/A
NEA

Fixed-rate borrowings

8.0%-11.0%

8.0%-10.1%

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in the currency
which is the same as the functional currency of the respective
entity.

Details of Group’s pledge of the assets and the guarantee
provided by the related parties are set out in notes 37 and 43,
respectively.

AEEEENRAHEEREEERARZ

BHEEHE

ERASEEHEE RS ATIREER
2 ED BIEMA M FES7 & 43 ©

EREBREZEREEARQF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P mARM T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 &/ Z—Z—N\F=A=+—HItFE

Pursuant to a placing agreement entered into by the Company
with the placing agent (the “Placing Agent”), the Company
issued convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds”) with principal
amount of HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to RMB169,353,000)
to the placees on 1 December 2017. The Convertible Bonds
bear interest at the rate of 9% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears and the maturity date is 3 years from issue
date. The Convertible Bonds entitled the placees to convert
them into ordinary shares of the Company (the “Conversion
Shares”) at a conversion price of HK$0.22 per share. The
conversion period is from the date of issue until the third
business day prior to maturity (the “Conversion Period”). The
issue price of the Convertible Bonds was at 100% of the
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds and the net
proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds, after
deducting commission, was HK$199,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB168,506,000).

Below are the principal terms of the Convertible Bonds:

Each placee shall have the right to convert the Convertible
Bonds at any time during the Conversion Period, in whole or in
part, into Conversion Shares provided that they may not
exercise the conversion rights as to such number of
Convertible Bonds the conversion of which would trigger a
mandatory offer obligation or cause the Company to be unable
to meet the minimum public float requirement under relevant
Listing Rules.

The conversion price shall from time to time be subject to
adjustment upon occurrence of certain events including any
consolidation or sub- division of the shares of the Company,
issue of any shares credited as fully paid by way of
capitalisation of profit or reserves, making any capital
distribution to the shareholders or granting the shareholders
rights to acquire for cash assets of the Company or its
subsidiaries, offer of new shares to shareholders for conversion
by way of rights, or grant to shareholders any options or
warrants to subscribe for new shares, at a price which is less
than 90% of the market price at the date of the announcement
of such offer or grant, issue of any securities wholly for cash
which by their terms are convertible into or exchangeable for or
carry rights of conversion for new shares; or issue of any
shares wholly for cash at price per share which is less than
90% of the market price at the date of the announcement of
the terms of such issue.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

BEARREREREB(TRERE]) T
ZEREHHE ARBAR_ZT—+F+_A
— B M EL A 31728 % 58 200,000,000 7 7T
(HHE R AR 169,353,000 7T) 2 A A% (&
F([AI R ESH]) - JRREFIEFEFNEI
Exts  SEFINA—K BHRA BB
HHARBET 3 4F - Al AR (B, T E B A F)
REHRBEEIN0.22/8 T A MR ESEKR
AR B R AR (T8 RAR D ]) - B A
BITHHEEZD S = ELE XA (5
HHE]) - ATRRESFEITEAUBRKRES
RELEEA100% » M7 RREHER
T8 % 58 (R A4 1% ) £ 199,000,000 7t (48
R AR 168,506,000 7T) °

AT BRI ES 2 T ZIHK

ARASEBBRRERMANEMNRELE S
B E D TR E S E R E AR - HE
AR E SR R R B IR B E S
BEEREHARRIREETHE TR
BTNENREARFRERTE  HFAE
EORITEEIAE -

ERERNBEEETEHTRIFLARE
BRFEHEBEARARMNETEMS G
DY BBEEN R ERRTEA 2T
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BADRHR TIRERWBARR A HEK B
RERCEEZEN: BERAHEBRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=A=+—HILFE

The Company may, at any time during the period commencing
from the first anniversary of the issue date up to the fifth
business day prior to maturity, having given not less than 30
days’ notice to the holders of the Convertible Bonds, redeem
in whole or in part of the Convertible Bonds then outstanding
unless previously redeemed, converted and cancelled, each
Convertible Bond will be redeemed upon its maturity at 100%
of the principal amount outstanding together with the accrued
and unpaid interest at maturity. The holders of the Convertible
Bonds do not have the right to demand early redemption
before maturity.

The movement of the debt component and the derivative
components (including conversion option derivative and the
Company’s early redemption option derivative) of the
Convertible Bonds for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set
out below.

At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—+FmHA—H

Issue on 1 December 2017 (note 33) MN—_T—+F+ = — BT

(B&E33)
Effective interest recognised EERERF L
Change in fair value NEE
Exchange gain HE 5 Y e

At 31 March 2018 RZZE-N\F=A=+—H
The fair value of debt component was calculated based on the
present value of the contractually determined stream of future
cash flows discounted at the required yield, which was
determined with reference to the credit rating of the issuer of
the convertible bonds upon completion of the Acquisition and
remaining time to maturity.

BETEH-BFE ZEEHEHINED
&% B 1 HIRE - K& B A BE R [ AT R AR
BEFFBAABLETPRI0R 2B BE
B RIE R 2 2B AR D AT AR E 5 (SEAT
EEE - EHREEHRIRSN) - SR BRERE
R E MR R AR EER SR 100% ER R
SHEREE ZRNANEER - AJRERES
A AERERNEMAREED -

BHE-Z-\E=ZA=1+—HLFE 7
IR RS (B ES B AT #5 (1588
HEOTE T AR AR A 2125 B BT T
8) 7 SBMT -

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT ARETT
156,496 811,999 968,495
5,883 - 5,883

- 182,812 182,812

(8,901) (50,553) (59,454)
153,478 944,258 1,097,736

B 5 2 A A TR R AT 7 sk
BRYANETARES R ERESYE
798 7 M 2 R T 2 R UK B 3 TE S B
RESBTAZEETRREZHHAL
2 FIBERET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re PR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 &/ Z—Z—N\F=A=+—HItFE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 29. MR ES &)

176

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the Company’s
early redemption option derivative at 1 December 2017 and 31
March 2018 were insignificant.

The fair value of each of the debt and derivative components of
the convertible bonds on initial recognition and the fair value of
the derivative components at the end of the reporting period
are determined by the Directors with reference to the valuation
performed by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, an independent
professional valuer. Binomial Option Pricing model is used for
valuation of the derivative components. The key inputs used in
the model are disclosed in below.

BERE ARRIZRFELEITETA
RZE—+tF+_A—BRZ=ZZE—N\F=
A=+—B2Z2AFEITERK -

P HER S Al M B B B0 0 R OT A 2B
DEBZATFEEBRESHRITERS 2R
FETHEES2EBYIXLEMBRR
TERRBMETHERETE - TEMHZ
HEFRA -BAAPEEEEN - ZEAM
REZHABERRELT -

Fair value Valuation
At 1 December Fair value techniques Significant
2017 hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs
RZE—+F
+=A—AH fRERM R
ZRFE AFEER TERABE BEATAHERAHE
RMB’000
ARBFT
Financial liabilities 811,999 Level 3 Binomial option Expected volatility of
Convertible bonds E=M pricing model 40.91% taking into

— derivative components
SRMIA
A&

k)

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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Stock price: HK$1.24
Exercise price: HK$0.22
Life to maturity: 3 years
Expected volatility: 40.91%
Risk-free rate: 1.40%
Dividend yield: nil
“IEAPEEBRR
BB - 1.2478 7T
1TE(8 : 0228
BEEIEFH : 3F
TREDKIE : 40.91%
ERMRAE : 1.40%
R &

account the historical
volatility of the
comparable listed
companies (note)
TREDR 8 40.91% -
BEZEAELBRAA
B ()

Risk-free rate was based
on Hong Kong
sovereign yield.

ERRNRABT BN
B RELE -

Dividend yield taking into
account the historical
dividend payment of
the Company.

REMEHERADT
BEREER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— N\ =A=+—HIFE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

29. TR 1ES (&)

Fair value Valuation
At 31 March Fair value techniques Significant
2018 hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs
R=Z—-N\F fRERM R
=A=+—-H ATEE#R TEHAHE EXRABERAYE
RMB’000
ARBFT
Financial liabilities 944,258 Level 3 Binomial option Expected volatility of
Convertible bonds FE=M pricing model 42.12% taking into

— derivative components Stock price: HK$1.49

tRMIA Exercise price: HK$0.22
AR ES Life to maturity: 2.67 years
— TESS Expected volatility: 42.12%

Risk-free rate: 1.52%
Dividend yield: nil

AN BREEEL
MAEB : 1.49787C
1B : 0.22%8 T
HEEIMFH : 267F
TEERR IR © 42.12%
EERRFE : 1.52%
W B las &

Note: A slight increase in the expected volatility used in isolation would
result in a significant increase in the fair value measurement of the
derivative components of convertible bonds, and vice versa.

EREBREZEREEARQF

account the historical
volatility of the
comparable listed
companies (note)
TR I8 42.12%
BEERIELRAT
BRI (M)

Risk-free rate was based
on Hong Kong
sovereign yield.

BRI R AT BB
BEHFRERELE

Dividend yield taking into
account the historical
dividend payment of
the Company.

REKEZBAAR
BEREENR °

FEE + 287 68 PR 2 TR S B T L 8 SR AT SRR
SATERBH 2 AFEI BABEN - RZIN
SR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Re PR MR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z_Z— \F=A=+—HILFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital at 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017
represents the share capital of Vivalink Limited. Vivalink Limited
was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in the BVI on 29 October 2014 with an authorised share capital
of US$50,000 divided into 50,000 shares of US$1 each. The
number of issued and fully paid ordinary shares of Vivalink
Limited was 50,000, amounting to US$50,000 (equivalent to
RMB305,000) as at 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017. Since
then, Vivalink Limited did not have any change in its share
capital.

30.

RN

TE-RFOA-BR-ZE—LtF=H
=T BZBRAERBERDB B -
BEARBRARAR-Z—HNFTA=TA
HELBHARREEMNIZER A
R A A - & E B A /50,000 7T( 5 &
50,000 B EE1XTZEKM) - R=F
—RNFOA-—BEZE—+tF=A=1+—
B ERERARCHTHEEBERZH
B /50,000 » & 50,0003 7t (18 & 7
AR ®305,0007C) ° ItiE - BBEBR QA
Z AR AR R -

Number of Equivalent
shares Amount to
BHEE o) LESH

HK$’000 RMB’000
TET AR®BTT

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &% E{E0.01 /67T 2 E @A

Authorised: JETE
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 RZZE—XR"FW™A—A -
and 31 March 2018 —E—+F=HA=+—H
E—ZFE—N\EFE=H=+—81 50,000,000,000 500,000 423,381
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER

At 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 RZZ—REMA—B &

—2—+F=A=1+—H 1,321,682,525 13,217 11,192

Placement of new shares (note a) B2 E#T A% (M7t a) 2,727,280,000 27,273 23,093
Share allotment for acquisition of  FL Y EERE B A PR A 7 Bt 2R (9

Vivalink Limited (note b) (FF5ED) 6,415,060,000 64,150 54,320

At 31 March 2018 RZZE—NF=A=+—H 10,464,022,525 104,640 88,605

—‘ 7 8 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

On 20 October 2017, the Company entered into share placing
agreements with certain independent private investors for the
placement of the new shares of the Company. Upon completion of
the Acquisition on 1 December 2017, 2,727,280,000 shares of the
Company (“Placing Shares”) were issued to the independent private
investors at HK$0.22 per share. The net proceeds received by the
Group was RMB502,939,000 after netting of the issue expenses of
RMB5,120,000. Upon completion of the share placing and the
Acquisition, the independent investors have 26.06% shareholding in
the Company. The placing price represented a discount of
approximately 82.11% to the closing price of HK$1.23 per share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 20 October 2017, being the date
of placing agreements. The shares rank pari passu with other shares
in issue in all respects.

On 1 December 2017, the Company allotted and issued
6,415,060,000 Consideration Shares to the Vendor for acquiring the
entire equity interest of Vivalink Limited in accordance with the terms
of the Acquisition Agreement (as detailed in the Company’s circular
dated 27 October 2017).

30. IRA&

Wi

R-F—+H&+A=-+8 AARREEAR
ARG EE FIBLFAARE BT IRD
EEHZE - R_E—+tF+-A—AxkK
BEEIHTE © 2,727,280,000 AR FRR 15 ([
ERH ) IRGR0.22BITLET T BILLAR
BE - HIHETH S AR 5,120,000 T4 -
AEBOUMMBREBIFEABARE
502,939,000 7T ° 5T AKX A& 10 B & & W B8 = 18
1% BWIIREEREA AR 26.06% I o B
EEERMAR T —+F+A=-1+H(BERE
raE B ER) TEBE S PR FT SRR T (B AR 1.23 7 7T
Pragd182.11% o B fn B HE fth B BATAR D TEFT
BHEZBEREH -

R-ZZE—+tE+=-A—8 ARABREKE
B ER (FRIRNARFAHAE=S—tF
+AZt+tBZzRR) RKEERERARE
SRR A B 5 BL 2% K2 3517 6,415,060,000 B X
e

BRERZEREESRA T
2018 F 7R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are ISR M EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. EEBIA
The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) IATARMEFERNEERZENRLER
recognised and movements during both years: BEE(ABRB)REF :
Temporary

differences Withholding
on LAT tax of PRC
Tax losses provision subsidiaries Total
T IEE o (5 Ff 58
BigEZ DR Z
BEEE ERES BB st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 1 April 2016 (unaudited) (restated) RZZ— X EWNA—H

(RgER%) (R E5) 1,305 (6,387) (6,069) (11,151)

Charge to profit or loss BEEMRk (447) (334) (1,673) (2,454)
At 31 March 2017 (unaudited) RZZB—+F=H=+—H

(restated) (RgERZ)(RES) 858 (6,721) (7,742) (13,605)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss FPA (k) B 1,034 1,959 (1,936) 1,057
At 31 March 2018 RZE—NF=ZA=+—H 1,892 (4,762) (9,678) (12,548)
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement MEINGEEMBERARMS B TELER
of financial position, certain deferred taxation assets and BEERBBCDYHE - U TAMMEER
liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the BHEEE 2BET B LS DT ¢

deferred taxation balances for financial reporting purposes:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT T AREETIT

(unaudited)

(REEER)

(restated)

(F&&E75)

Deferred tax assets FIERIAE B 7,055 1,615
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIEAE (19,603) (15,220)
(12,548) (13,605)

—‘ 8@ FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=A=+—HILFE

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to
the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately RMB406,371,000 (2017: RMB307,398,000), as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had unused tax losses arising
in Hong Kong of approximately RMB13,992,000 (2017: nil)
available indefinitely for offsetting against future profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. As at 31 March 2018,
the Group also had unused tax losses arising in the PRC of
RMB32,354,000 (2017: RMB30,934,000) and such tax losses
can be carried forward for a period of five years which are
available for offsetting future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such tax losses of approximately
RMB7,568,000 (2017: RMB3,432,000). No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of tax losses of
RMB13,992,000 (2017: nil) arising in Hong Kong and remaining
tax losses of RMB24,786,000 (2017: RMB27,502,000) arising
in the PRC due to the unpredictability of future profit streams
of the related companies.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
unrecognised tax losses at the end of each reporting period
will expire in the following years:

2018 —E-N\F
2019 —E-NF
2020 —E-TE
2021 =FR==0F=
2022 —E-—F
2023 —E—-=

RIBRBEPEMSHE BT NF—
A—H#E BAEHEARRNAEE
K 2 B% BB TR o B A& B AT %
I CI TR =38 BB EREZERA &
SRR A e B - #R AT R AR A BT T 3R
ERPRENBRARRIAENARE
406,371,000( —Z E —t F: AR %
307,398,0007T ) 1 ~ B s Z FEETIRIRIC
Tl -

R-E-—NEFE=ZA=+—8 KEEEFR
BEARAEEACADABEBENARE
13,992,000 C (= —tF : &) A HER
HAEREEEEEBARZ KRG - K
—E-N\FZA=ZF+—H AEENTEAR
FEEAZABABEBSE AR
32,354000L( = —tF: AR ¥
30,934,0007T) + BT IARE A 5L A
BB ARGEF 2 AFPEEE - Bt A
BT AR B AR 7568000 =%
—+ & AR#¥3,432,0007T) HERIE L
HEE - BREXBAMEBARZ ARG
FIZRIR - MW | BEBELE 2R IAEE
AR#13,992,000t (=T —+F: #) X
EHRRNFPBHELEZHREBEBEARE
24,786,000L( —Z T — £ F: AR ¥
27,502,000 7)) ERBEIEFRI B & EE o

RETEMBENLRG  SRERKRZ
RIERHIAB IR IA T FEER -

2017
—ET—tF
RMB’000
ARETTT
(unaudited)
(CREEEZ)
(restated)
(F&&E5)

6,832
11,165
4,949
1,432
3,124

27,502
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31.

32.

182

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 March 2018, the Group had unrecognised deductible
temporary differences on LAT provision amounting to
RMB54,886,000 (2017: RMB50,530,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or the future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
from financing activities.

31.

32.

RZBE-NF=A=+—H8  A%£EmL
WIBENBE I AR HNRERZES
AR¥54,886,000 T(ZT—+F : ARK
50,5630,0007T) ° AR T AR 8EH AT 8 A 7]
R E R ZREEZ BRTOGHN - &
S5 B ] R B = BRI R (R AR IR

METBMELEREZHR

TR AKERMEZDMELRBZE
BHE BRACKIRSEY - - BER
BFELRBEIRNAKRESERERER
DERBMERDMEREREXAKIBR
REERBABAKRREREZAR -

Financing ~ Finance cost ~ Change in fair Acquisttion
cash flows incured  valugduring  Acauistion of ofthe Exchange
TAprl 2017 duringthe year  during the year theyear  theCompany  subsidiaries difference 31 March 2018
5-tE TEE  FEEFEE KER eg LG Ei{ ZEN&
BA-B HERGRE  RENA  ATEED ] HEAT 2 =A=1-A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR
(unaualted) (note 33) (note 34)
(xiE2H) (Wakss)  (Kistad)
Interest payable [EfHFIE 20,093 (139,782) 139,025 - - - - 19,386
Borrowings & 1,536,286 5,121 - - - 684,313 - 2,226,326
Amount dug to immedate holding BB A7I5UE
company 328,258 1,563 - - (335,821) - - -
Convertile bonds THERER - - 5,883 - 156,496 - (8,901) 153,478
Derivative components of RRESTEDD
convertible bonds - - - 182,812 811,999 - (50,558) 944,258
1,884,637 (126,442) 144,908 162,812 632,674 684,313 (9454) 3343448

The cash flows from borrowings, interest payable and amount
due to immediate holding company make up the net amount of
additions and repayment of borrowings, interest paid and
advances from immediate holding company in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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As disclosed in note 2, the Company allotted and issued
6,415,060,000 Consideration Shares and paid cash of
HK$100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB84,676,000) to the
Vendor for acquiring the entire equity interest of Vivalink Limited
on 1 December 2017 and assumed the outstanding balance of
RMB335,821,000 owed by Vivalink Limited to the Vendor,
which is accounted for as deemed contribution from the
shareholder in the consolidated statement of change in equity.
On 1 December 2017, the Company issued 2,727,280,000
Placing Shares and Convertible Bonds with principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 to certain independent private investors.
Immediately after the completion of the Acquisition, the Vendor
obtained 61.32% controlling stake in the Company. The
substance of the Acquisition was a reverse business acquisition
of a listed company and as a result, the Acquisition is
accounted for under HKFRS 3 and the Consideration Shares
allotted and issued to effect the Acquisition are measured at
the fair value of the Deemed Consideration.

The fair value of the Deemed Consideration was determined
based on the number of the Company’s shares outstanding
immediately prior to the Acquisition of 4,048,962,525 shares
and the share price of HK$1.24 per share, which is determined
by reference to the closing share price of the Company at the
date of completion of the Acquisition. Accordingly, the Deemed
Consideration for the Acquisition is approximately
HK$5,020,714,000 (equivalent to RMB4,251,391,000). The fair
value hierarchy of the input (i.e. share price of the Company) to
determine fair value of the Deemed Consideration is
categorised under Level 1 by reference to the quoted bid price
of the Company in an active market.

B2 HE R —+tF+-A—
B AARBKERBER QR 2 IME
mE 7 B 3% & 217 6,415,060,000 A% X 1B %
1 B2 538 € 100,000,000 7 7t (A8 & B A
R ¥84,676,0007T) * WHAIERBAR A )
HEREH 2 REBHH AR 335,821,000
T BERBREAESEHRANARY
AEERREE N _E—t&FE+-A—
H: ARRASETHILLAKREEET
2,727,280,000 B & I 9 K AN & % A
200,000,000 L 2 AJ R E 5 - EFEUREE
BIHEME BB ARG 61.32% 2%
B WHEBEEAE A LM AR ZRAE
U Bt WEEERERENER
HEBIFEIFTARR - A5 T IR E T8 M il 5
BT ZREBRMDEHEEREZAFER

fein

EERBZAFEREZZEWIESHEATET
FEONZ R R R D B B 4,048,962,525 I K
REFR1.248 0 (2RKIEEIET/K B H
ZARRRMDETEEE)ERE - Bt - K
BEEZHETRELYA5,020,714,00078 7T
(HER AR 4,251,391,0007T) - B FH
EREAFEZHAZRE(BIARAKE)
ZAFEEBREL2BARRRERTEHEZ
BANREBELBEARE—M -

2018 & 3R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P mARM T
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The carrying amount of the identifiable assets and liabilities of RETKBEEEFRRIBEREGR AT E
the Company and its original subsidiaries acquired or assumed HEBTRAMBEIAE AR RE
upon the Acquisition in exchange for all the issued share REMBARUHIINEERBEZREE
capital of Vivalink Limited and the cash received from the BREFRRMEZETABRESZCWIRS
placement of new shares and issue of convertible bonds and R EIBAEEMEHIWT

goodwill arising from the Acquisition are set out as follows:

RMB’000
AREFTT
Net assets acquired Firs 8 & B 5 58
Property, plant and equipment M - B R 1,876
Investment properties WA 6,860
Trade and other receivables P L R e L Ath PR U R TR 74,901
Bank balances and cash IRITHBRRIRSE 19,941
Trade and other payables and accruals FERTBR TR I B Ath FE ST SRIB LA R FE ST B R (13,784)
Income tax payable FES FTIS TR (110)
89,684
RMB’000
AREFIT
Deemed Consideration effectively transferred EREE 2 HETRE 4,251,391
Fair value of identifiable net assets of the Company 72 & R E R A I B 2 71 7] 2% 7
and its original subsidiaries BEFHEz2ATE 89,684
Add: Net cash received from the placement of o BREFRD 2 BEWIER S FE
new shares (note 30) (FF5E30) 502,939
Add: Net cash received from the issue of 0 BITA R E S 2 B UGR ©F 5
convertible bonds (note 29) (FF5E29) 168,506
Less: Convertible bonds-debt components (note 29) & : AI M EH — BEZD (KizE29) (156,496)
Less: Convertible bonds-derivative components B AR ES — PTED
(note 29) (MF5E29) (811,999)
Less: Cash consideration paid by the Company B A RBREASZNZIRENRE
to Vendor (84,676)
(292,042)
Goodwill arising on the Acquisition WHEEIBMESDE 4,543,433
Bank balances and cash of the Company and Fr AR AR R ERBH B R T
its original subsidiaries acquired RITHEBRRIRS 19,941
Net cash received from the placement of new shares FERE #TA% 7 2 B WIR & 558 502,939
Net cash received from the issue of convertible bonds Z£{T A% E% 2 B IR £ %58 168,506
Cash consideration paid by the Company to Vendor AAGMEF 22 BERE (84,676)
Net cash inflow on acquisition of the Company ZAATEBAWESEZEESRATE 606,710
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The fair value of the trade and other receivables at the date of
acquisition approximated to the gross contractual amounts of
those trade and other receivables amounting to
RMB74,901,000. The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected was nil.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of the Company and its
original subsidiaries because the cost of the combination
included a control premium of the listed company. As the
construction materials trading business of the Company and its
original subsidiaries has been ceased shortly after the
Acquisition, the consideration paid for the Acquisition did not
generate any benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth,
future market development and the assembled workforce and
the goodwill arising from the Acquisition amounting to
RMB4,543,433,000 is considered to be fully impaired and
recognised to profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2018.

None of the goodwill arising on the Acquisition is expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

The construction materials trading business and the investment
properties of the Company and its original subsidiaries
acquired at the date of Acquisition had insignificant contribution
to the loss for the year. Revenue generated from the
construction materials trading business and investment
properties during the year ended 31 March 2018 was
RMB30,159,000 and RMB75,000, respectively.

R R A ERFERKERRZA
TEEZZERUERREMERKEBZE
HRe|HAE - BARET4,901,0007T °
TEHREERE 2 & XRERNKERER 2
BEMFTAT -

WEARRRERENBARREERE
ZREABESHKABIE ETAE 2 5
HBE - ARARAIREREHBAR ZE
MESEBHRBIBEEETABRKRIELE -
RWBEEENRETEELEBHRE
W SR RARRXMERERESAE
IHERZMFE  MEBSEEEZHEA
R ¥ 4,543,433,000 ST # 13 A B 2 HIRE
REE-_ZE-—N\F=ZA=+—HILFEZ
B ER -

TR I IR E A 2 B n] EH T A

RUKWEHBHKREARRREREKH B AT
CEMBIEBRICEAVMELHAFEEIR
ZERBHMTRE -B#E=Z—)/\F=A
=+ HIFE SZVEIEBEREED
¥FEEWRED R A AR30,159,0007T
M AR 75,0007 °
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, Hunan Fullsun
Group entered into sale and purchase agreements with
Changsha Qiantai, an independent third party, for the
acquisition of 100% equity interest in Hunan Xingru at a
total cash consideration of RMB150,000,000. The 49%
registered capital of Hunan Xingru is held by Daye Trust.
The acquisition was completed in March 2018. Hunan
Xingru is engaged in the development and sale of
residential and commercial properties in Changsha, the
PRC. On 26 November 2016, a financing arrangement
was entered into between Daye Trust and Hunan Xingru
pursuant to which RMB690,000,000 was provided by
Daye Truest to Hunan Xingru. The term of the financing
arrangement is 2 years and Changsha Qiantai had
transferred 49% interest in registered capital of Hunan
Xingru to Daye Trust as collateral to secure the
repayment obligations of Hunan Xingru. On 14 March
2018, the Group, Changsha Qiantai, Daye Trust and
Hunan Xingru entered into an agreement, pursuant to
which, all the parties agree that after repayment
obligations of Hunan Xingru under the financing
arrangement are settled in full, Daye Trust shall release
and transfer the 49% interest in registered capital of
Hunan Xingru to Hunan Fullsun Group. Hunan Fullsun
Group can obtain control over Hunan Xingru from the
date of the acquisition and it is considered as the wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hunan Fullsun Group. The principal
asset of Hunan Xingru is a piece of land in Changsha and
the transaction is accounted for as acquisition of assets.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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BE-_Z—\F=ZA=+—HItHF
B HEEREEEBYE =&Y
FHRIIVEE RS ARRSANRE
A R # 150,000,000 7T Y 88 4 Fa B 54
2 100% % 1 - 4 /8 H8 % 2 49% 7 it
BABAERETFE - WHEEER=
T N\F=AZEK - B EL N EHE
BELMHEEPFEED Z2EEREAY
X -RZE—RF+—AZ+~H "
AEET AR EL TR E T HE
Bt REGTRHEEZREAR
#£ 690,000,000 7T ° Bt & % HF 2 F Hf
BWRE  MEDTRERAKREETE
PR L M E AR 2 49% a1
BERPE L BITERE T 2R
meMN-_E—NFE=A+MAH K&
B EDTH - REETRHBEEL
RN Bt BRI ARE
MR ELRBETHE N2 EREMR
2HEER  REGTBERHEER
= B 8 o e B o 0 R R v i B AR R
2 49% M o Hm e R EE A B UEE
B 8RR ER 1S S R Bk 2 P A - AR
mEZ AR A REEREE 22 AN
BAR - HEELZ s EEEETI IR
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Continued)

(i)

On 25 March 2018, Splendor Keen Limited (“Splendor
Keen”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Exquisite Ardent Limited (“Exquisite Ardent”), Best Catch
Ventures Limited (“Best Catch”), Mark Well Investment
Limited (“Mark Well”) and Wisdom King Investments
Limited (“Wisdom King”), the independent third parties,
entered into deed of novation, pursuant to which
Exquisite Ardent agreed to novate and Splendor Keen
agreed to assume Exquisite Ardent’s all the rights and
obligations under the sale and purchase agreement in
relation to the acquisition by Exquisite Ardent of the
entire issued capital of Stardust King Group Limited,
Gleaming Sun Investments Limited, Charming Way
Ventures Limited, Auspicious Time Global Limited,
Pleasant View Group Limited and Obvious Bliss
Investments Limited which were incorporated in the BVI
with limited liabilities (collectively the “Target Companies”)
held by Best Catch. Mark Well and Wisdom King are the
guarantors of Best Catch. The consideration for such
acquisition including acquisition related costs is
HK$1,343,260,000 (equivalent to RMB1,073,604,000).
The properties consist of 41st, 42nd, 43rd, 45th and
46th floors, 16 car parking spaces and certain retained
portions representing 3 external signage areas of
Enterprise Square Three, No. 39 Wang Chiu Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong and were held by the subsidiaries
of the Target Companies. Certain units of the properties
will be used by the Group for office use and the
remaining units are used for rental and capital
appreciation purpose and the transaction is accounted
for as acquisition of assets.

BE_E-N\F=ZA=t—-BHLFE®)

(i)

RZE—NF=ZA=-+HB ' ~RAF
% & [ff B /2 &) Splendor Keen Limited
([Splendor Keen]) B 58 37 85 = 75
Exquisite Ardent Limited ([ Exquisite
Ardent|) + Best Catch Ventures
Limited ([Best Catch]) + Mark Well
Investment Limited ([Mark Well|) &
Wisdom King Investments Limited
([Wisdom King ) 5T 32 #9T5 BB B 2249 -
& It Exquisite Ardent@ & & & m
Splendor Keen[fl & # #&Exquisite
Ardenti® B B 1% = ( B B Exquisite
Ardent 0 B Best CatchfT # =~
Stardust King Group Limited »
Gleaming Sun Investments Limited »
Charming Way Ventures Limited »
Auspicious Time Global Limited -
Pleasant View Group Limited &
Obvious Bliss Investments Limited ( %
BIEERAA]  HAREBHERRE
SEMKIcERAR) 2 E2EE
TRA)ET 22 HBEMNREE:
Mark Well & Wisdom King % Best
Catch 2 FER A - BEKE 2 RE (B
EUEE AR A AN) /& 1,348,260,000 74
TL(FEE R AR 1,073,604,0007T) °
EBRYMERRBRBBNELREIFRE
EEI5 =041 - 42 - 43 - 45K 46712 -
161EF B A KA T RIRE S (Bl =&
INBEESM) - THEBERARZHWE
NEEE  B@EMEcETEMABH
AEERERAZTERSR  HRBME
FREREREARIGERS  MAEBER
SUNEEERAARK -
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Details of the net assets acquired in respect of the above

34. BB 7 (#)
AR B ETS R E MR A R E S

188

transactions are summarised below:

LN

Hunan Target
Xingru companies Total
R K BEATR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREBTIT
Net assets acquired BB EEFE
Investment properties WEYHE - 983,097 983,097
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 3,609 95,738 99,347
Inventory of properties MEFE 860,944 - 860,944
Trade and other receivables and JFEE Uk B R K LAt E L BRI
prepayment LA R FERTRRI8 19,454 2,358 21,812
Bank balance and cash IRITEBRRIRS 10,867 = 10,867
Trade and other payables JE AT BR R S L At FE (S RRIR
and accruals AR FERTE A (60,561) (7,589) (68,150)
Borrowings BE (684,313) = (684,313)
150,000 1,073,604 1,223,604
Total consideration satisfied by: ATRHHREN 2R BAERE
Cash Re 150,000 956,107 1,106,107
Consideration payables including in &+ A &1t BR 20K B b JiE - 5008
trade and other payables and AN et E R 2 FERHRE
accruals - 117,497 117,497
150,000 1,073,604 1,223,604
Net cash outflow arising on WEEETEMELR S
acquisitions: T FEE
Cash consideration paid EfRERE 150,000 956,107 1,106,107
Bank balances and cash acquired BUIBIRITER IR S (10,867) = (10,867)
139,133 956,107 1,095,240
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes amount due to immediate holding company,
borrowings and convertible bonds, as disclosed in notes 27,
28, and 29, respectively and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
periodically. As a part of this review, the management reviews
the planned construction projects proposed by engineering
department and prepares the annual budget taking into
account of the provision of funding. The management of the
Group then assess the annual budget and consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
management of the Company also balance its overall capital
structure through issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

AEFBERES ABREEE TEE AR
B2E ANERBLLETRESEHRS

BREGSABIE o

AEBZEARGREAER (BHEME27 - 28
K293 R FE 2 AN B AE R X B FRIA
tEE R AIBRES) RARAHEE ARG
o (BB R i) A -

AEEEEEEHNRINELLERE - ERE
EEAEP -y EEEEHNIREPL
ERXZFEZEER Yt RESREBIS
NERHRFERESR - EEEBHRKKFGE
FEHRER UZREARARZTERR
RIS 2Rk - RAREEET&ES
BOTHEBIELAREGEH 2T A FEE
ERENERE -

2017
—E—tF
RMB’000
ARETIT
(unaudited)
(REEEZ)
(restated)
(&%)
The Group NEE
Financial assets ERMEE
Available-for-sale investment AN ERE -
Loans and receivables B e W ERIE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREBEeMREEEER) 408,855
Financial liabilities cRIAE
Amortised cost BEERAR 1,930,134
Derivative financial instrument PTESRTA -
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The Group’s and the Company’s major financial
instruments include deposit paid for acquisition of
subsidiaries, long-term guarantee deposit, trade and
other receivables, amount due from an associate,
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, amounts due to a related company
and immediate holding company, convertible bonds and
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes.

The management monitors and manages the financial
risks relating to the operations of the Group through
internal risk assessment which analyses exposures by
degree and magnitude of risks. The risks included market
risk (including interest rate and foreign currency risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk management

The Group’s activities expose primarily to the market
risks of changes in interest rates and foreign exchange
rate. There has been no significant change to the
Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which
it manages and measures the risks.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on
bank balances, restricted bank deposits, variable rate
borrowings which carry at interest rates quoted by the
People’s Bank of China or HIBOR.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to the fixed-rate borrowings and
convertible bonds. The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Market risk management (Continued)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

Sensitivity analysis on bank balances and pledged/
restricted bank deposits is not presented as the
management of the Group considers that the exposure
to interest rate fluctuation is insignificant.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the above-
mentioned variable-rate borrowings at the end of each
reporting period which was assumed to be outstanding
for the whole year and the stipulated change taking place
at the beginning of the financial year and held constant
throughout the year in the case of instruments that have
floating rates. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by 50
basis points and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax loss for the year, after taking into
account the capitalisation of the finance costs in
properties under development, would have increased/
decreased by RMB2,672,000 (2017: nil).

Foreign currency risk management

The Group’s sales of properties, rental income and the
sales of construction materials are denominated in the
group entity’s respective functional currency. However,
certain bank balances and the convertible bonds
denominated in HK$ were held by the entities with the
functional currency of RMB, which expose the Group to
the foreign currency risk.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group’s
transactions were mainly conducted in RMB, and the
monetary assets and liabilities of the Group which are
denominated in currency other than the functional
currency of the respective entities are insignificant.

hIEAREE ()
KRR EE (F)

MR RRE
BMRAEEEEERSMAR ZHME

RENI REX - 8 25 F BEIRTT

iR R BT RBEIRITERZ &

RE DT

T2 BRESFTTIRE BB ERE
HIRZFEEEZNEAR - W RE
BEREERBEFEHREEMRY
BEREREREREZEHEEAR
(R RAZB MR E 2 TR)RE(E
FEAZNERERFTEMEE © 5018
HEEZERDANSBREREIZEEA
EE%H?HA BIE T2 8 w7 R 7]
BERIEE B ATIERTE o

ﬁﬁwiﬂ/TMwlﬁ% meETE
Hth BB RFTE KA REETY
%ﬂé&$%ﬁ§$ AEERFEE
BREEBEBEN RO ARE
2,672,000 L(ZT—+F: &) -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

192

Market risk management (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the respective reporting periods are as follow:

36. ﬁ%ﬁ I /E-\ ( f‘

miZEREE(E)

SRR B T EE (4B
REBUINESH B EBEERBE
RE&RE R 2 BREENT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T AREETIT
(unaudited)
(REEEZ)
(restated)
(F &%)
Assets BE
HK$ BIT 837,724 =
Liabilities afE
HK$ BT (467,678) -

The Group currently does not enter into any derivative
contracts to minimise the currency risk exposure.
However, the management will consider hedging
significant currency risk should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The Group mainly exposes to the effects of fluctuation in
HK$ against RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
10% increase and decrease in the RMB against HKS.
10% is the sensitivity rate used in the current year when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year-end for a
10% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes bank balances, amounts due from
subsidiaries, borrowings and convertible bonds. A
negative number indicates an increase in loss for the year
where the RMB strengthens 10% against HK$. For a
10% weakening of the RMB against HK$, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit or loss, and
the balances below would be positive.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Market risk management (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

HK$ BTT

Increase in loss for the year NS opi= b

Credit risk management

As at 31 March 2018, other than those financial assets
whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum
exposure to credit risk, the Group‘s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group arising from the amount of contingent liabilities in
relation to financial guarantees provided by the Group in
disclosed in note 41.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
on trade receivables, with exposure spread over a
number of purchasers and the trade debts will be
recovered from the Housing Provident Fund Bureau.

The Group’s credit risk on amount due from an associate
is limited because the associate is engaging in a property
development project in the PRC with reasonable profit
margin according to the latest budget and has strong net
assets position at the end of the reporting period.

The Group’s credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings and
good reputation established in the PRC.

miZEREE (&)
SR P ERE (4B )
BREE D (B)

2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
ARBTT
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)

(&&7)

FERREHE
RZZE-N\F=ZA=+—0H " ©K&Z%
FHERERRAAHRAKERERR
ZEMEESN  AREMEHREXE
ERER S < AR EEME 41 FiEAR
KSERMRERVBRREBIREES
BmELMBER -

REERIVEERR  AEERBE
SIEF - HERBREURAETTE) U [l 8 A
fBIH - I AEERESHRERKRE
B % B8 R FE B TR 2 AT IR @ & 58 - JA
FE (R LT W (3] & BE AT 1R 2 S00R(E S
BEE -t S EERRAKE
EERBREKBRD

AEERVERTBEEREREER
B BBROBEZRER  MEKRE
BERBEEABEERRKE -

AEERE—FBERRFAZEE
RERAR - REZZHE QB LR
H2EYEERAR - RIESKOME
8 HEERRENEEX  YNREH
REBHBKXFEENR °

AEERPECZEERRER - R
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Credit risk management (Continued)

For properties that are still under construction, the Group
typically provides guarantees to banks in connection with
the purchasers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to finance
their purchase of the properties for an amount up to 60%
to 70% of the total purchase price of the property. If a
purchaser defaults on the payment of its mortgage
during the term of guarantee, the bank holding the
mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount of the loan and any accrued interest
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to
retain the customer’s sales deposit and sell the property
to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the bank.
In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk of other receivables is managed through
an internal process. The credit quality of each
counterparty is investigated before an advance is made.
The Group also actively monitors the outstanding
amounts owed by each debtor and identifies any credit
risks in a timely manner in order to reduce the risk of a
credit related loss. The Group reviews the recoverable
amount of these receivables at the end of each reporting
period to ensure adequate impairment losses are made
for unrecoverable amounts.

Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors its cash position resulting from its operations
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings, amount due to
immediate holding company and convertible bonds as
significant sources of liquidity.

The following table details the Group’s contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Liquidity risk management (Continued)
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36. £m T E(

nBETERERE(E)

Liquidity table BESEeE
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total
effective or within 61-180 181-365 1-2 25 undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate 60 days days days years years  cashflow amount
MEFY  REXY RER
EBAZ  M60RA 612180 181%365H 122F 2255 REREAE Raf
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARBTR ARMTn ARETRT ARMTn ARETr ARBTR  ARETR
As at 31 March 2018 RZB-NF=A=1-A
Trade and other payables R REERHE 117,569 50,387 - - - o795 167,956
Amount due to a elated company EEH PN 5,766 - - - - 5,766 5,766
Borrowings 55
— fived rate -8 80-110 572,678 133,647 1,019,211 - - 1,725,536 1,648,318
— Variable rate -8 29-91 - 23,896 23,587 367,019 253,367 667,929 578,008
Convertble bonds-debt Tk - BEE5
component - 1,176 1,215 14,301 174,334 203,116 153478
Financial quarantess BBER 927,474 - - - - 927471 -
1,623,484 215,106 1,050,013 381,470 421,701 3,697,774 2,553,526
As at 31 March 2017 R=F-tE=p=1-A
(unaudited) (restated) (RS (HE5)
Trade and other payables ERERREMERNE 3,903 15816 - - - 52719 52719
Amount due to a related company F’iﬁ FEEn 7 12871 = = = = 12871 12871
Amount due to immedate EREERRAA
holding company 328,268 - - - - 328,258 328,258
Borowings &8
— fived rate -T8 8.0-10.1 22202 44404 346,606 1,302,166 - 15317 136,286
Finencial guarantees HHER 365,231 - - - - -
6465 6020 M6E6 1302165 - Q4T 193013
The amounts included above for variable interest rate i) Z BT R E B F BN E S WwE BR
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject FrEEE M = 2 5t » BIFT A Ll 3ELT
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to SEBMBECFRANETAHEYT T
those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of e o

each reporting period.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could be
required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of each reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

AALBMBRARGOIEERAE
BRNERX ZE F ARG A LA
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FRGUFREBEEMRIBHER ZATHE
EMmE - ML A ERIETFERZE
FRAEZEERMBEEFHEEER
XIEEREME

EREBREZEREEARQF
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

196

Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

The following table gives information about how the fair
values are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the level of the
fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for
the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

36. EMI A%

FEEZEEHEEN QA VEFE
ZEMEERERMABEZATE

TREJEHAMAUEEAFEEHE
SEFTREERM R AR RIRE
RHEEMRBABERZ TERE
ERAFEFESBEEMBATEE
R(E—ZE=ZR)Z2EHR -

+ E-RAVENENHARA
B s B AR E BT 5 2 18 (R
88 B -

s F-HRAFEFENEF &
FrEfERE AN 2 H i (BMETE)
FEE(NREER)ABEER
EXBEBARESDL -

s FZHRAFEENEEEY
FRERABEMGHEBEZEE
SREHABR(TABERHA
2B) 2 AERMEH -

Fair value at Fair value
31 March 2018 hierarchy
R=Z—-N\F
=RA=+—H
AN ATEER
RMB’000
ARETT
Available-for-sale investment Al HERE Level 3
500 F=H&
Convertible bonds AR ES Level 3
— derivative components — PTEEH D 944,258 L=/
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s other financial assets
and financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

Except as disclosed in the following table, the Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

36. €T A @)

AEEYFEREEHELZUQFE
AFECHEMEREERSRMAGEZ
DVE

BRTREEEN  EER/NERAH
BHRERERAZCREELSRAER
EEEEATERE

Carrying Fair value
amount at at 31 March Fair value
31 March 2018 2018 hierarchy

R-ZBE-NE RZIZB-N\F

=R=t+—-H =ZRA=+-H
ZEREE AN DYEER
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Convertible bonds ARRES
— debt component — BB

Level 3
153,478 152,406 B=4

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of
other financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
The following assets were pledged to secure certain banking
and other facilities granted to the Group and the mortgage
loans granted to the customers of the Group at the end of
each reporting period.

AEEEEERAMRAEREDIN
ERHRBER A B HMEREE
ReBBRIAFE-

37. EEKMH
THI & RS R4 H R 4K 1 2 o [
BEFHEAREMREANRAERMESE
BIRBER T BIR -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTIT

(unaudited)

(REEEZ)

(restated)

(&eE5)

Properties under development for sale FEERPYE 761,069 1,065,202
Completed properties held for sale EELECRIME 33,916 68,940
Property, plant and equipment M - HE MR 95,738 -
Investment properties "EME 983,097 =
1,873,820 1,134,142

Net assets of certain subsidiaries ETHBARZEEFE 345,258 316,745
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38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 38.

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

AEERBETAIBHEKEHER 2 E
NZRREERENHAENT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTF T AREFIT

(unaudited)

(REEEZ)

(restated)

(L& =5))

Within one year —FR 3,140 2,021
In the second to the fifth year inclusive E_ZERF(RREEEME) 7,942 7,104
More than five years REE 959 3,356
12,041 12,481

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain offices premises. Leases are negotiated for
terms ranged from 2 years to 6 years with fixed rentals.

At the end of respective reporting periods, the Group had
contracted with tenants of its properties for the following future
minimum lease payments:

REMENREARERETHAENE
ENzHle HEZEEHEHANFRMER
NE - HPABESET °

REBRERR AEEEEYEAEFH
THRERERERNKETH -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+t5F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFT

(unaudited)

(REEEZ)

(restated)

(F&&=75))

Within one year —F R 10,475 3,320
In the second to the fifth year inclusive F_EZERIF (BREEEMTE) 6,758 8,898
Over five years REE 4,330 3,777
21,563 15,995
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Commitments for property development
contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements

Y RBERAYE

2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
ARETIT
(unaudited)
(REEFEZ)
(restated)

(B&7)

RERE M IMREFTAEREE

578,324

Commitment for acquisition of subsidiaries 4R & B IGIRKRE 5] KB R BIE

contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 1 December 2017 pursuant to a special resolution approved
by the shareholders of the Company on 20 November 2017.
The purpose of the Scheme is to reward participants who have
contributed to the Group and to encourage participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as
a whole.

The participants of the Scheme include executive directors,
non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors and employees of the Group and any advisers,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, partners, joint venture business partners,
promoters or service providers of any member of the Group
who the board of directors considers, in its sole discretion,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company and/or any subsidiary
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% (the “10% Limit”) in nominal
amount of the aggregate of the shares in issue on the adoption
date. Options lapsed or cancelled in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme and such other share option schemes of
the Company and/or any subsidiary shall not be counted for
the purpose of calculating the 10% Limit. The 10% Limit may
be refreshed with the approval of the shareholders of the
Company. The limit on the total number of the shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme, together with all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under any
other share option schemes of the Company and/or any
subsidiary, must not exceed 30% of the number of issued
shares from time to time.

Z WM B AR 2 A

578,324

ARAR—ZF—EtF+-A—BREAR
ABRRR T —+F+—A_tRH#tEZ
Rl RZERRAEROER 8 ([5181)) - 5t
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W B2 EERANRA R EBIREE M -
BHRARRRRERMDEE

AE2BRERRARERTES - FHT
Ex BUNRTEZENEEBUNRESRS
E2RMERSE /K /ANEEELER
ZIEEER - BERER - DHE - ARR
HER - R BP EBBH  S2D%E
EBEBA  BEARAEEBETAKER
Bl Z BRI e o

FHEI R AR A R AT AT B R R 2 ]
HpER R 8m T T REZAAEBRKR
RETERA TETIBRNDAE  AXT
CEBEMABEHETRNEEARL
10% ([10% R 5 1) 5+ E10% R &R - I
Pt RAR B 8 R AR R RS B
RNE 2z BB AR AT B 2 IRRE & R
AEHZ BB - 10% fREE AT EE AL AR
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted to each
participant under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company and/or any subsidiary (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue
as at the proposed grant date unless the same is approved by
the shareholders.

In respect of any particular option, the period to be determined
and notified by the board to the grantee at the time of making
an offer shall not expire later than 10 years from the date of
grant. Each participant must pay HK$1 as consideration for the
grant of options not later than 28 days after the grant date.

The exercise price shall be determined by the board of
directors, being not less than the highest of (a) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the grant date; (b) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the grant date; and (c) the nominal value of the
shares.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the adoption date, i.e. 1 December 2017.

No share options have been granted by the Company since
the adoption of the Scheme.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=A=+—HILFE

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

41. SIREE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)
(gE:%)
Guarantees given in favour of banks for: AT FIBERBITIED < EIR -
Mortgage facilities granted to purchasers ~ R TAREEYEER 2
of the Group’s properties (note) L E (fsE) 927,471 365,231

Note: The Group had provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans
entered into by purchasers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to
the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of the mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible for the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage loans together with accrued
interests thereon and any penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers
to the banks. The Group is then entitled to take over the legal title of
the related properties. The guarantee period commences from the
dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and released upon the
banks obtained the building ownership certificate from the
customers as a pledge for the mortgage loans. In the opinion of the
Directors, no provision for the guarantee contracts is made as the
default risk is low and the fair value of the financial guarantee
contracts is insignificant.

42. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION
On 1 December 2017, the Company allotted and issued
6,415,060,000 Consideration Shares to the Vendor as part of
the consideration for acquiring the entire equity interest of
Vivalink Limited and assumed the shareholder’s loan owed by
Vivalink Limited to the Vendor in relation to the Acquisition as
detailed in notes 2 and 33.

BfEE - ARERE TRITR O ZIRIBRERMER -
ZEEBREY REAREMEERME L

RIZIBNFK - REEABRRRITEERK
BRER ZAEERBEFEREEF L
REFEIR - B AEEERZEERY
EZETEMAE - BRBIRBARBRBER
R BB - WRIRTTERFPIGE B
BREERBBERIEMRREL - EER
» BERENRREBREMIBRERRAOZA
FEBMNRE - BEREREOERES -

42, FEFRERZ
R-E—+&E+=-—A—RB ARTAEH
it 2% N 3217 6,415,060,000 I R B I D E A
W B RE A PR A A2 SPRRAE 7 89 1R B 1A
T B 3% 2 K2 33 F7 5% st U B8 B IE AR E IR B
BERARGERE S ZREEH

E%@%}%HE%;@%;% 2@"‘



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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43.

RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS

43. BB R ERER S

(@  During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, the
following parties are identified as related parties to the
Group and the respective relationships are set out below:

Name of related party

MBLE £8

Relationship

S

HE-_Z—N\FER=_Z—tF=A
=+—HILFE TS HHEZANB
REB 2@ - FES B CBEE
PR

Mr. Pan Weiming
EREASEE

BREAEEEERQA
BEANEEEERQA

Fusheng Group
BRERRAA

Ultimate Controlling Shareholder

RIS IRR

Mr. Pan Weiming is the beneficial owner
BERAEEREZERBA

Mr. Pan Weiming is the beneficial owner
BERAEEREZERA

(b)  The Group had the following balance with related party

at the end of each reporting period:

REREMKR A EEERBEB BN
MERR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARETIT
(unaudited)
(REEEZ)
(restated)
(F&&E75)
Amount due to a related company: FEf — B RARsE A RIFR0E -
Trade nature (note) T HMEE (MsE)
BENEEEERAR] BEANEEEERAA 5,766 12,871

Note:  Balance represents payable for construction works and the
aging of the trade payable was over 90 days at 31 March

2018 and 2017, respectively.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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43. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The Group entered into the following transaction with its

(©

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AF

PSRRI L

I =7

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— N\ =A=+—HIFE

related company during the years ended 31 March 2018

43. B HERRERH (&)

0 BEZZ—N\FRkZZEZ—+tF=A
= tT—HLEFE FrEBEEEHA

and 2017: AETUTIR S -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFIT
(unaudited)
(REEER)
Name of related party Nature of transaction (restated)
)t REME (F&&E75)
BENEEEER AT Construction service - 16,817
BENEEBEARAR BERS
Remuneration of key management personnel, who are o) BAAEEBRAARSHEEZEZEE
the top five highest paid employees of the Group, is as BEABZMEMOT
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F T tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EF T AREEFIT
(unaudited)
(REEER)
(restated)
(F&&E5)
Salaries and allowances e RER 2,719 1,798
Performance related bonus EA SR IR BMA 2 TEAT 399 339
Retirement benefit contributions BRI FIEE K 77 72
3,195 2,209

BREEZEREBERAR
2018 F 3k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

43. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 43. BB A ERERR S (#)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(e) The related parties provided guarantee to the Group in e BHARKRTAEEZEFRBERAR
favour of the lenders in respect of the loan facilities EERHUNERAEIRHZAZER
granted to the Group and the amount of loan facilities REREHARAEBMBHERRME
utilised by the Group at the end of each reporting period ZEEmT
is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T AREFIT
(unaudited)
(REEEZ)
Name of related party Nature (restated)
)by et HE (F&&E75)
Mr. Pan Weiming, Fusheng Joint guarantee on
Group & immediate holding borrowings
Company of the Company 314,200 -
EEALE  BREEARR BEBS ER
RAF 2 EEERAR]
Mr. Pan Weiming Guarantee on borrowings 263,808 —
EEBRSE BEER
578,008 -

2@4 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



44.

45.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 B Z—Z— \F=A=+—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Company contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the Scheme with a cap of HK$1,500
per employee per month, which contribution is matched by
employees.

In addition, the employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute range from 2% to 15%
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of RMB730,000
(2017: RMB663,000 (unaudited)) represents the contributions
payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the plans by the Group for the year ended 31 March
2018.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of principal subsidiaries indirectly held, unless
otherwise stated, by the Company as at 31 March 2018 and
2017 are as follows:

44,

45.

RIREAEE
REBARFAEESERIER R
MAMSE B - ZEH B EERAEE
TAEDHRE  MTRATEZEEE
SAEE o RDRIRIEMH SRR 2 5% A
SEt Bl SAEASALRA1,500%
T HREER

o REBEFEMEARZEEYS2HE
B B 2 B R B AR R AR AR 8 o
ZEMBRRBEFT AN T 2% E15%
FRRE A GBI ERBAZA - &
SEERABHEZE—BE/IELTE

ERK -

BE T )\F=A=+—BLFE ' R®
BRI AR AR 730,000 (=F
—+tF : AR%663,0007T (REHER)) 15
AR BRI R AT AR E L R A% F At 8
PG -

R B ARz
BBEHBN ARATAR T NFR=
TtE-A=t+-AMEREZETER
BARREMT

Place of/
Name of incorporation Paid-up Effective equity interest
subsidiary establishment capital attributable to the Group at  Principal activities
TR AEERATHE
e PNES B33t B BAEX EiEERRE TEEE
2018 2017
“I-N\E  ZE—+F
% %
Fuzhou Fullsun Group PRC US$50,000,000 100 100  Investment holding
BNEREE i 50,000,000% 7 REER
Hunan Fullsun Group PRC RMB445,000,000 100 100  Investment holding
HERREE i AR # 445,000,000 70 REER
HREREHEREER AR PRC RMB400,000,000 100 100 Property development
HE AE# 400,000,000 7 MERE
WA REERRBRAR PRC RMB158,820,000 100 100 Property development
hE AR 158,820,007 NEERE
Hunan Fullsun PRC RMB400,806,500 100 100  Property development
HEER FE AE# 400,806,500 7 MERE

EREBREZEREEARQE
2018 F 3k
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45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 45. N E QB 2 s (48)
Place of/
Name of incorporation Paid-up Effective equity interest
subsidiary establishment capital attributable to the Group at  Principal activities
B3 A AEERUATHE
WEAREHE B 3t 3 BdEx PR R R AE TEEE
2018 2017
“E-N\E ZZT—+F
% %
HEEEEHEREERAF PRC RMB59,000,000 100 100 Property development
H AR#59,000,0007T NEBR
HERBEHEREERAF PRC RMB30,000,000 100 100 Property development
H AR#30,000,0007T NEER
KB (ER) BXEEERAT PRC RMB10,429,900 100 N/A~ Property investment
h AR 10,429,9007C TEm YDERE
Al Brilliant Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 N/A  Property investment
AFRERRRA BB 1AL TEm YERE
Candidwell Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 N/A  Property investment
KRR EBRAF BB 1AL TEm YERE
Gainer Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 N/A  Property investment
SRR ERRAF BB 1AL TEm YERE
Leadfirst Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 N/A  Property investment
ERARERARAF BB 1AL TEm YERE
Enterprise Carpark Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 N/A  Property investment
&8 18T TEm YERE
Wisdom Bloom Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 N/A  Property investment
&8 18T TEm YERE
Splendor Keen BVI US$ 10,000 100 N/A  Property investment
REEAREES  10000%T TEm YERE
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in ERIR % ERTR 7% TEFEASETE
the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results of the FBERBRAREEEFEEANIN D ZA
year or constituted a substantial portion of the net asset of the YN EWE ’D\\ET o & ;% REFINEMTE D
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the AlZEBRSEHERBNIIE
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the end of RER - SHRBRAWEERERES
the year.

2@6 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
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46. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT 46. EREAAR AR BMRRRZ2ER
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the ERREPARANRN R ERARZER B
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: b=
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRZI%E 687,994 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEUR B B A R FIA 512,490 =
1,200,484 =
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H h fE UL GRIB 4,723 573
Amounts due from subsidiaries G ENGIE /S 121,725 78,257
Bank balances and cash RITHEB MRS 943 862
127,391 79,692
Current liability =R
Other payables H M EFUR 3,039 5,891
Net Current Assets REBEEZFE 124,352 73,801
Total Assets Less Current Liability EEHZBERRBERE 1,324,836 73,801
EQUITY S
Equity attributable to owners AAREBTAELER
of the Company
Share capital (note 30) A&7 (B3 30) 88,605 11,579
Reserves (note) fE s (PaE) 138,495 62,222
227,100 73,801
Non-current Liabilities ERBERS
Convertible bonds AR ES 153,478 =
Derivative components of convertible bonds A3 i& &% 2 $TE 5D 944,258 -
1,097,736 —
1,324,836 73,801

BREEZEREBERAR
2018 F 3k
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46. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT

46. HRADARBRREZEH

OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE (&)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: MEE -
Share  Contributed Other Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
R RE BABLR Hiv e ZiTEE Ht
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBFT ARETT AREFT
(note i) (note i)
(BE=ED (P&Eii)
At 1 April 2016 RZT—R"FMA—AH 686,075 351855 2,646 (658,508) 65,568
Loss for the year AEEERE = = = (13,617) (13,617)
At 31 March 2017 R-TE—+F=A=+—8H 686,075 35,355 2,646 (672,125) 51,951
Loss for the year REEZEE - - - (4,595,507) (4,595,507)
Placement of new shares (note 30) Bt & # %5 (Ff 3£ 30) 484,980 - - - 484,980
Share allotment for acquisition of BUBEA D 7B Z AR
the Company (note 33) (BFzE33) 4,197,071 - - = 4,197,071
Reduction of share premium and BB = (B &
set-off against accumulated losses 4 251518
(note il (Pr&Eiii) (686,075) - - 686,075 =
At 31 March 2018 RZT-N\E=A=+—H 4,682,051 35,355 2,646 (4,581,557) 138,495
Notes: PE -

0

(i

(i)

208

Contributed surplus represents the excess of the then combined net
assets of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange completed on 16 October 2000 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange therefor. In accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus is available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie in certain circumstances.

Other reserve represents the equity component of the convertible
notes issued by the Company in prior years, which remained
unexercised at the maturity date.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 20 November 2017, the
share premium of the Company amounted to RMB686,075,000 was
credited to the contributed surplus account, which was used to set-
off the accumulated losses of the Company.

FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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On 27 April 2018, £/8 1@ & & % B R A 7 (“Shanghai
Fusheng Property”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, -/ 8 @BECX*EE(£E) AR T
(“Shanghai Fusheng Management”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of #a # & & & B A R 2 7] (‘Fujian Fusheng
Group”), {2 /FRIEEBR A A (“Fujian Qianlong”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Fusheng
Management, entered into a capital increase and
subscription agreement pursuant to which Shanghai
Fusheng Property shall make capital contribution of
RMB2,500,000 in cash to Fujian Qianlong to increase the
registered capital of Fujian Qianlong. Upon completion of
the capital contribution, the registered capital of Fujian
Qianlong will be RMB12,500,000 and Fujian Qianlong will
be held as to 80% by Shanghai Fusheng Management
and 20% by Shanghai Fusheng Property. On 27 April
2018, Shanghai Fusheng Property and Fujian Fusheng
Group entered into the cooperation agreement pursuant
to which the wholly-owned subsidiary of Fujian Qianlong
will acquire the entire equity interest in a project company
non-wholly owned by /&I & EE R M BRAF], at a
consideration of approximately RMB2,900 million. The
project company owns a commercial and residential
property project with land and buildings, located in
Pudong, Shanghai, the PRC.

RZE—NFWUA=-++H " EE
REXBERAB(TEERBREE]
ARFzHEEZENBAR)  £F
BREXEE (EB)ERAR(LE
EREE] mEEREEBRAT
([BRERER ) 22EWBRT)
FEEERSRREGRAR([EE
BRE| LEEREBEZEZEWNBA
REIVIBE KRB HZ Btk £
BREREEBUBSAGEERTIE
AR #2500,0007T @ A INfEEE
BaAMER - NEETKE B2
BRz2aEMEARE A ARE
12,500,0007C * M@ EEE K 5 7 A
FEEREERLEEREEREE
80% M 20% 1z - R —Z— \F A
“t+tH LEEEREXHEERR
SEFIVEAERE Bt BEEE
ZEEWNBRARGKREBHRERNRES
BN ERAREEZEHEE ZBEHA
RIZ 2B RE  REHNAEARE20E
T ZHEBAREAMRPE EET
R EEYHIER ER L REF -
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(i)

On 22 May 2018, the Group entered into equity transfer
agreement pursuant to which the Group acquired 34%
equity interestin EEMEIFEHEREBR A A
(“Ningde Bisheng’) from BN BZEREXREBR Q7
(“Fuzhou Xin De”) and the shareholder’s loan owed by
Ningde Bisheng to Fuzhou Xin De, at a cash
consideration of approximately RMB156,882,000.
Ningde Bisheng holds a piece of land in the PRC with
preliminary construction costs incurred. On the same
date, the Group entered into an agreement (the
“Agreement”) with two other shareholders who in total
have 33% shareholding in Ningde Bisheng such that the
three shareholders altogether holds 67% equity interest
in Ningde Bisheng agree that should there be any
differences in views on the resolutions in shareholders’
meeting and board meeting of Ningde Bisheng, the
Group’s opinions shall be overriding, final and conclusive.
According to the memorandum and article of association
of Ningde Bisheng and the Agreement, the Group can
obtain control over the relevant activities of the project
company and Ningde Bisheng will be considered as non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The
transaction will be accounted for as acquisition of asset.

On 4 May 2018, 7 May 2018 and 30 May 2018, certain
convertible bondholders have given written notice to the
Company to exercise the conversion right under the
convertible bonds with an aggregated principal amount
of HK$170,000,000 (equivalent to RMB139,114,000). On
7 May 2018, 8 May 2018 and 1 June 2018,
272,727,272, 45,454,545 and 454,545,454 ordinary
shares of the Company were allotted and issued to the
respective convertible bondholders, respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IFUBRE

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial T B N EAAF R EEZIERER

statements included in this Annual Report. — &5 °
RESULTS S
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 31 December
BE=A=1+—HLEE BZ+t-A=1+—-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

—E-N\FE ZE—+F ZT-RF —T-HF —T-@OEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
(Note a) (Note a) (Note b) (Note b) (Note b)
(HizEa) GETY (FH5ED) (FtEb) (Pf5ED)

Revenue WA 553,549 602,607 768,363 942,791 1,137,733
(Loss) profit before taxation AT (E38) s A (4,546,904) 112,137 120,800 232,321 158,243
Income tax expense Frfe R (79,024) (58,024) (54,048)  (109,592) (71,415)

(Loss) profit for the year from AEEREFEREE

continuing operations %2 (EE)R®H (4,625,928) 54,113 66,752 122,729 86,828
Loss for the year from REERBBRIELESE

discontinued operation ES b (426) - = = -
(Loss) profit for the year REE (BR)%5F (4,626,354) 54,113 66,752 122,729 86,828

Note:  The above financial figures were prepared in a 12-month basis for each of FifaE :  CHBMBEURI S MIRFEIR 1218 B 2 ERR
the financial year.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFRBEBE
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
At 31 March At 31 December
R=A=+—H R+=ZHA=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-\E ZT—+F ZT—RE —T—HF —T-NOF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(Note a) (Note a) (Note b) (Note b) (Note b)
(MizFa) (Kizxa) (KizED) (HizEDb) (BizEDb)
Total assets BEE 5,860,960 2,833,920 2,703,958 2,688,514 2,554,208
Total liabilities BEE 5,572,395 2,506,213 2,389,263 2,440,571 2,405,904

Equity attributable to owners RATRE NELRER

of the Company 288,565 327,707 314,695 247,943 148,304

Notes: Bk -

(@  The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial @ HBEFT RSB G MERE -
statements.

()  The financial figures were restated to those of the Vivalink Limited (as () HHEFTHIZBEBBRAR T FETES (IR
explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements) and have been EVBMRMFE2FEE) RESEE AR B A
extracted from the circular of the Company dated 27 October 2017 in T—+FTAZTHHZBER AREHEEETEKR
connection with the very substantial acquisition and reverse takeover W E 18 Rop R R 2 R -

involving a new listing application.

2 —‘ 2 FULLSUN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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